Kevin Simcoe

N
From: Rob Kroeker
Sent: September-20-17 5:46 PM
To: Jim D. Lightbody
Suhject: MNP Audit

Hi Jim — nothing has come through from you yet.

R



Kevin Simcoe

From: Jim D, Lightbady
Sent: September-20-17 6:33 PM
To: Suzanne Rowley
Subject: Fwd: MNP Report on AML

Can you please set up a conference call for Bud, rob, Susan and I asap?

s 15(1)

Begin forwarded message:

From: Bud Smith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca>
Date: September 20, 2017 at 5:59:40 PM PDT

To: Jim Lightbody <JDLightbody(@bele.com™, "SDolinski@BCLC.com" <SDolinski@BCLC.com>
Subject: MNP Report on AML

Colleagues, I just took a call from the Minister's office. Apparently the FOI process is about to release
the MNP on ML, The Minister wants to release it himself and phoned to give a heads up. I said send
what is going to be released and if it's what I think it is there's an E&Y report and I believe a Fintrac
report that were done around the same and likely modify some of the MNP conclusions. Can 1 talk to
one or other of you on this? Is this the report GPEB had done? Bud

s 15(1)
If you are not the intended recipient or agent, do not rely on, distribute, or copy any part of this e-mail.
If you received this e-mail in etror, please delete the message, and if possible let me know it has been
received in error. Many thanks,



Kevin Simcoe

.
From: Jim D. Lightbody
Sent: September-20-17 6:43 PM
To: Jim D, Lightbody
Subject: Fwd: MNP Audit Report

s 15(1)

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Jim D. Lightbody" <JDLightbody(@bclc.com>
To: "Sam AG:EX Godfrey" <Sam.Godfrey@gov.be.ca>
Ce: "Bud Smith" <bsmith(@urbansystems.ca™>

Subject: Fwd: MNP Audit Report

Sam,

I've reviewed the document you sent, We are very concerned that the report does not include our
Management Response that we provided, which is usual practice and provides balance and
perspective.I have attached our Management Response for reference. We are also concerned the
release may undermine our AML practices and would like the opportunity for our opportunity to
review and advise. We have not had that opportunity yet.

Please sec below and advise.

Regards,

Jim

s 15(1)

Begin forwarded message:

From; "Rob Krocker" <RKroeker@bele.com<mailto:RKrogker@bele.com>>
To: "Jim D. Lightbody" <JDLightbody@belc.com<mailto:JDLightbody@bele.com>>
Subject: MNP Audit Report

Jim

It is my understanding we were not consulted by GPEB prior to the FOI package going to the Minister
- certainly 1 was not given an opportunity to comment on redactions. It is normal course for BCLC to
be consulted on the release of its information which the MNP is report is almost entirely comprised of.

Find attached a copy of the report with our management comments, most of which where not
addvessed in the final report. To provide balance a copy with our management responses should be
released and only after the report has been vetted to make sure information that would undermine our

AML program is not released.
I have also attached a copy of our completed response plan to the-report.

Rob
<MNP response plan.xlsx>



<2016 05 17 - British Columbia Gaming Policy Enforcement Branch - BCLC Management Responses
and Notes.docx>



Kevin Simcoe
R

From: Jim D. Lightbody

Sent: September-20-17 6:56 PM
To: Bud Smith

Subject: Re: Confidential: MNP Report
Ok

s 15(1)

> 0n Sep 20, 2017, at 6:55 PM, Bud Smith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca> wrote:
>
> Give me 12 minutes. Bud

> From: Jim D. Lightbody [mailto:)DLightbody@hbcle.com]

> Sent: September 20, 2017 6:52 PM

> To: Bud Smith <hsmith@urbansystems.ca>

> Subject: Re: Confidential: MNP Report

>

> Give me a call,s 17(1}

>

>3 15(1)

>

>> On Sep 20, 2017, at 6:50 PM, Bud Smith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca> wrote:
>

>> Jim, This is an invitation for us to provide input, How will we or |

>> respond? Bud

>>

>> From: Godfrey, Sam AG:EX [mailto:Sam.Godfrey@gov.bc.ca)

>> Sent: September 20, 2017 5:56 PM

>> To: Bud Smith <bsmith@urbhansystems.ca>

>> Subject: Confidential: MNP Report

>>

>» Dear Bud,

>

>> As per our conversation, please see attached. Thank you for agreeing to malintain the confidentlallty of this report until it is
publicly released.

>> :

>> With respect to your comments about context and other reports, please follow-up with me this evening if at all possible.
o>

>> Warm regards, Sam

>>

>> Sam Godfrey

>> Ministerial Assistant, Ministry of Attorney General

>> Mobile: § 22 | Office: 250 925 7613 Rm 232, Parliament
>> Bulidings, 501 Belleville St,, Victoria, B.C. V8V 1X4
>

>> This message, including any attachments to it, is not to be disclosed outside of the Provincial Government without prior
written approval from the Ministry of Attorney General. If you have received this communication in error, please destroy the
email message and any attachments immediately and notify me by telephone or by email,



>> If you are not the intended recipient or agent, do not rely on, distribute, or copy any part of this e-mail. If you recelved this
e-mail in error, please delete the message, and if possible let me know it has been received in error, Many thanks.
>> <MNP Report - redacted.pdf>

>
> This email is intended only for the addressee. It may contain confidential or proprietary information that cannot be disclosed

without BCLC's permission. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete the email.
> If you are not the intended recipient or agent, do not rely on, distribute, or copy any part of this e-mail. If you received this e-
mail in error, please delete the message, and if possible let me know it has been received in error. Many thanks,




Kevin Simcoe

From: Susan Dotinski

Sent: September-20-17 7:53 PM
To: Jien D. Lightbody

Subject: Re: MNP Report on AML
Ok thanks,

From: Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@hbclc.com:>
Date: September 20, 2017 at 7:50:00 PM PDT
To: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>
Subject: Re: MNP Report on AML

Yes, Bud and 1 spoke. I agree about the lack of a heads up, but at least the Minister is giving us one and the
opportunity to discuss. George Smith called me and Rob and T will be on a conference call at 8 am tomorrow with

Minister.

s 15(1)

On Sep 20, 2017, at 7:45 PM, Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com> wrote:

Hi Jim - did you speak with Bud on this? Do you want me to forward a dial in? | didn't receive a heads
up in my channels. This is concerning.

From: Jim D. Lightbody <iDLightbody@bclc.com>
Date: September 20, 2017 at 6:50:38 PM PDT

To: Bud Smith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca>
Cc: Susan Polinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>
Subject: Re: MNP Report on AML

Bud,
If you want to call me now I'm on cell ats 17(1) . Or we can wait for conference call.

Jim
s 15(1)

> On Sep 28, 2017, at 5:59 PM, Bud Smith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca> wrote:

=

> Colleagues, I just took a call from the Minister's office. Apparently the FOI process is about to release the MNP on ML.
‘The Minister wants to release it himself and phoned to give a heads up, 1 said send what Is golng to be released and if it's
what I think it is there's an E&Y report and I believe a Fintrac report that were done around the same and likely modify
some of the MINE conclusions. Can I talk to one or other of you on this? Is this the report GPEB had done? Bud

>

=5 15(1)

> If you are not the intended recipient or agent, do not rely on, distribute, or copy any part of this e-mail. If you received
this e-mail in etror, please delete the message, and if possible let me know it has been received in error. Many thanks.




Kevin Simcoe

N A
From: Bud Srnith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca>
Sent: September-20-17 9:05 Piv
To: Jim D. Lightbody
Cc: Rob Kroeker; Susan Dolinski
Subjfect: RE: MNP Report on AML

Thanks. Bud

Frarm: Jim D. Lightbody [mallto:DLightbody@bcle.com]

Sent: September 20, 2017 9:03 PM

To: Bud Smith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca>

Ce: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bcle.com>; Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>
Subject: Re: MNP Report on AML

Yes, Bud, I'm sending now.
s 15(1)

On Sep 20, 2017, at 9:00 PM, Bud Smith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca> wrote:

Rob,s 22

Good stuff, let's share that with our Minister.

Can come one send that material over to George tonight, so the Minister has it for the morning?
Thanks,

Bud

From: Rob Kroeker {mailto:RKroeker@bclc.com]

Sent: Septemher 20, 2017 7:55 PM

To: Bud Smith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca>; Jim D. Lightbody <)DLightbody@bcle.com>
Cc: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>

Subject: Re: MNP Report on AML

Bud

You have an excellent memory. There was our biennial required audit done by EY just before and FinTRAC
audit done shortiy after. Both of those were comprehensive audits The MNP audit was limited to River Rock
and just some reporting requirements,

Robh.

From: Jim D. Lightbody <}Dlightbody@bclc.com>

Date: September 20, 2017 at 6:17:28 PM PDT

To: Bud Smith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca>

Cc: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>, Roh Kroeker <RKroeker@bcle.com>
Subject: Re: MNP Report on AML

Bud,
The Minister's MA also called me and It Is the MNP audit. It doesn't include our Management Response which is a
problem. The report is challenging at best. It was commissioned by GPEB,

i



We should all get on a call.

Fll try and get Suzanne to set up a conf call asap,
Thanks

s 15(1)

> On Sep 20, 2017, at 5:59 PM, Bud Smith <psmith@urbansystems.ca> wrote:

>

> Colleagues, | just took a call from the Minister's office. Apparently the FOI process is about to release the MNP on ML,
The Minister wants to release it himself and phoned to give a heads up. | said send what is going to be released and if it's
what | think it is there's an E&Y report and | belleve a Fintrac report that were done around the same and likely modify
some of the MNP conclusions. Can | talk to one or other of you on this? Is this the report GPEB had done? Bud

>

>s 15(1}

> If you are not the intended recipient or agent, do not rely on, distribute, or copy any part-of this e-mail. If you received
this e-mail In error, please delete the message, and If possible let me know It has been recelved in error. Many thanks.

This email is intended only for the addressee. 1t may contain confidential or proprietary information that cannot
be disclosed without BCLC's permission. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender

immediately and delete the email,
If you are not the Inlended recipient or agent, do nol rely on, disic bute, or copy any part of this e-mail. If you received this e-mail in ervor, please
dalete the message, and if possible lel me know it has bean received In error. Many thanks.

This email is infended only for the addressee. It may contain confidential or proprietary information that cannot he disclosed

without BCLC's permission, If you have received this emaii in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete the email.
If you are not the intended recipieni or agent, do no rely on, distr bute, or copy any pari of this e-mail. If you received lhis e-mall in error, ploase delete the message, and if
possible let me know it has been raceived In error. Many thanks.



Kevin Simcoe

]
From; : Jim D. Lightbody
Sent: September-20-17 9:24 PM
To: George AG:EX Smith
Ce Sam AGEX Godfrey; Bud Smith
Subject: Fwd: 2015 EY Audit and 2016 FinTRAC Audit
Attachments: Fintrac AML Review 2016_letter to BCLC 2016.pdf; ATTO000L.htm; EY Report_Bi Annual Audit

2015_AML Sanctions Program Assessment of BCLC_112315_FINALpdf; ATT00002.htm

George,

For further information and perspective, I'm forwarding the note and attachments below. Rob Kroeker is our VP
Security & Compliance. | asked him to send me the audits by FinTRAC and EY, completed around the same time as
the MNP review, that provide a much more fulsome report on our AML practices.

Rob also provides commentary on some of the circumstances of the MNP review that the Minister should know. See
below.

We can expand more tomorrow maorning.

Best regards,

Jim

s 15(1)
Begin forwarded message:
From: "Rob Kroeker" <RKroeker@bclc.com>

To: "Jim D. Lightbody" <JDLightbody@bclc.com>, "Bud Smith" <psmith@urbansystems.ca>
Suhject: 2016 EY Audit and 2016 FINnTRAC Audit

Jim

The EY Report Is dated November 23, 2015, That audit covered the period Oct 1, 2013 ~ July 31, 2015 and was
a comprehensive audit of the entire AMI. Programme,

The FInTRAC Audit is dated July 14, 2016. That audit covered the period September 1, 2015 to February 29,
2016 and was a comprehensive audit of the entire AML Programme,

The MNP Audit is dated July 26, 2016. That audit covered the perlod September £, 2013 to August 31,
2015. This audit focused only on select transactions at River Rock.

You might recall the Audit lead from MNP left MNP to take employment with a competitor prior to the
engagement belhg completed.

In addition you may recall that MNP based its work on a data extract from our database —~ something which has
never been done before. We were able to determine their finding that mandatory fields In a number of large
cash transaction reports (LCTs) were left blank, and thus were non-compliant, was In error as a result of
apparent data carruption occurring during their data extraction process. We checked the LCTs In question
both in our database from which the extract was taken and the FinTRAC database. The reports were complete
and compliant. We asked MNP to confirm our findings by directly auditing our database rather than the
extract and/or confirming directly with FInTRAC the reports were In fact submitted in compliant form, MNP
declined to follow elther course and did not make any changes to their report.



One other ltem that was notewerthy was that despite starting off being described as an audit, when the work
was concluded MNP inserted into its report on page 3 “This engagement Is not an audit and did not include
any control testing”,

Rob
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Executive Summary

Ernst & Young LLP ("EY" or "we") has completed an independent assessment of British Columbia
Lottery Corporation’s ("BCLC's") Anti-Money Laundering ("AML"™) and sanctions compliance programs
against applicable reporting requirements outlined by the Financial Transactions and Reports Analysis
Centre of Canada ("FINTRAC”). Our engagement was performed in accordance with the scope agreed-
upon in our Statement of Work ("SOW™) dated August 11, 2015,

The Praceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act ("PCMLTFA”) requires
reporting entities to undergo a comprehensive AML review bi-annually. The AML review must cover
BCLC's policies and procedures, assessment of risks related to money laundering and terrorist
financing and BCLC's training program to test their effectiveness, The assessment of risks related to
money laundering and terrorist financing includes all the components of the risk-based approach,
where applicable, as explained in subsection 6 of the FINTRAC Guidelines, including risk assessment,
risk mitigation and ongoing monitoring. This assessment has included reading key documents (e.qg.,
policies, procedures, risk assessments), conducting process walkthroughs and other inguiries, and
performing detailed, sample-based testing.

As agreed with BCLC, EY's assessment procedures focused on an evaluation of processes and controis
over pertinent AML and sanctions compliance-related functions, with particular emphasis on;

+ Resolution of Prior Audit Issues
+ Appointment of a Chief Anti-Money Laundering Officer ("CAMLO")
¢« AML and Sanctions Risk Assessments
» Compliance Policies and Procedures
« Employee Training
« Customer Identification, Bue Diligence and Enhanced Due Diligence ("EDD™)
» Transaction Monitering / Sanctions Screening
+ Alert Investigations
¢ Transaction Reporting
e Large Cash Transactions ("LCTs™)
» Suspicious Transaction Reports ("STRs")
« Casino Disbursement Reports ("CDRs")

This report is intended solely for the information and use of BCLC to support BCLC with Its obligation to
comply with the effectiveness testing requirement stipulated by FINTRAC, as applicable, In executing
this assessment, EY has chosen key provisions from BCLC's written AML and sanctions policies and
procedures and tested for operational application. In completing the assessment, EY therefore
assumes no responsibility to any user of the report other than BCLC. Any other persons who choose to
rely on our report do so entirely at their own risk.
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We appreciate the cooperation and assistance provided to us during the course of our work. If you
have any questlons, please callg 22 .

Yours sincerely,

St + LLP

s22
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Summary of Observations

BCLC has developed, administered, and maintains an AML and sanctions compllance program that
incorporates the provisions of the PCMLTFA and compliance requirements as documented under
FinTRAC Guidelines and Interpretation Notices specific to casinos. BCLC has established three distinct
standards, procedures and policy manuals to address AML policy, internal policy and BCLC casino
policy. These protocols allow BCLC to continuousiy keep the program aligned with legal and regulatory
requirements. BCLC has designated a CAMLO (Vice President of Corporate Security and Compliance)
and established a system of AML/sanctions-related policies, procedures, and related internal controls,
Inciuding: implementing a BCLC employee and service provider AML/sanctions training program,
enrolted key personnel in continuing education and certification programs such as the certification for
Certified Anti-Money Laundering Specialist ("CAMS"™), conducting risk-based due dillgence on new and
existing patrons who establish business relationships with BCLC, and monitoring for potentially
suspicious transactions and behaviors. '

Collectively, the VP of Corporate Security and Compiiance and Director of AML & Operational Analysls
have several years of relevant experience and continue to stay abreast of emerging regulatory
requirements by attending industry conferences and seminars. Additionally, BCLC utilizes commercial-
grade technology solutions to facilitate compliance with applicable regulatory requirements (e.qg.,

s 15(1), for sanctions/PEP/negative news screening, s 15(1) for suspicious activity monitoring and
regulatory filings and is in the process of upgrading tos 15(1)  software to improve automated
transaction tracking and monitoring). '

BCLC has also impfemenied measures to improve or strengthen Its compliance program (based on
recommendations made in prior audits). During the mest recent FinTRAC examination, BCLC was
informed that the narratives as part of STR sections G and H were being truncated and as a result BCLC
launched an updated version ofs 15(1) in July 2014, BCLC would not have been privy to the truncation
error as the coding criteria applied would have needed to be vetted as an end user under FINTRAC In
order to assess the operating effectiveness of the software. BCLC has taken measures to apply
updates based on legislation changes such as Bill C-31 where updates tos 15(1) were Initfally
incorporated in February 2014,

BCLC has implemented a quality contrel process for reviewing cases for potential suspicious activity as
there are several casino investigators across multiple properties providing information to the head
office. This has allowed BCLC to consistently apply an investigative approach when determining when
cases contain substantiated or unsubstantiated suspicious activity. BCLC aiso maintains policies that
are consistently applied across service providers for large currency transaction reports as all twenty-
four hour facilities apply the same 'static ‘gaming day’ (7:00 AM to 7:00 AM the following day) which is
consistent with FInTRAC's [nterpretation Notice regarding application of the twenty-four hour rule for
casino operations. '
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EY has also identified areas where the Compliance Program could be improved. These include the
following items not required under FINnTRAC Guidelines, but commensurate with industry leading
practices:

» Formal approval by the Compliance Officer of key documents assoclated with BCLC's compliance
regime (risk assessment documentation and employee compliance training programs).

+ Inclusion of background check and inittal due diligence screening documents in patron PGF flles
upon establishing a business relationship with BCLC as defined by FinTRAC.

s Consistency in the use of PGF account review sheets at RiverRock Casino.

« Development written polictes and procedures to reflect the current practices BCLC takes regarding
s 15(1)

« Prioritize completings 15(1) search from July 2015 to date to address backlog for
patrons with established relationships.

« Update risk assessment to reflect current risk associated with geographic locations per 8CLC
internal policies and procedures. '

Our scope, approach and resuits are outlined in Sections 3 and 4 of this report. It Is management's
responsibility to evaluate and implement the recommendations noted.

Scope and Approach

EY's onsite fieldwork was conducted from August 24, 2015 through September 24, 2015, Throughout
the duration of Its assessment, BCLC provided EY with access to all files, documents, data, and
information requasted as noted in Appendix A,

EY's methodology and procedures consisted of an assessment of BCLC's AML and sanctions
compliance programs in accordance with the reporting requirements outlined by FINTRAC. EY
assessed all the documents provided by BCLC including, but not limited to, the Anti-Money Laundering
and Anti-Terrorist Financing Compliance Manual, the Casino and Community Gaming Centre Standards,
Policies and Procedures and Internal Casino and Gaming Centre Standards, Polices and Procedures. In
addition, £Y was provided access to the Board of Directors minutes from meetings during the scope
period, the BCLC AML team's qualifications and copies of the AML training programs provided to BCLC
and service provider employees, We considered the issues and recommendations made in prior
FINTRAC audits, the roles of the designated compliance officer (e.g., CAMLO), risk assessments
performed, patron recordkeeping information, policies and customer's relatlonship acceptance policles
for patron gaming fund ("PGF") accounts, g 15(1)

regulatory filings for large cash transactions and
casino disbursements and reporting of suspicious transaction activity.

Our assessment approach followed the FINTRAC Guidelines for casinos, EY analyzed relevant
documents (e.q. policies & procedures), conducted interviews (refer to Table land Table 2 for an
illustrative list of key BCLC and service providers personnel interviewed), performed process
walkthiroughs at both corporate and selected service provider locations and conducted sample-based

testing.



EY

Building a better
working world

rnst & Young, LEP
222 Bay Sheal
P63 Box 251

Tomnle, O
MO RI7
Canada

Table 1; BCLC Head Office Personne! Interviewed
(BCLC Representative

| pesition

s 15(1), 522

VP of Casinos and Commdhity Gamihg

VP of Corporate Security and Compliance

Director of AML & Qperational Analysis

Manager of Cash Alternatives & Special Projects

AML. Specialist

Intelligence Analyst for AML & Operational Analytics

Sr. Technical Analyst, Gaming Facifities Support

Assistant Manager, Casino Security & Surveillance

Policy Analyst, Information Privacy & Security

Compliance and Trend Analyst

Property Name

Table 2: Service Provider Personnel/On-site BCLC Casino Ehvestiqators

'Inte:ry_iew Name and Title

Grand Viila Casino

s 15(1), s 22 (Casino lnvééﬁgafor)

Grand Viila Casino

s 16(1), s 22 (Cage Supérvisor)

Grand Vifla Casino

=151, 522 (Shift Manager),

Grand Vlila Casino

s 16(1), s 22 (Surveillance Supervisor)

Starlight Casino

s 15{1}, s 22 {Casino Investigator)

Starlight Casino

515(1), s 22 (Cage Supervisor)

Starlight Casino

s 15(1), 8 22 (Casino Shift Manager)

Starlight Casino

5 15(1), s 22 (Surveillance Manager)

RiverRock Casino

s 15{1), s 22 (Casino Investigator)

-RiverRock Casino

s 15{1), 8 22 {Cage Shift Manager)

RiverRock Casino

s 18(1), s 22 (Floor Gaming Manager)

RiverRock Casino

s 15(1), 522  (Surveillance Shift Manager)

Edgewater Casino

s 15(1), s 22 (Casino Investigator)

Edgewater Casino s 15{(1), 522 {Surveillance Manager)
Edgewater Casino s 15(1), s 22 (Cage Manager)
Edgewater Casino s 15(1), s 22 (Director of Cage Operations)

Edgewater Casino

s 181,522 (Casino Shift Manager)

Hard Rock Casino

s15(1),s22  (Casino Investigator)
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Sampling Methodology and Sample Selection:

EY's sampling methodology was used to select sampies of regulatory reports and investigation files for
testing. EY considered the following factors in selecting our samples: population size, risk, and
complexity and criticality of the processes being tested. EY's sampling methodology uses a variety of
techniques, inciuding professional judgment.

Judgmental or risk-based sampling uses the judgment of the assessment team as a basls to select the
sample. Judgment can be based on risk, information obtained from previous reguiatory examination
reports, prior audft reports or other facts learned during the course of the assessment,

EY utilized judgmental sampling techniques to focus its testing on high risk patrons as identlfied by
BCLC. Samples were also further stratified to include a representation of ali new PGF accounts, all
STR, CDR and LCT filed and all unsubstantiated cases during the audit perlod. The selected files and
transactions represented activity that occurred within the audit period of Octéber 1%, 2013 to July
31%, 2015, The sampie sizes were selected to achieve a 90% confidence level based on control
frequency,

When determining the sample size, EY considered the level of risk and the population size. Both of
these components are important in the sample selection process. Per the EY methodology, there is a
statistical basls for the sample sizes articulated in Table 3 below. EY elected to follow a sample that at
{east represented a 90% confidence level with a 10% confidence interval,

Table 3: EY Sampting Methodology (Sample Sizes)

roulton Tpeangsze  |oamplesze
STR- 3,019 30
LCT - 62,808 31
CDR - 123,800 31
Unsubstantiated Cases - 186 26
New PGF accounts - 478 60

For the testing period of Octaber 1, 2013 to July 31, 2015, the populaticn of PGF accounts was
identified al 478 across five different casinos that offer this service to their patrons. s 15(1)
coupled with the enhanced nature of

review associated with opening these accounts for patrons, an overall statistical sample of 60 PGF
accounts were selected, The number of PGF accounts selected at each property was judgmentally
selected given the proportion of the overall PGF accounis maintained at these locations. EY selected
30 accounts froms 15(1) . 16 accounts froms 15(1) , 5 accounts froms 15(1)

« 5 accounts froms 15{1) and 4 accounts froms 15(1) .

For the transaction monitoring and investigations assessment, EY judgmentally selected investigation
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reports that resulted in unsubstantiated findings, and $TR filings to capture both substantiated and
unsubstantiated reports of suspicious activity,

EY selected sampies of 26 unsubstantiated closed cases and 30 Substantiated cases that have
corresponding STR flled. In addition, EY selected sample of 31 LCT and 31 CDR to test and assess the
FINTRAC reporting function of BCLC. '

Procedures:
In executing this approach, EY performed the following steps:

1. Read documentation pertaining to BCLC's AML and sanctions compliance program including all
documentation that falis under FinTRAC guidelines for an effective compliance regime.

2, Held discussions with refevant BCLC and service provider personnel to obtain a further
understanding of the AML program, changes to monitoring systems procedures and processes and
day-to-day practices; personnel spoken to included compliance and operations teams as well as
senior executives at BCLC,

3. Performed walkthroughs of due diligence and reporting procedures such as those conducted for
PGF account openfng and the use of s 15(1) ands 15(1)  systems. EY met with relevant BCLC
personnel to understand the practical application of these process and systems. Walkthroughs
consisted of BCLC employees explaining or performing procedural tasks whilst an EY team member
observed.

4. Performed targeted testing, where deemed relevant, on a sample of data/reports; for example,
STR, LCT, CDR reports, unusual financial transactions, tinsubstantiated closed cases, and customer
due diligence fijes.

5. Tested BCLC AML training program and conflrm that alt BCLC employees and all relevant service
providers’ employees have attended this training at least once in the past 2 years.

6. Performed walkthroughs at sampled service provider properties to assess how AML specific
procedures and processes from BCLC's Casino and Community Gaming Centre Standards, Policles
and Procedures were being applied; personnel spoken to included service provider management
from cage, table games and surveillance operations and casine investigators from BCLC.

7. Recorded notes and observations from all execution steps performed. Where additional information
was needed for clarification, supplementary discussions and walkthroughs were held,

We have conducted our engagement to address the AML provisions of the PCMLTFA, compHance
requirements of FINTRAC and International sanctions compliance as related to BCLC's AML and
sanctions compliance program. We were not engaged to express, and do not express, an opinicn on
BCLC's compliance program. This assessment contalns our findings and observations concerning
BCLC's AML and sanctions program in accordance with the guidelines established by FINTRAC,
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5. Appendix A: Source Documentation

d.

Sub-Process: Oversight and Management

W

4,

Compliance officer resofution evidencing the approval of BCLC's current AML and sanctions
compliance programs

a. Overarching AML and sanctions policy
b. Customer Due Diligence (CDD) /Enhanced Due Diligence (EDD) procedures
¢. Transaction monitoring procedures
d. Regulatory report filing procedures (Large cash transactions, EFTs, STRs, etc.)
e, Terrorist list scanning and economic sanctions policy & procedures
f. Record keepfng/record retention policy & procedures
Current BCLC organizational charts (e.g,, Compliance, Front Office, Operations).

Coples of resumes or other acceptable documentation (e.qg., CVs, bios, profiles, etc.)
reflecting qualifications of the BCLC CAMLO and key individuals managing /
administering the BCLC AML / sanctions compliance programs.

Current BCLC AML [/ sanctions risk-assessments.
a. Listing of BCLC product(s) and/or service(s) offered,

Board/executive management meeting minutes specifically related to AML/Terrorist
Name List Scanning matters during the scope perlod.

A list, description and copies of reports presented to the Board, executive management
and/or senior compliance management related to BCL.C AML and sanctions compliance
activities.

Sub-pracess: Training

1.
2.

3.

4,
5,

6.

Written AML and sanctions training procedures {unless covered in the overarching policies).

List of BCLC training classes/sessions/events attended by the CAMLO and relevant Compliance
staff.

Results of training sesslons (e.g. attendance records, test scores) for AML and sanctions
employees for the scope period.

Copfes of AML and sanctions training materials used during the scope period.

BCL.C AML and sanctions employee roster for the scope perlod {please indicate which
employees are required to take AML and/or sanctions training, if applicable),

List of persons in key BCLC AML and sanctions roles and their positicns and titles for which
BCLC requires specific or additional AML training, other than firm-wide training.

15
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7. BCLC supplemental training materials for the scope period (e.q., e-mails, webcasts, required
reading) as refated to AML and sanctions, If applicable,

8. AML/Terrorism/sanctions BCLC training schedule with dates, attendees and topics for the
scope period,

c. Sub-process: Customer Due Diligence (CDD) and Enhanced Due Dillgence (EDD)

1. Customer risk rating methodology policies and procedures (Please note the date(s) approved
by the CAMLO, if appficable).

2. If separate from the AML Program request ahove, current BCLC CDD / EDD policies and
procedures (Please note the date approved by the CAMLO, if applicable)

d.

b.

Copiles of BCLC loyalty account (e.q, Encore Rewards) application/opening forms.

For sample selection purposes, a listing of BCLC customer relationships opened during the
scope period.

For sample selection purposes, a listing of BCLC high-risk customer relationships opened
during the scope period.

List of alt loyalty accounts in the name of or for the benefit of polltically exposed persons
(PEPs), politically exposed foreign persons {PEFPs), or of an immediate family member(s)
opened during the scope period.

BCLC PEP/PEFP acceptance policies and procedures, in addition to any PEP/PEFP forms or
documentation,

List of potential customers who were denled a loyalty account on the basis of their PIP/KYP
information during the scope period.

List of customers who were banned from having a relationship with BCLC due to money
faundering/terrorist financing risks or activities designated as suspicious.

List of any customer relationships established on an exceptional basis (e.q., not having met
the requisite CDD/EDD reguirements).

d. Sub-process: Transaction Monitoring and Suspicious Transaction Reporting (STRs)

1. If separate from the AML and sanctions program request above, current transaction
monitoring and suspicious transaction reporting policies and procedures (Please note the date
approved by the Compliance Officer, if applicable)

2. List of AML and sanctions transaction monitoring red flag detection scenarios {including
applicable parameters or thresholds) used to alert 8CLC to potentially suspicious activity
occurring during the scope period

i6
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3. Copies of reports used for the identification and monitering of potentially suspicious
transactions (may incfude, but not limited to: customer watch fist reports, investigative files,
suspiclous transaction reports (STRs) and other regulatory fifings

a, Suspicious transactions

i, For sample selection purposes, listings of all STRs that were flled during the
scope period, if applicable

b. Terrorist property

i, For sample selection purposes, listings of all potential Terrorist related activit
that was noted during the scope period, if applicable

¢. Large cash transactions

I. For sample selection purposes, listings of all large cash transactions involving
amounts of $10,000 or more received in cash during the scope period, if
applicable

d. Funds transfer

I For sample selection purposes, listings of all funds transfers (incoming and
outgoing) greater than $10,000 during the period scope period, if applicabie

e, Casino disbursements

i. For sample selection purposes, listings of alf casino disbursements involving
amounts of $10,000 or more received in cash during the scope period, if
applicable

f. Third party determination

i. For sample selection purposes, casino disbursements where the individual
receiving the disbursement was acting on behalf of a third party during the
scope period.

4, Management reports used to monitor PEFP account activity, including reports for identifying
unusual and suspicious activity during the scope period

e. Sub-process: Vendor Management

1. Current service level agreements with vendors, specifically focusing on AML / Terrorist
List Scanning Screening delegation and responsiblilities, if applicable

| f. Sub-process: Terrorist List Scanning Screening

1, List of BCLC blocked or rejected transactions with individuals or entities on Terrorist
List Scanning Screening [ist and any associated reports submitted to the agency

2. f maintained, BCLC logs or other documentation related to reviewing potential
Terrorist List Scanning matches, including the method for reviewing and clearing those
determined nof to be matches

Y
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3. Copy of the BCLC monthly report submitted to the responsible regulator{/ agency on
possession of terrorist property

Copies of the BCLC resuits of any internal/external audits, compliance tests or regulatory
examinations performed for Terrorist List Scanning Screening/Sanctions, including the scope
or engagement letter and management’s responses

4,

g. Sub-process: Recordkeeping

1.

Access to databases and/or lists contalning the following information during the scope
period for sample selection purposes (if not covered in previous sub-process sections):

&
b.

~ 2 g 0

R S

t.arge cash transaction records

Patron signature cards

Copies of casino disbursement reports
Deposit slips

Copies of official corporate records (including binding provisions)
Account holder information

Records regarding the extension of credit
Foreign exchange transaction tickets
Account operating agreements

Debit and credit memos

Copies of suspicious transaction reports

Records for the remittance or transmission of $1,000 or more and include
information with certain transfers

Records of the purpose and intended nature your business relationships

Records on the measures you take to monltor your business relationships and
the information you obtaln as a result of your monitoring

h. Miscellaneous

1.

Copies of the results of the most recent AML-related internal/external compliance
testing, internalfexternal audit and regulatory examinations, including the scope or
engagement letter and management's responses/action plans

2. AML record retention poticies, procedures and schedule

3. Validation reports of monitoring systems

18
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Executive Summary

Ernst & Young LLP {"EY" or "we") has completed an independent assessment of British Columbia
Lottery Corporation’s ("BCLC's") Anti-Money l.aundering ("AML") and sanctions compliance programs
against applicable reporting requirements outlined by the Financial Transactions and Reports Analysis
Centre of Canada ("FINTRAC"). Our engagement was performed in accordance with the scope agreed-
upon In our Staternent of Work (*SOW") dated August 11, 2015.

The Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act ("PCMLTFA") requires
reporting entities to undergo a comprehensive AML review bi-annually. The AML review must cover
BCLC's policies and procedures, assessment of risks related to money laundering and terrorist
financing and BCLC's training program to test their effectiveness. The assessment of risks related fo
money laundering and terrorist financing includes all the components of the risk-based approach,
where applicable, as explained in subsectlon 6 of the FINTRAC Guidelines, including risk assessment,
risk mitigation and ongolng monitoring. This assessment has included reading key documents (e.q.,
policles, procedures, risk assessments), conducting process walkthroughs and other inquiries, and
performing detailed, sample-based testing.

As agreed with BCLC, EY's assessment procedures focused on an evaluation of processes and controls
over pertinent AML and sanctions compliance-related functions, with particular emphasis on:

+ Resolution of Prior Audit Issues
« Appointment of a Chief Anti-Money Laundering Officer ("CAMLO")
s AML and Sanctions Risk Assessments
+ Compliance Policies and Procedures
s+ Employee Training
» Customer ldentification, Due Diligence and Enhanced Due Diligence (“EDD")
» Transaction Monitoring / Sanctions Screening
+  Alert Investigations
s Transaction Reporting
s Large Cash Transactions ("LCTs")
. _Suspicious Transaction Reports ("STRs™)
e Casino Disbursement Reports (“CDRs")

This report is Intended solely for the information and use of BCLC to support BCLC with its obligation to
comply with the effectiveness testing requirement stipulated by FINTRAC, as applicable. In executing
this assessment, EY has chosen key provisions from BCLC's written AML and sanctions policies and
procedures and tested for operational application, In completing the assessment, EY therefore
assumes no responsibility to any user of the report other than BCLC, Any other persons who choose to
refy on our report do so entirely at their own risk.
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We appreciate the cooperation and assistance provided to us during the course of our work. If you
have any questions, please calls 22

Yours sincerely,

St + LLP
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Summary of Observations

BCLC has devefoped, administered, and maintains an AML and sanctions compliance program that
incorporates the provisions of the PCMLTFA and compliance requirements as documented under
FinTRAC Guidelines and Interpretation Notices specific to casinos. BCLC has established three distinct
standards, procedures and policy manuals to address AML policy, internal policy and BCLC casino
policy. These protocols aliow BCLC to continuously keep the program aligned with legal and regulatory
requirements. BCLC has designated a CAMLO (Vice President of Corporate Security and Compliance)}
and established a system of AML/sanctions-related policies, procedures, and related internal controls,
including: implementing a BCLC employee and service provider AML/sanctions training program,
enrolled key personnel in continuing education and certification programs such as the certification for
Certified Anti-Money Laundering Specialist (“CAMS"), conducting risk-based due diligence on new and
exfsting patrons who establish business relationships with BCLC, and monitoring for potentially
suspicious transactions and behaviors.

Collectively, the VP of Corporate Security and Compliance and Director of AML & Operational Analysis
have several years of relevant experience and continue to stay abreast of emerging requlatory
reguirements by attending industry conferences and seminars, Additionally, BCLC utilizes commercial-
grade technology solutions to facilitate compliance with applicable regulatory requirements (e.q.,
FinScan for sanctions/PEP/negative news screening, JJilifor suspicious activity monitoring and
regulatory fllings and Is in the process of upgrading to |l software to improve automated
transaction tracking and monitoring). »

BCLC has also implemented measures to improve or strengthen its compliance program (based on
recommendations made {n prior audits), During the most recent FInTRAC examination, BCLC was
informed that the narratives as part of STR sections G and H were being truncated and as a result BCLC
launched an updated version o] in July 2014, BCLC wouid not have been privy to the truncation
error as the coding criteria applied would have needed to be vetted as an end user under FinTRAC in
order to assess the operating effectiveness of the software. BCLC has taken measures to apply
updates based on legislation changes such as Bill C-31 where updates tas 15(1) were Injtially
incorporated in February 2014,

BCLC has Implemented a quality controt process for reviewing cases for potential suspicious actlvity as
there are several casino investlgators across multiple properties providing information to the head
office, This has allowed BCLC to consistently apply an investigative approach when determining when
cases contaln substantiated or unsubstantiated suspliclous activity, BCLC also maintains policies that
are consistently applied across service providers for large currency transaction reports as all twenty-
four hour faciiities apply the same static ‘gaming day’ (7;00 AM to 7;00 AM the following day) which s
consistent with FInTRAC's Interpretation Notice regarding application of the twenty-four hour rule for
casino operations,
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EY has also identified areas where the Compliance Program could be improved. These include the
following items not required under FINTRAC Guldelines, but commensurate with industry leading
practices:

+ Formal approval by the Compliance Officer of key documents associated with BCLC's compliance
regime (risk assessment documentation and employee compliance training programs),

« Inclusion of background check and Initial due diligence screening documents in patron PGF flles
upon establishing a business relationship with BCLC as defined by FInTRAC.

+ Consistency in the use of PGF account review sheets at RiverRock Casino.

« Deveiopment written policies and procedures to reflect the current practices BCLC takes regarding

o Prioritize completing IIREEEEERERN scarch from July 2015 to date to address backlog for
patrons with established relationships.

» Update risk assessment to reflect current risk assoclated with geographic locations per BCLC

internal policies and procedures.

Qur scope, approach and results are outlined in Sections 3 and 4 of this report. It is management's
responsibility to evaluate and implement the recommendations noted.

Scope and Approach

EY's onsite fieldwork was conducted from August 24, 2015 through September 24, 2015, Throughout
the duration of its assessment, BCLC provided EY with access to all files, documents, data, and
information requested as noted in Appendix A,

EY's methodology and procedures consisted of an assessment of BCLC's AML and sanctions
compliance programs in accordance with the reporting requirements outlined by FINTRAC, EY
assessed all the documents provided by BCLC including, but not limited to, the Anti-Money Laundering
and Anti-Terrorist Financing Compliance Manual, the Casino and Community Gaming Centre Standards,
Policies and Procedures and Internal Casino and Gaming Centre Standards, Polices and Procedures. In
addition, EY was provided access to the Board of Directors minutes from meetings during the scope
period, the BCLC AML team’s gualifications and copies of the AML training programs provided to BCLC
and service provider employees, We considered the issues and recommendations made in prior
FINTRAC audlts, the roles of the deslgnated compliance officer {e.g., CAMLO), risk assessments
performed, patron recordkeeping information, policies and customer's relationship acceptance policies

for patron gaming fund ("PGF") accounts, JNNMERA R
N - | coulatory filings for large cash transactions and

casino disbursements and reporting of suspicious transaction activity.

Our assessment approach followed the FINTRAC Guidelines for casinos. EY analyzed relevant
documents (e.g. policies & procedures), conducted interviews (refer to Table land Table 2 for an
ikustrative list of key BCLC and service providers personnef interviewed), performed process
walkthroughs at both corporate and selected service provider locations and conducted sample-based
testing.
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Table 1: BCLC Head Omce Personnel Interviewad
BCLC Representative ..~ |-Position . T e

s 15(1) 522 VP of Casinos and COmmumty Gammg

[ VP of Corporate Security and Compliance

Director of AML & Operational Analysis

Manager of Cash Alternatives & Speclal Projects
AML Speciafist

Intelligence Analyst for AML & Operational Analytics
Sr, Technlcal Analyst, Gaming Facilities Support
Assistant Manager, Casino Security & Survelllance
Policy Analyst, Information Privacy & Security

Compliance and Trend Analyst

Table 2 Service Prov!der Personnellon site BCLC Casino !nvesthators

Property Name b

Interview Name and Title

Grand Villa Casino '

s 15(1), s 22 (Casino Investhator)

Grand Villa Casino

s 15(1), s 22(Cage Supervisor)

Grand Villa Casino

s 15(1h s 22(Shift Manager,

Grand Villa Casino

s 15(1), s 22 (Surveiflance Supervisor)

Starlight Casino

s 15{1), 8 22(Casino Investigator)

Starlight Casino

s 15(1), s 22(Cage Supervisor)

Starlight Casino

s15(1},s22  (Casino Shift Manager)

Starlight Casino

s 15(1), s 22(Surveillance Manager)

RiverRock Casino

s 15({1), s 22(Casino Investigator)

RiverRock Casino

8 15(1), s 22 (Cage Shift Manager)

RiverRock Casino

s 15(1), s 22 (Floor Gaming Manager)

RiverRock Casino

s 15(1), 822  (Surveillance Shift Manager)

Edgewater Caslno

s 15(1), s 22 (Casino Investigator)

Edgewater Casino

s 15(1), 822 ' (Surveillance Manager)

Edgewater Casino

§15(1), 8§22 (Cage Manager)

Edgewater Casino

s 15(1), s 22 (Director of Cage Operations)

Edgewater Casino

s 15t s 22¢Casino Shift Manager)

Hard Rock Casine

s 15(1),822  (Casino investigator)
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Sampling Methodology and Sample Selection:

EY's sampling methodology was used to select samples of regulatory reports and investigation files for
testing. EY considered the following factors in setecting our samples: population size, risk, and
complexity and criticality of the processes being tested. EY's sampling methodology uses a variety of
techniques, including professional judgment.

Judgmental or risk-based sampling uses the judgment of the assessment team as a basis to select the
sample. Judgment can be based on risk, information obtained from previous regulatory examination
reports, prior audit reports or other facts learned during the course of the assessment.

EY utilized judgmental sampling techniques to focus its testing on high risk patrons as identified by
BCLC. Samples were also further stratified to include a representation of all new PGF accounts, all
STR, CDR and LCT fited and all unsubstantiated cases during the audit period. The selected files and.
transactions represented activity that occurred within the audit period of October 1%, 2013 to July
31%, 2015, The sample sizes were selected to achieve a 90% confidence level hased on controf.
frequency.

When determining the sample size, EY considered the leve! of risk and the population size. Both of
these components are important In the sample selection process, Perthe £Y méthodo!ogy, thereis a
statistical basis for the sample sizes articulated in Table 3 below. EY elected to foliow a sample that at
least represented a 90% confidence level with a 10% confidence interval.

Table 3: EY Sampiing Methodology (Sample Sizes)

population Typeandsize . |samplesize
STR - 3,019 30
LCT ~ 62,808 31
CDR -123,800 31
Unsubstantiated Cases - 186 26
New PGF accounts - 478 60

For the testing period of October 1, 2013 to July 31, 2015, the population of PGF accounts was
identified at 478 across five different casinos that offer this service to their patrons. |GG
coupled with the enhanced nature of
review associated with opening these accounts for patrons, an overall statistical sample of 60 PGF
accounts were selected. The number of PGF accounts selected at each property was judgmentally
selected given the proportion of the overali PGF accounts maintained at these locations. EY selected

30 accounts from S 16 accounts from TN S 2ccounts from NN
. 5 accounts from | and 4 accounts from N -

For the transaction monitoring and investigations assessment, EY judgmentally selected investigation
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reports that resulted in unsubstantiated findings, and STR filings to capture both substantiated and
unsubstantiated reports of suspicious activity.

EY selected samples of 26 unsubstantiated closed cases and 30 Substantiated cases that have
corresponding STR filed. In addition, EY selected sample of 31 LCT and 31 CDR to test and assess the
FINTRAC reporting function of BCLC,

Procedures:
In executing this approach, EY performed the following steps:

1. Read documentation pertaining to BCLC's AML and sanctions compliance program including all
documentation that falls under FinTRAC guidelines for an effective compliance regime.

2. Held discussions with relevant BCLC and service provider personnel to obtain a further
understanding of the AML program, changes to monltoring systems procedures and processes and
day-to-day practices; personnel spoken to included compliance and operations teams as well as
senior executives at BCLC.

3. Performed walkthroughs of due diligence and reporting procedures such as those conducted for
PGF account opening and the use ofs 15(1) ands 15{1) systems. EY met with relevant BCLC
personnel to understand the practical application of these process and systems, Walkthroughs
consisted of BCLC employees explaining or performing procedural tasks whilst an EY team member
observed.

4, Performed targeted testing, where deemed relevant, on a sample of data/reports; for example,
STR, LCT, CDR reports, unusual financial transactions, Unsubstantiated closed cases, and customer
due diligence files.

5, Tested BCLC AML training program and confirm that all BCLC employees and all relevant service
providers' employees have attended this training at least once in the past 2 years.

6, Performed walkthroughs at sampled service provider properties to assess how AML specific
procedures and processes from BCLC's Casino and Community Gaming Centre Standards, Policies
and Procedures were being applied; personnel spoken to Inciuded service provider management
from cage, table games and surveillance operations and casino investigators from BCL.C.

7. Recorded notes and observations from all execution steps performed. Where additional information
was needed for clarification, supplementary discussions and walkthroughs were held,

We have conducted our engagement to address the AML provisions of the PCMLTFA, compliance
reguirements of FInTRAC and international sanctions compliance as related to BCLC's AML and
sanctions compliance program. We were not engaged to express, and do not express, an opinion on
BCLC s compllance program. This assessment contains our findings and observations concerning
BCLC's AML and sanctions program in accordance with the guidelines established by FINTRAC,
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5.  Appendix A: Source Documentation
a. Sub-Process: Qversight and Management

Compliance officer resolution evidencing the approval of BCLC's current AML and sanctions
compliance programs

a. Overarching AML and sanctions policy

b. Customer Due Diligence (CDD) /Enhanced Due Difigence (EDD} procedures
Transaction monitoring procedures

Reguiatory report filing procedures (Large cash transactions, EFTs, STRs, etc.)

®» a o

Terrorist ilst scanning and economic sanctions policy & procedures
f. Record keeping/record retention policy & procedures
Current BCLC organizationai charts (e.g., Compliance, Front Office, Operations).

Copies of resumes or other acceptable documentation (e.g., CVs, bios, profiles, etc.)
reflecting qualifications of the BCLC CAMLO and key individuais managing /
administering the BCLC AML. / sanctions compliance programs.

4, Current BCLC AML / sanctions risk-assessments.
a. Listing of BCLC product(s) and/or service(s) offered.

5. Board/executive management meeting minutes specifically refated to AML/Terrorist
Name List Scanning matters during the scope period.

6. A list, description and copies of reports presented to the Board, executlve management
-and/or senior compliance management related to BCLC AML and sanctlons compliance

activities.
b. Sub-process: Training

1. Written AML and sanctions tralning procedures (unless covered in the overarching policies).

2. List of BCLC tralning classes/sessions/events attended by the CAMLO and relevant Compliance
staff,

3. Results of training sessions (e.q, attendance records, test scores) for AML and sanctions
employees for the scope period.

4, Coples of AML and sanctions training materials used during the scope period.

5. BCLC AML and sanctions employee roster for the scope period (please indicate which
employees are required to take AML and/or sanctions training, if applicable).

6. List of persons in key BCLC AML and sanctions roles and their positions and titles for which
BCLC requires specific or additional AML training, other than firm-wide training,

i5
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7.

8.

BCLC supplemental training materials for the scope period (e.g., e-malls, wehcasts, required
reading) as related to AML and sanctions, if applicable.

AML/Terrorlsm/sanctions BCLC training schedule with dates, attendees and topics for the
scope period.

¢. Sub-process: Customer Due Diligence (CDD) and Enhanced Due Diligence (EDD)

1,

2.

Customer risk rating methodology policies and procedures (Please note the date(s) approved
by the CAMLO, if applicable).

If separate from the AML Program request above, current BCLC CDD / EDD policies and
procedures (Please note the date approved by the CAMLO, If applicable)

a. Copies of BCLC lovalty account (e.q. Encore Rewards) application/opening forms,

h. For sample selection purposes;, a listing of BCLC customer relationships opened during the
scope period.

¢.  For sample selection purposes, & listing of BCLC high-risk customer retationships opened
during the scope period.,

d. List of all loyalty accounts in the name of or for the beneflt of politically exposed persons
(PEPSs), politically exposed foreign persons (PEFPs), or of an immediate family member(s)
opened during the scope period.

e, BCLC PEP/PEFP acceptance policies and procedures, in addition to any PEP/PEFP forms or
documentation. ‘

f. List of potential customers who were denied a loyalty account on the basis of thelr PIP/KYP
information during the scope period.

g. List of customers who were banned from having a retationship with BCL.C due to money
laundering/terrorist financing risks or activities designated as suspicious.

h. List of any customer relationships established on an exceptional basis (e.g., not having met
the requisite CDD/EDD requirements),

d. Sub-process: Transaction Monitoring and Suspicious Transaction Reporting (STRs)

tf separate from the AML and sanctions program request above, current transaction
monitoring and suspicious transaction reporting policles and procedures (Please note the date
approved by the Compliance Qfficer, if applicable)

List of AML and sanctions transaction monitoring red flag detection scenarios (including
applicable parameters or threshalds) used to alert BCLC to potentially suspicious activity
occurring during the scope period
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3, Copies of reports used for the identification and monitoring of potentially suspiclous
transactions (may include, but not limited to: customer watch list reports, investigative files,
suspicious transaction reports (STRs) and other regulatory filings

a. Suspicious transactions

i, For sample selection purposes, listings of all STRs that were flled during the
scope period, if applicable

b. Terrorist property

i. For sample selection purposes, listings of &ll potential Terrorist related activit
that was noted during the scope period, if applicable

c. Large cash transactions

I, For sample selection purposes, listings of all large cash transactions involving
amounts of $10,000 or more received in cash during the scope period, if
applicable

d. Funds transfer

i. For sample selection purposes, listings of all funds transfers (incoming and
outgoing) greater than $10,000 during the period scope period, if applicable

e. Casino disbursements

i, For sample sefection purposes, listings of all casino dishursements involving
amounts of $10,000 or more received in cash during the scope period, If
applicable

f. Third party determination

i. For sample selection purposes, casino disbursements where the Individual
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

e, Sub-process: Vendor Management

1. Current service level agreements with vendors, specifically focusing on AML / Terrorist
List Scanning Screening delegation and responsibifities, if applicable

f. Sub-process: Terrorist List Scanning Screening

1. List of BCLC blaocked or rejected transactions with individuals or entities on Terrorist
List Scanning Screening list and any assoclated reports submitted to the agency

2. if maintained, BCLC logs or other documentation related to reviewing potential
Terrorist List Scanning matches, including the method for reviewing and clearing those
determined not to be matches

Y
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3.

Copy of the BCLC monthly report submitted to the responsible regulatory agency on
possession of terrorist property

Copies of the BCLC results of any internal/external audits, compliance tests or regulatory
examinations performed for Terrorist List Scanning Screening/Sanctlons, including the scope
or engagement letier and management’s responses

g. Sub-process: Recordkeeping

1.

Access to databases and/or lists containing the following Information during the scope
period for sample selection purposes (if not covered in previous sub-process sections):

a. Large cash transaction records
b. Patron signature cards

Copies of casino disbursement reports

DeposiH slips

Copies of offictal corporate records (including binding provisions)

~ oo 0

Account holder information

Records regarding the extension of credit

7 oa

Foreign exchange transaction tickets

Account operating agreements
J. Debit and credit memos
k., Copies of suspicious transaction reports

.  Records for the remittance or transmission of $1,000 or more and include
information with certain fransfers

m. Records of the purpose and intended nature your business relationships

n. Records on the measures you take to monitor your business relationships and
the information you obtain as a result of your monitoring

h. Miscellanecus

1.

Copies of the results of the most recent AML-related internal/external compliance
testing, internal/external audit and requlatory examinations, inciuding the scope or
engagement letter and management’s responses/action plans

AML record retention policies, procedures and schedule

Valldation reports of monitoring systems
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Kevin Simcoe

L - L
From: Jim D. Lightbody
Sent: - September-21-17 2:55 PM
To: George.Smith@gov.bc.ca
Cc Rob Kroeker; Susan Dolinski
Subject: FW: AML Release
Attachments; MNP Report - redacted + BCLC redactions.pdf; MNP Audit_BCLC Response Plan 2016

_Redacted.pdf: Fintrac AML Review 2016_tetter to BCLC 2016.pdf; EY Report_Bi Annual Audit
2015_AML Sanctions Program Assessment of BCLC_112315_FINAL Redacted.pdf

Importance: High

George;

As per your request, here is what we sent Richard this morning.
Jim

From: Rob Kroeker

Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2017 11:17 AM

To: Richard.Fyfe@gov.bc.ca

Ce: Jim D. Lightbody <iDLightbody@bclc.com>; Bud Smith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca>; Susan Dolinski <5Dolinski@BCLC.com>

Subject: AML Release
Importance: High

Hello Richard

Please find attached the MNP report with our requested redactions. | have also attached the BCLC response plan to that
report which was developed and completed-in 2016, | have attached copies of the EY Audit and Fintrac Review of our program
that occurred around the same time as the MNP audit. These fatter two documents have also been vetted for release.

With respect to the Fintrac review, the deficiency noted in relation to training has heen fully addressed with the introduction
of an entirely new AML course this year. Similarly, a formal response plan was developed in regard to the EY findings and all
have been addressed.

It may also be useful to note that EY has been at BCLC over the last 4 weeks conducting the biennial legislatively required
independent review of the BCLC AML program. The results of that review wiil be available in the middle of next month. This
will be the second comprehensive review conducted on the BCLC program since the MNP audit was completed {Fintrac audit in
Junhe 2016, and now the EY Audit August 2017).

With respect to our requested redactions on the MNP audit we offer the following analysis and rationale. The information
identified for redaction qualifies for exceptions to disclosure under sections 13(1) and 15(1) of FIPPA for the following reasons.

s 13(1)



s 13(1)

In our view the disclosure of the information sought to be redacted would create an unacceptable risk to law enforcement as
set out above and ultimate wouid undermine BCLC's AML Program,

May | please impose upon you to confirm receipt of this note so that we have confirmation the e-mail got through without
difficulty. Additionally, we would very much appreciate a copy of the version of the MNP report, and all other documentation,
that is ultimately released so that we may be informed and prepared to provide any responses or additional information
needed,

Regards,

Rob Kroeker
Vice President | Corporate Securlty & Compliance
British Columbla Lottery Corporation

2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver BC V5M 0AG
T604,228.3077 | Ms 17(1) | F604.225.6488

Connect with us:
Twitter @BCLC| Facebook BCCasinos | Blog | belc.com

Last year, more than 51 blilion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health care, education and community groups across
B.C.



Responsible
organization

Section

Recommendation

Status

Response Plan

GPEB

42

Should consider Implementing a policy
raquiremant thet Sarvice Providors

s 13(1)

Sutssctons 9.5{1) and £2) of tha Piocatds of Crime (Money Laundering) &nd Teriorst Flnanclng Act, as
well e FINTRAG GuldeTne 4, section 8 and FinTRAC's Guldance on the Risk-Based Approach ta
Gombating hlonsy Lavrdedng snd Tomlerdst Financlng, requlte BCLC o Iaplemenl & tisk-bassd
cormpiianca reglme. A dirsctive [ssusd under tha previnclal Gaming Control Ack o BCLC of senlca
pioulders sequidng a prescrpive compllance approach In the form rec ded fiste may give ilse fo
a direcl conCiet of laws as batwaen fedaral and provincial requlrements. A dlreclive of thls nature covld
resull In confusion fo sesvica provided statl as betwsan provindel and federal requiromentss 131)

58

Define lis accopted lovel of tisk for
unsaureed cash exd $hen devalop clear
1oles and responsitiites for.

GPEB — Reguistor, Enforcement

BCLC —Manzge paming and reporiing
ently

Service Provider—Risk ldentifcatlon

As por 4.2 abova  GPEB lo davelop tesponso.

535

Al the direetion of Tho Minfster
tesponsidle for gaming, consldag 13(1)

As per 4.2 sbove

5.52

Sourca of funds can only bo vedfied by
oblalning dacumenlation for the
withdrawal of cash from a inanclal
instutlon or enlily covered undar o
PCHLTFA.

As pet 4.2 ebove, GPER ia develsp response.

5.74

A diracEva from GPEB may also suppard
BCLC1n craabng a poafiey which would
mandata the Sanvico Pravidar lo decing
A hiensacion whan mandalary
occopallon dalals no rovided by the
pation.

BCGLG potoy elieady exlsts discting Service Proyldsts 1o sfop and refuse tiansections where a cusiomar]
does nol provided required kKlentification.

43

588

“Tha evlew of propased eash alernative
sohrtians, Including credit, and the
Impacl of these sokutens should romaln
a priority for both GPEB and BCLC.
Cysh alterpatives o'low Sence
Providars o raceiye funds,

than'ng the ovaral p
regime wilh minimal lmpect on revenue

{BCLC hes complaled work on parmiting Inlernabonal siectronio funds ransfers and doimitng reten of
funds cheques. Thess changes have been Implemented. 5 1 3(1 )

Bl

5.56

Tepanding on GPEB T Mialster's fsk
tolerance for large ungouiced cash
transactions, roviee poicies ragarnding
tojerance of high sk play and
consequences of unacceptable high sk
ackvily

BCLC vl awalt GPED's anelysis of INs recomenendation.

43

Gong'det vhisther s sk sssessment
procass sdegualely sellacts carrand
thinking srovad monsy laundsrdng and
temodst Anancng fsk. The 1lsks
assoctated 1o specife oeilities shovid
bo eyeluated, rather than slmply drawing
geographle haundares for risk,

BCLC has soviened lls dsk L BCLO's fisk ! takas Inle eccount geographlc ek
{olemenls. Tha risk assessment looks at bolh sk by raglon within the province snd sile specific dsks
wiin sach reglon, Inciuding Asks such as focal crime rates in end szound geming ses, InJune 2616
ECLC's jisk essossmani was lhe subjoct of an Indeplh FINTRAC Compiance Revlew and vas found {o
ba fully In compEance vdth (he PGML)TFA. Moreovel, during tha exit Interview phasa of the Cemglance
Review, FINTRAG Indlcsled that BCLG's fisk assessmant was one of the most robusiin the industry.

548

549

Rathar than base a facllijes rlsk
assessment by zeglon, rlsk sssessmanis
shouldinctude factoss specife lo the
Jacifity. Conslder If $ho slsk reglstar
reffecls lhe current envlionmesnt as ills
not 85 granwlar a5 ciher Judsdicdons
reviswead by MNP,

BGLG hes 1evlevad lts risk 4% E 861G sk ) takas Inle account geographles dtsk
olernents. The sk essessment Jooks ei both sk by reg'sn within tha provinee end sTa specific fisks
wiln each regian, Including risks such a5 local crdme rates In 2nd 2round gaming slies. In Juns 2016
1BCLO's %35k sssasamont was the subject of an Indapth FIRTRAC Complzanca Review snd was found lo
ba fully In esmpianca with Lhe PCASL)TFA. K , during 1he exit I few phase ol the Tomp ]
Revlew, FinTRAC Indcated that BCLC's Hsk assessmentwas one of the mest robustIn the Industry.

[QEERS A1

57

Caonsldar devoelaplng new cash
alteraulive progroms and products that
include:

BCLC has baen developlng ard{rlreducing new cash alernetivo peymant oplons since 2012, Ai he
tima of he KNP tevlew two cesh e'tematives sai with GPEB for approval. GPEB have since stated thelr ]
{2ppioval [s hol tequired as thase are oparafonal gaming makters falkng oulslde of thelr mandate. The
ter naw cash alternative paymant opliens have nes baan Implamented,

LILINEL SR

The etliity of non-Canadian players te
fund PGF aecounls and repey credit I
subjest to cash restdstions Ja Ihetr home:
cobnlry {Le. Chlna), and

Inteinatlonst EFT snd wiia translars wese in the process of development prior 1o the $me of his review.

That wirk Is complete and Internatonal EFTs hove baen impiemented. 5 13(1) oty

allosating how defaulis on repayment
vl be dete:mined {ie, betwasn BOLG
and service provider,

Credit has baen evalualed and is presenlly not approvad by GPEH and thus [s not curienily proposed by :
BCLG In the shorl ferm




Responsible

organization

BCLG

BCLC

Suctlon

45

Recommendatien

H GFEB implements a pollcy regarding
the refusat of lexge o1 frequent
unseurced cash deposils, BOLS's
procedures to eddress the polcy shouid
|ncheda 1elresher Lralning to Servies
Providers parialning lo BCLGs reponlng

quirements o

Status

Responsa Pl

BCLC wil swalt clisclion from GPEBMYinisier. BCLG noles, subsactons 9.6{1) 2nd (2) of lha Procesds.
of Crime (doney Laundering) end Temrods Finencing Act, s well as FIn¥RAG Guidelno 4, saction §
and FINTRAG's Guidance on lhe Risk-Based Approach {o Gombatéing Moasy Laundarng and Terdorst
Flnancdrg, require BGLG fo Implarnant B fisk-based compfancs tepms, A dliective kssusd under the
prevlaelal Gaming Canlrol Actia BCLG of soavice providers requising a presciiptive conpiance
approgch In the [oim racommandsd hare mey ghva Ksa to & ditac) confict of laws es bebiian federe!
end provincle! requirements. BCLG would naed clarificetion fromihe federal regulator end pravinclat

lo ensura raports are e,, priately
Mdentiied.

1ator s to which raqul twas {0 ba glvan paramouncy. neial regidremants are not egned with |
or conlc with fedaral fa,

4.1

547

FaclFly stall should be requlady tralned
oh Ehe coplelion of tha farms used fot
raporirg, Including UFT rapoiting.

Senle Provider stall recelve Intel AML Iraining prior lo commiencing dutiss and sfso redave parlodic
refresher bzin'ng. [n June 2013 FINTRAG completed & comprehensive raview of BCLC UFT end STH J)
rapoiling procosses Inciuding that of RRGR and faund BCLG to ke Tu'ly comgdianl with POMLYFA. UFT
1s un intema! Industiy tepoiling precess for 8P to tepoit bassactions fo BOLG for review,

412

should ba evslueted for up-to-dals
centenl and effactivaness,

An¥ monay faunderng tralning pregrams|

BCLC reviews end updates i's AML Uralning on a pedodle beslts end whenever requirements under the
PLCOALITEA ate amanded, In Juns 2058 FINTRAC complaled a compiohansive zevisw of BCEG's AWML
regime, BOLG hes undariaken r full tevlew, leking Into eecount puidanco from FINTRAC,
Enhantements lo BSLG's AWML ireinlng piogram will be In place In 2017,

442

555

Trainlng should be providadin lhe
primary langtrage of tha cand'dale,
parficalary for ils high risk sxposed
employens {lhose working In high-fmil
rooms).

BOLEC has revlewed ths rscommeandation. Federel Anli-monsy laundering laws and FInTRAC
Guideunce snd direclives sro pravlded only In Cenada’s oificiel languages: French and Engish.
Compllarka revisws and avdits sonducted by FinTRAG [n B.C, a8 corducled ia Engish only, Hationaliy o
1ecognizad accaunting fims, which ceporing entitles under the PCMLITFA teply upon te conduct
stetulodly mandaled blenlatindependent compfanca sevlews, offer servicas onlfy fn Enplish o Frenth,
Prascribed reporing i FINTRAC under the PC{EL)IFA and under the Criminal Cede may only be
conducled in Engiish or French, For security relatad s6asens casina operaions and sll kanseclions nnd
commynicalions betwean geming stafl end customers ato roquired to bo copdueled In EpgFsh anty In
BG casinos, BCLC's service provldels emeloyen mote than 5800 slaif reflecbng @ bioad reage of
nationafties #nd languages ¢lher then EnpFsh or French, Gonducting AML treining In miyred languages
Lhal ara ot vsad In sihar casno operetions of AL compiiance audits and rovlews would Inltoduce a
substanfial isk of conlusing and misundesstood communications potantialiy leading te complance gaps t
and arofs, G‘van lha Hsk of jeperiing enors and other complence gaps Implamenting this !
d fntroduce, BCLC Wil not pussue tha recommendation fodhar,

4.44

The KYP framewotk st RRCR s a fasi.
driven compllance activity ralhe? than a
risk managemanl activity. Provide

BOLC fas tevienwed ils customar dua diBgence procass In Bphloihls secommandalon, the
tegulrernenls urder tha PC{MLITFA end FInTRAG Guidancs oh XYC requlternants, n eddition, BCLC
has consulted wih s\fisr casines and reporling enfiles on appropdats KYC measures, BCLCs COD and

LR RERS T

fuither guld, s the ger end
responsible enlity For AML regulatory
obxalons o anhancs and enfosce
appropials KYP measuiss.

RYC maol all requl In addition, In June 2018 FInTRAC conductad a comptahensive
tevlew of BCLC's entire AML program. The ARTRAC 1eviewisvolsed sila vislls 1o RRCR 2nd a number
o1 RRCR stall Inlenviews lo lestits COD and KYC procasses. FINTRAC found BS1.C's peogram to be
Tully commplant,

.54

Addiional fraining for employees Inthe
ViP aros locused spadhicatly an
susplelsus indieators and raquired
actions la Impraye Indapeaden th'nking.

BGOLGC revlgas and updatas ts AL lralning on a pedodic basis and whensver requireraents urder the
PCMLTFA are smanded. [ Juna 2016 FINTRAC complated a comprahensive ravlaw of BELCs AML §
regima. BCLC has undaitaken a full review, taking Ino account puidance from FINTRAC.
Enh 1 fo BOLG'S AML raly'ng progiarmy will bs |n placa Th 2017,

EEE LTS

Enhance the CDD precesses from bolh
a fisk mznagement and revanus
pensreien petspaclive wilh

medifications and edditional resources
lo mast ECD expecialons fof Righ sk
palrans.

BGLG has raviewed [is custamar dus d¥ganca piocess InTight of 1hls recormmandation, tha
raquiremenls undet the PCQIL)TFA and FIRTRAG Guldance on KY'C requiraments. In addiion, BOLG
has consulied with elher casinos and g enlites on appropwiale KYC BCLC's CDD and §
KYO maasures mesl all requiremants. In addifon, In June 2018 FINTRAG conducled a comprehensive
raviaw of 8CLC's entire AbL progrem. The FInTRAC review Invakved site visils 1o RRCR end a number
of RRCR staif intarviaws Lo 1estits COD end KYC piocosses. FINTRAC fouad BCLC's progrem 1o be
fully earipianl,

49

5.83

Revie# s EDD process 1o ensite the
data collactad and Information glesned
provides a clearplelure of the fsks end
profife of ha patron Jor sk assessmenl

and mitigation.

BCLC has revlowedlls customar dus diEgence process (o Fight of this recommandation, he

raquliements under the PCAAUTPA and EINTRAC Guidancs on KYC requltemants. In addifon, BCLC
hes consulted with other caslnos and separting entles on approprizte KYC moasures, BCLO® COD |
KYC measures maet 8 requirements, in eddlten, fn Juns 2046 FInTRAC conducted a comprehensiva
revlew ol BCLCS enlite AML program, Tho FINTRAC review [nivoived slie visits to RRCR and 2 numbsr |
of RRCR efalf nferviews to tast ks CDD and KYG plocesses. FInTRAG found BOLG's program to be

fully compliant.

EURFOT

519

EOD msasures could ba tmata
qualtakye, and & formal respence to
spaciiied sk 1stings cauld ba crested,

_{fully compllant

BCLC hes roviewsd its customer due d Egence piocess In ghl of (s recommandsation, the
requilerrents under e PCIMLYTFA snd FInTRAC Guidante on KYC regultements, Jnaddifon, BCLC
has consulled with elhsl casinos and reporting entitss on apptopriale KYG measurss, BCLC's CDD and
KYC messures maal al requiramants. In addion, In Jupe 2018 FINTRAC conductod a compiehensiva
ioylew of BCLC's entlte AL program. Tha FINTRAC review involvad sTte viils 30 RRCR and & numbar
5! RRCA stalfInlarvievs lo lest liz CDD and KYC procassas, FINTRAC found BELG's program (o be

5.18

4.1

524
528
529

Outsovrcing the EDD procass for higher
ris¥ pabons should bo consklered to
closr the cuvent baeklog.

PAwzitiza and pppropiiately resourca lhe
angeing 15{1) Implamantation prolact
(schadula for toli ouk bn (el 6l 2016) 10
Implove tha quakly of the dala sed fo:

fongoing sk essessmen and

cornpiance montloring 2nd rapoeriing.

Any backlog obsapved by INs joviewwas a terrporery clicumstance arsing fiom an undeneporting
I$5up ditcovered by HOLG al the River Rock facilly Oclabar 2015, Addtonal BGLG slatf were
reassigned lo ssslst the AME ualt with Lha undat taptorting [ssue so that normal fransaction meriloring
cou'd continue lo ba carrded out white the undanepoading lssue was eddressed conlsmporeneousty. The ||
reviswer wes mada awaco of thesa chieumslances at the 3me of s work. Any backleg dhat may heve
baen observed was ransiory In natuse. Moreover, tha Ing of coro AML. would
unnacessanly Inlroduca a iigher lovel of RsXinlo the AME pogram and [ncreass the chanca of srer
resuifng In ron-compiance,

BGCLG continuas with the ptocess to aulemats aspects of its AWML progeam o provide giseter slficlency
anhd enhanced Yanseclion monilodng capablities. BCLC pursues a "centinuous Impzovement” |
philosophy wilh respest 4o its AWML program and conBaually sseks ta &rptove and enhaace s efferls ancfl
patfermarce, .




Responslble
organizatlon

BCLG

Sectlon

4.1

Recommendation

Ensurs hat reporing forms used by the
faclites ere up |o date and Inchuda
valuabis informallon fiekds Tor mandatary
completion for unsotrced orhigh
voluma cash iansacdans such s
source of funds, Souice of weath and
puipsse and intanded naturs of
talallonship Infarmation.

Response Plan

reviaw of BCLC's enlire AML program end found no [ssuss wilk ransaction teperfing o7 record keaplng
raquiraments,

BCLC reviewnd Us forms In Eghl ol 1h'e racommendation. In June FINTRAC cenducted 2 comprehensive

it

413

MNP idenUfied Instances whele non-
cash transeclons processed lo RRCR's
PGFs weie overraporied lo FINTRAC,

Jl}s BCLC's underslanding that it Is ned poscible to succesefully submit en LOT Inte the BCLC -
FINTRAC Enked systams wiih & detlgnaled mardalory FeXd teft lank. Such e repor woukd be rejecled
Ly tha FinTRAC system and Kaggad for Immedlate followup and remedlation, BCLG suspecis thel this
snomalous Andng may be zelated o the raviewars ualqua methodology whesa I worked In a sefect deta
exiratllen fiom BCLC's dalabase relhes ihan the sofual pioducten datsbate. This a procass thalhas
nevet baen aflempled bafare end devlafes from standecd audit practes where audilors work dveclly fa
the producTon dztabase which removes tha dsk of these dypes of sirors, BCLC has teviswsd tha dsta

ion =5 & reaed of INs findlng und compared It to {he preducton data. Jtappaars that durng the

ard Insd where y fialdsIn

L.CTRs wats faft blank. Bothlssues ara
contrary to the PCRLTFA end tequite
ramediation #nd disclosuite o FINTRAC,

process seme data fields did aot populala into Lhe exliacton sempia in soms Hlmited:
Inslances. [nalher words BCLG, whan werking directy fn fhe production data es oppossd 10 a select
laxiraction oltha dala, cannol find the LGT errors refaired lo here, BCLE suggesled the revlawarie-run
thelr enalysis in the preduction dalabase or provide lhe suspect reperls to FInTRAG direcliy for
varicallon that mendatory flelds were completed as required when the foim vas submitled. The
1aviewer dectinad the appariunity 1o [ske efthar of thase slops and comect whal eppaar 1o srreneous
findlngs. Upon raviesing tha actus! production dala BCLC is cenfident Lhe exceptions teported hera did
nolin fact accur.

6.27

Dus digente on faiga vofumes of sot
GCesh Bfsbunemant Reporis {COR)
should bs monilored for suspldous

BLLC Implementar processes In 2046 (o 1evisw slot play based on COR davals end I Is currently buitt
In%o the AML program. This Is on {op of cunent dua dilgenca practices which FINTRAGC foundlo ba
plan! fn Jure 2010,

aclivily.

6948

5.32

Reulew el of tha FINTRAG tapertng
(LCTR/COR) for ion-gash fer sl
fasftles which offer PGF accounts
should be dene Enmediatsly to stop
unnecessary and Incorrock raporls.

As per £.13 BCLC [dentfled the POF Issue In Nov 2016 and engaged FInTRAG for guldanca as this
raposing pratiica hed besn In pPace since 2012. On witten confimation from FInTRAG BCLC ceased
this practice In July 2018. BGLG have fequested guidancs from FINTRAC on &1 naw Gash altemetives
and reporting obi'galians.

5.44

Transaction {JFT)} teparls for service
providers 1o use e ensura thet all

Greata a templsta for Efausiiat Fineacia) 1BOLG hes reviewsd lls UFT process [y the contexl of this recommandation, BCLG requltes immediala

ema’l roltfication from saryice providers of a UFT for Bmalness. Any & pecific delzil partalaing la the
tion sre reported threughg 1504 far conslstency, complelness, aacudly and

requited Informatfon 1s Included end to
craale consistancy In the qualily of
submisslons bekwasn fuciilles.

piotection of prvesy requizemanls, Implementing a stand elono form ouiside of the exlsting detabese
will Inlroduce sk of reports or data belng nrissed and a pdvacy breach dsk that do not cuirently edlst.

Al

Sapvite Providess

54

ViP Hasls have the mest significant
Interacbon and knowledye of tha VIPs
and atitity lo fleg Instances of recelpl
and use ol unsouiced cash for
suspiclows ansacton reporing.
Consideralon shou'd b# ghven lo cioss
functional reperting Ines Lo the Direcler,
Teblo Games for a cansislenl approach
1o compiance accoss alf lable gama
polols of eccess suscaptibta o the
scceplance of unsourced cash.

BCLG has teviewed 1ils recomrandalon. VIP hosls and all Table Gama slalt must complete ant-

to 1aporifn 1egard le thase E & Eve monliers ali laige cash
lsansacttans Inespeclve of the staif nvolved in the lrznsacunn ba Lhey VIP hosts, Teble Games sialf,
Gage stafl o any other exnployae. FINTRAC revlewed BCGLCS AML program1n June 2010 including that

i 15(1)

money laundering Ualning which Inc'wdes t:alnlrg mlaled to large tosh kransecton handing end the duty ]

sedmcdat

of RRCR snd fyund BCLG 1o ba complant vith PCRLTFA vdth no evidence of nen tepeiting kransaclons,

546

Floot sleff should hava more active
involvament In the UFT reperting
process. UFT aporting [s currantly
cerded ovt by survelilance stalf wha shly|
heve Emiled Info besed on video
survelBenca.

Estebish a dediesied, cooperativa Inter-,
sgency AML Invsestigations unit
compdsed o GPEB end BCLC

BCLG has 1avlewed ifts UF T tapaiting process In tha context of this racommerndation. Thee eppears 10
Lo soma misapprehension exprassed [n the reviewIn regazd la BCLC's UFT raporing process. All floer
stal recleve mandatory AL lisining and have & positve duty ta bing forward and repart any unsusl
fineaclal bansacCons, irces pactive of the'r spacie role.  Fudher, Suiviellanca Is not resticled fo
Infoimalion basad sofely on video suvellance. Strvellance operalons sre af all Bmes In diroct
communicsilon with Tloor stafi via tvo way radio. FINTRAG conducted a eamprehensiva tevlew of
BCLEG' ANL program In June 2856 includiag 1hal of RRCR end found BCLG fo be lully ¢complant wilh al
aspects nf tha PCMLTFA setated {0 LransacBon seportng and record kesplag.

GPES on lead for response,

okt

h LTSI 3]

QpPED 5.19 Investigstors ie datingale Lha roles
belwuan operational and AL
Investpallons and regulatory
compliance nvastgaions.
Any backlog o1 woridoad fssues obseved duing lhls sevisw weie a lemporary clicumslarce arlsing
fro 5{1 by BGLC al the Rivet Rock faclily Oclobar 2015. Addifonal
Operaling lsvels r‘," B_GLC Invasligaloss BCT.E zle iaﬁre teesslgned ko ssslel the AML unit wilhg 15(1) so that nonmal
may neeq lo ba reviewed 63 tha current o
BClC 5.3 Staffing Jevels ass'gasd to RRCR do not could 1o ba caired outs 15(1 was addressed
9‘ be sufficlent conlemporanaoustr‘ The revlewar wag mede swara of these clicumstances at the Ema of lis vwark. BCLCH
Brpal e . " ciosely mondlors woik demands on AL lavestgators on a weekly basis, Workicads tamaln manegeble
and no slmiler backiogs have developed since the ens In November - December 2016.
Jo!nilf eva'uale he resouicing Bnd BCLC and GEB exacutiva have woiked iheaugh roles and sesponsibilitlss, The GCA allows sharing of
Hon'ng of exlsEng Investigative Irformalion [n appropale crcumstances bebvean GPER and BCLG, Slnca Lhe MNP review SIQIT was
Al 4.4 unils, EHacEva muld-agency units would]crealsd as he pdmary egency fo lnvesligalo ML and POG refated aclivity, BOLC has MOU wilh AGIT

p {a tho sharng of informaten and
1950UCES,

sltoving for sifectve and elficlent information Tlows and ¢ den. GPES hes s essigned
1o JIGIT.




Responsible
organizalion

GPEB

Sectlon

42

Recommendailan

Should consider impfemantng a poley
teqiirement hat Servlee Providars

Respeonse Plan

Subsections 86(t} and (@) of the Proceeds of Crime (Wonay Launderdng) and Forrorlst Financlag Act, as
we!l as FinTRAGC Guideline 4, section 8 nd FINTRAC's Guldance on tha Risk-Based Approach (o
Combating Mansy Laundoring and Terdorst Fineadng, require BCEC o Implament a risk-based
comphianco tepims, A Stoctye lssusd under he provinelal Geming Contral Actlo BGLC of servite
providers tequining & prescapive compliance appeeachiin the form recommanded hala may givs tso ko
a diract conficd of faws as batwean fedesef and provinclat fequlrerents. A ditective of this nalure coukd
jasull In confuslon for service provider staff es batween provinclal and fedaral requiraments. g

5.6

Dabine lls sroepled lavol of flak for
wnsaurced cash snd then develop clear
rolss and responsibifites for,

GBPER — Regulator, Enforcement

BCLG—Managa gaming and raportiig
antity

Service Provider—Risk ldenlification

hs per 4.2 sbove  GPED fo devsiop response.

835

Alihe ditectlon of tha Minlster
tesponsibla for gaming, conside g

As per 4.2 above

5.52

Souice of [unds cen ony be yediled by
obleln’ng documentaton forthe
withdiaway of cesh rem o financlsl
nsttulion of enlity coveled under ths
PCMLIFA,

As per 4.2 aboys, GPEB lo develop respenss.

574

A ditective from GPEB may also suppant

6EiC poficy alieady exsts directing Service Providars o sfop and defvss transactlons whare = customer|
5

BCLG My creating B poticy which would
mendale the Servics Providerto decline
a #ansactonwhen mandalory
accupzllon data 1s o proyided by Lha
patron.

% not p 1equired kienfi4

4.3

5.68

The 1ovisw of proposed cash aliernalive
solutions, Including eredit, end the
Impacl of these solttons should remeln
2 pody fof bolh GFEB and BCLC.
Cash eflsrnalives stiow Sanvce
Providars to recebve funds,

haning the everal

uslfr;e with inindmal Impact on revenue
¥

BCLC hes completed woik en paimttng (ntamational electronde funds tansfers and daimiting Isturm of

funds cheques. These changes have been tmplsmented. S

BCLC

Dopendlng on GPER /) Minlster's risk
tolarance for large wnsowiced cash
transactions, tevise pelclas rapaiding
toleranca of Mah risk play end

of vnacceplable hgh sk

activlly

BCLC wli awa'l GPEB's analysis of this resemmendalion.

48

Gonsidar whether iis sk assessman!
meocess adequately refecls current

ing around money laundering and
Lleporist Enancdng risk. The fsks
assotiated to epacific facliZes should
bo eyalualad, rathez than simply drawing
gaographlc boundarles for fsk. .

BCLC hss reviased lls fisk assassment. BCLC's risk assessmant lakes inlo account gaogrephlc iisk
e'omems. The risk essessment fooks et both sk by region wih'n tha proviacs and slte specific risks
villin each reglen, lncluding dsks such as locel crime rales In and sround gaming sfes, 1n June 2016
BCLE's dsk essesseent vas the subjes! of an Indepih FnTRAC Complance Reviaw end s found lo
b3 fully In compiance wik Lhe PCOALITFA. Moteorat, dufisg the exilinteniow phase of the Compiancs,
Reulew, FInTRAG indicaled thal BGLC': risk assessmenl vas one of tha mosl jobusl In tha induslry,

548

542

Relher than base a faci@les sk
assessment by reglon, Hsk assessments
should includa fastors spacifie to the
{aclkty. Conskder f tha sk refrster
reflects tha cuirend environmant as Ris
nal &% granuter as other juisdictons
reviewed by MNP.

BCLG has 1eviewed [ls f3k mssessment, BOLG's sk sssessment lakes Inlo account gaographls risk
alemens. The risk assessment looks #1 both risk hy region vith'n the provinca and site specific fsks
witin each tegion, Including risks such as jocel cima rales In and around gaming siles. In June 2016
BOLO's sk sssessment was tha sublacl of an Indepth FINTRAG Gompianca Review and was lound Lo
ba fully In complianca with 1ha PCRIL)TFA. Keraovar, during e exit Intsrview phase of the Comp
Railew, FINTRAC indiceledd thal BCLC's fisk assessiment was ona of fie most robust in the Industry,

57

Conskdar developlng new cash
alternalive programs and products that
inchude:

BCLG hes baen devaloping and Inlioducing new cesh alternative payment oplions since 2012, Atthe
ims of i MNP revlew wo cash eltemalives sal with GPES for approval. GPEB have slnca sialed thelr
epptoval ks nol required s thase are opetational geming matlers falfag oulside of ther mandate. The
Iwo niew c4sh altatnabive peymenl aptions have now besn Inplemesled.

Tha ablity of non-Ganedlen playars to
fund PGF accousls and repay crodi if
subjatlte cash rasidclons inihelr home
coualry {).e. Ghina}, ond

Int EFT end wire translers wers In the procass of development paer ta the Ume of this review.
Thalwork Is complet and internslional EFTs have been imglemented. i

ellacating how defaulls on repaymant
will bo delenmined (i.e. babween BOLG
ond setvlce pravidar.

Cradit has been evslueled ard ks piesently nol epproved by GPEB and thus Is not currenily proposed by
BELC In the shert term




Respensibla

BCLC

BCLC

orgznization

Sectlon

LE]

Recommendation

If GFEB Implements a polfcy rapaidlng
Lhe rafusal of!amu or lraquant

cash dapostts, BCLG's.

ul to addlass the poScy should

Includa tafresher irelntng 10 Service

Response Plan Stalus

BCLC wil awalt dleclon kom GPESMInistar. BOLG nolas, subsactions .5{(1) and (2} of the Procoeds
of Citma {Maney Leundering) and Tersorist Financing Act, as wall s FINTRAG Guidekne 4, sacken §
and FinTRAG's Guldance o the Risk-Based Approach lo Gombatling Manay Laundering and Farrdorist
Financing, requile BCLG to implament a fisk-Based compliance regime. A direckive Issued under he
prevInclal Gaming Contrel Asl to BGEG or service providers tegulfing a prescilpive compllanca

Previders ining to BCEC's il
requiemsnts of alampted transxcﬂnns
{o ensure reposls ers appropiately
identfied.

hin Lhe formTecor here may glvé Ass 16 a dirsdt conficd of laws s betwaen fedaral
and provindlal reguirements. BOLC woud need cladfication feom tha fedetal regulsior 2nd provincial
1egutalor as {o which requisernent was o be givan paramauncy. ncla! requiraments are not aigned with
of conticl with fedatal law.

LR

547

Facity stell shou'd be regulssly tralnsd
on e completan of {hs forms used for
rapeiing, Includ'rg UFT teparing.

Sorvia Pravider stelf recelve Intial AL fraln'ng pror lo commeacing dullas and elso recleve padodle
refissher ta'ning. In June 2016 FINTRAC compleled a comprehensive ceview of BCLC UFT ard STR
1aporting procssses Includng Lhat of RRCR and found BCLS [o be fully compllznt with PCRMLTFA. UFT
I3 &0 $nternal Industry reporing procass for SPs {o report ransactions to ACLC fod teylew.

412

Anti-monay launderdng tralning prograrms
shou'd ba evelueted for up-to-data
contanl 2nd effeciivensss.,

BOLG revisws and updales s AWML biein'ng on a perfedic basls and wheneve! requltemenis under the
FCMLITFA 618 emanded. In June 2616 FINTRAC compleled a comprahensive review of BGLG's ARIL
1eghme. BCLG has trderiakan a full Jovlew, tating Inlo eceount goldance from FINTRAC.
Enhancemsnts la BCLC's AL tra'ning program will ba in place [ 2087,

Fat iy

412

5.55

Tizldng shou'd be pravidsd in lhe
primary languege of the candidale,
parteuvtaily for Hs high dak exposed
emplayaes fhose wolking In Eigh-fmit
100},

BCLC has tavizwed this race dabien. Fedesal Ant-
Guideanse and ditectves are provided enly In Caneda's olfictal Faguages: French and English. 1
Companca sevisws and sudds conducted by FInTRAG in B.,C, a1a eonduciad In Engl'sh ondy. NaConaly

tecognired accountng flems, whlch ieporﬁng enthles undet the PCRALYTFA roply vpoh o conduct

y lsundaning laws and FinTRAG

dsled blanfal Ir il 11 revlews, offar sevicas only In Engllsh of French.
Presenbed reporiing lo FINTRAC under the PCMLYTFA and under the Cririnal Gods may only be
tonductad In £nglish of French. For securlly relsled remsons casing aperafens and efl kansectons and
communlcetions balwarn garring sialf and custemars ere required to bo conduclad In English only fn
BC rasinos. BCLC's sarvics providers smpltyes mora than $000 1af ralecting a bicad ranga of
natlonalles and Janguagas other Lhen Englsh or Franch. Condusking AML traln'ng In mydad fanguages
{hat sro net used In ether casino eperalons or AML eompdanca 21ils ang revlews would InWteduca a
subsiandal sk of confuslag and misundersiocd comm u Haly leading ta ¥ oaps
and arrors. Given She sk of raporting ercors end other camnpliance gaps implamenting 1his
recommandaton covld inlrodues, BCLC wil not pursue the recornmsndation further.

wdsaty

414

The KYP flamework 8! RRCR it a1 lask-
drivan compliance actvity eathar than a
Ask managernend ackivity, Provide
{furthe; guldance &5 the managerand
tesponsible enldly for AML regutatery
sbigatiens to enhanee end enforco
spproptats KYP measumas,

BGLG has teviewsd its cuslomer dua difgance pracass I fight of his recommandalion, the
1equisaments tndes the PC(MLYTFA and FINTRAC Guidanca on KYC iequirements, In addlfion, BCLC
has constfted with olher casings and reporling entles on eppeoprlata KYC meoasuies. BOLC's CDD end
XYC measures moel 2 tequiraments. In additfen, Tn Juse 2018 FINTRAC copducled a comprehensive
ravlaw of BCLG's entire AME program. The FINTHAD review Involzed site visils fe RRCR end & numbe:
of RRCR slaff intexviews to testils CDD and KYC procesyss, FInTRAC found 8CLS's piogiam to be
fully compdant.

554

4.7

Adsttongl ralng for employeas Inthe
VIP area focused specidcally on
susplelous Insfeators and mqulred

BOLG tavlews and updates fs AML 1ra'ning on a pericdic basts and whanaevar requbiements under the
PC(MLYTFA are amended. In June 2015 FINTRAC complaled a comprahensive review of 8CLC's AML
;eglma BCLE has underlaken a ful review, (akdng Inte account guidance lrom FINTRAC,

aetons to Impeove Independent thinklng.

Enhance tha CIMY processes from balh
a fisk management and favenus
generation paispective with
modlicadons and addilonel (esources
1o el EDD expectalions for Figh dsk
palions.

E Is 19 BOLG's AME tralnleg program wiif ke Jn plece [n 2047,

BCLG has ievh It dua protass in fighl of this recommandation, lhe
1equiraments under ths PCML)TFA end FInTRAG Guidanta on KYG requitements, In adfifon, BOLC
has consulted with other rasiang and roporllng entles on appropiale KYC mesasures, BCLGS COD end [
KYG maasufos meet 871equremonts. In eddition, In Juna 2018 FInTRAC conductad a comprshensive
1sviawr of BOLC's entits AML progiam. The FINTRAG reviewinvoled site visHs le RRCR end a number
o1 RRUR slalfintarviews to lestits CDD and KYC precesses. FIRTRAC found 8CLCs program (o be

{ully compEant.

4.9

£.83

Review/ ls EBD process lo ansure the
data coflacled and Infarmatlon gleanad
picyides  cfaar plchure of the dsks and
p«oﬁ‘a of the palron for sk assessmant

and mitigaion.

BGLC has 1aviewed lis us] dus dily potess In fight of this racemmandalion, he
1equiraments undar tha PGIMUTFA and FINTRAC Guidence on KYC rsquirements. in edditon, BCLC
has consulled wilh olher ¢esinos and reporiing ankles on eppropdats KYC maeasutes. BGLS'S COD and
KYG meesures mesl el requiremants. In addilon, [n Juns 2016 FinTRAG condutted & comprehensive
1evisw of BCLG s antire AWL program. The FINTRAG teview Involved slta visils te RROR end a numbes
o1 RRCR slaffInterviews lo lestils COD end KYG piotesses, FIRTRAG found BCLG's propram ta ba
fulty cempllent.

EBD messures ookl be more
qualtative, and & formal 1espanse lo
spociiied dsk ratings could be created.

BCLE has reviewed lis cuslome; dus ciligence protecs In Eght of $his recommendatien, Lhe
requizements under the PCERAL}EFA snd FInTRAC Guldangs on KYG requirsmenls. n addil
has consulied wilh athat casinos and reporting entles on approf Kyc BCLC's COD and
KYC measures meot a'f ragulioments. In addmon. tn June 2046 FinTRAC conduciad camprehensive
1avlew of BCLC's entiro ANL program. The FINTRAG revisw kvalved slle visils to RRER and a number
of RRCR sialflatardews lo lastits CDD end KYC precesses. FINTRAC found BCLC'S piagtem te b
fully complant.

5.16

6.24
528
5.28

Owseurcing the EDD process for highet
sk palrons shouid ba conslisred o
clear tha eurrant backlog.

Pdmitize and eppeoprztaly (esovice the
anrgolng. implemamation peojact
(schedule 1ot refl o1 In fa%t af 2018) to
Irptova the qua'ity of the dala used for
ongolng risk essessmen and
complance monltedng and eeporting.

Any backlog cbservad by thls soview was a lemperary clrcumstanss ariting from an underseporing
{ssuo discovalad by BCLG at tha River Reck faciify Oclobar 2015, Addtlona} BELC stalf wete
eassigned Lo asslst e AWML unil with the uader sepraring [ssue so that nermal lrensacien monilering
could confinke 1o be cared out whila tha underraporUni fssue wes addiessed conlamporansousky, The
revlewer was mads aware of lhese clicumslances at the tme of Ils vork. Any backiog hat may have
hean observed was Wransitary [n nalure. M . ha oul g of core ARL would
uanecessaity Intiodusa 2 higher lave! of dskinlo lhs AL ;woqrsm end lncueasa the chanca of arror
Hesuling §a non-compiance.

BCLC continues vélh the piacess Lo autornate aspacts of ils AML program lo provide greeter efficlency
and anhenced fransaction monitaring capabifes. HCLG pursues & "coplinuous [mproventent”
philstophy with respect to ks AML program and contnually seeks loimpiove and enhansa ils sffors and

LRt ]




Responslblz
orgnFuﬂun

8C1C

Sezellon

411

Recommendatlon

Ensira that reparting farms used by the

{achilles are Lp o dals snd Includa
veluable Information Beids for
mandatory completion for unsourced of
high volume cash transactlons such as
source of {unds, sourca of weath end
puipesa and [Manded palurs of
refallonsilp Informatlon.

Response Plan

BCLG reviewed lts forms In fght of this racommendation. In June FInTRAG conducled a comprehonsive
reviow of BCLG's enlbre AML progiem and found o [ssues wilh lransaction reperting o record keeping
reguiremenls,

4.43

MNP Identified Inslences where nen-
cash ransections processed lo ARCR's
PGFs were averdopored lo FINTRAC,
end instances whera mandalory fiekds n
LGTRs wete left blank. BalhIssues ate
coptraty ta 1he PCMLTFA and ragulis
remediation and disclostrs lo FINTRAG,

[t1s BCLGCs undaslanding Lhel it s not possibla 1o suceessiully subridt an LGT Inlo the BELG -
FinTRAG nked systems with a daslgreled mandalaty fietd lafl Blank, Such a teport would be rejected
by the FInTRAG system and flapged lor Immediale fellew-tp and remediation, BCLG suspecls thal (hds
anomatous Rnding may be ralated to the raviswer's vnlqua malsodology whers It woiked In & selast dala |
cxlraction from 8C1LC's dalabass rather than the actuat production dalebase. This a processthal hes
noyer beer sltampled bolore and deviates from sfandard audil practica whato suditors wark direcly fn
the production dalabase vwhich removes the fisk of thess typss ol errors, BCLC has reviswed the data
exlzacton &5 a 1esult of this inding and cempared ¥ to the produclion dela, [tappasts thet duiing the
oxtraclion preceas some dala Belds d'd nol popu'ate Inls the extracllon semp!a In seme Frriled
Instznces. In olhe: vwords BGLC, when woiking dicactiy In the production date 89 opgosed lo aselecl
oxtraclon of the data, cannot find tha LGT arrors refamed to hete, BCLG suggested the reviewerzesun
Lhelr snalysls Inthe produciton dalabaso of provide the suspeet reports to FINTRAG drectly far :
Iveriﬁcal!an thel mandatery fie'ds were complaied as requlied when Ihe form vas submitied. The
revievser decined tha oppordunlly Yo lefie elifter of these steps and cosreci whal appear to erionesus H
findings. Upon fevlewing he acleal production data BCLC is confidan! 1he excaplions repored hera did
et fn facl oceur. .
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Due &Egance on farge volumes of slot
Cesh Disbursement Reperts (COR}
should be monitered for susplcious
acthity,

BCLC implemanted processes In 2018 %o revlew siol play based on CDR Ievels and it Is currenlly buril
Inlo the AML piogram. This bs on lop of cunrent due ditgence practces which FinTRAC found lo ba
fearnplznt In Juno 2C16.

5.38

532

Review !l of the FINTRAC raporting
{LCTRICDR] for non-cash for ail
fz¢l3les which offer PGF accounts
shou'd ba done [mmedialaly to sfep
uanscessey end Incorrec] rapons.

As per §.13 BCLC Identiied the PGF fssua In Noy 2016 aad engaged FInTRAC for guidanca as s
teporing practice hed baen fn place sinca 2052. On wiitlan conllimalion from FINTRAC BCLC caased
{5 practice In July 2096, BCLC heve requested guldance from FINTRAC on all new Cash a'ternetives
and ceporting obligatons,

THH:

Creata = templats fot Unirstial Financlal
Tiznsaction {UFT) Jeports for service
providers 1o usa ta easurs that all
1equited Infotmatien Is Ingluded and to
<ieale censistency In the quatty of
subrrdsglons bebwaen facibies.

BCLG has tevlewed its UFT process in Tha conted of 1his recommandation, BCLG requias immediate
emzll notificafon lrem servica providars of 8 UFT for #maliness. Any spetlfic delall penalning lo ha
transacion are reporied Ihrough ma— 1oz consisiency, compielness, sacurlly and
protection of privacy requiremenls. Implementng 2 sland alone form outslde of iha exisiing dalabase
Wil Introduca fisk of repodls of data belng sissed and a privacy bieach sk (hat do not carently exist.

Berylca Providers
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VIF Fasls have the mosl slgnificent
interecBon and knewiedge of the ViPs
end eblfy ta fleg Inslances of recelpt
and use ol unscurced cash for
suspiclous trans aclion repetting.
Conslderation should ba glven to c1oss
functonal seporting Enes o Lhe Dliector,
Tahle Gaimios for a conslstant appiosch
o compiance across el lsble gome
points of accass suseefitly 1o the
acceplanta of Unsoyiced cash,

1BCLC hes teviswed thls recommendation. VIP hosts end afl Table Gams stafl miust complals antl- t
money laundering ralnng which Incizudes Ua'ning 1e'alad {o latge cash ransaction handing and the duly B
1o seport In regsrd 1o these lransaclions, Adddienally, Surveiffance Sve monitors ell [ergs cash

hansacliens luespecive of the staif involved In the fesnsaction be thay VIP hesls, Tabla Games stalf, J
Cage slall o any olher smpleyss, FINTRAG tevliswed BGLG's AWK program In Jupe 2818 Incled'ng Lhat §
of RRCR &and found BCLG 1o be cornpiant vilh PCMLTFA with no evldence of non repeding i

s 8 o A

5.46

{survellanse,

Floor stalf should have more aclive
involesrmand In the VFT reperting
plocess, UFT reporting §s <utrently

BCLC has reviewsd Its UFT raperting process in Lha conlaxt of th's socommendaton. There sppesrs to
bu sorna misapprehansion expressed I Lha reviewIn regazd (o BOGLC's UFT reporting process. All Eoor
staff tecleve mandaiory AL bslileg end have a pasln‘ve duty fo bring lorward and repart any unsval  §
ﬁnunulai Iransasiions, Itespeclive of thelr specks 1ols,  Forther, Sundellance Is net zesticlad lo

carded out by survel! staH wha only
heva Emited Info based on vides

Eslabish a dedicated, cooparativa inter-

based solely on video surveifance, Suryeidance operators erm al off Bmes Ik difect
communicaiton with foer stalf via tvo way jadlo. FINTRAD conducted a comprehensive ievlew of
BCLGC's AML program In June 2046 Including Lhsl of RRCR and foid BOLS ta ba fully compant wilh all |
aspects of the PCMLTFA retaled to lrersacdon reporing and racerd Keaping, f

egency AKL Investgations unfl
compsed of GPEB end BOLC
GPEB 5.8 Investgalors lo dofneale ha roles GPEB on fead for tespanss.
between operatonal 2nd AN
fnvestgelions and regualory
comp¥anca investgeions.
Ay backiog o1 woikload lssues absenved dudng this zeviaw wate a lemporesy clreumslance ansing
. 1 m,ﬂ by BOLC al the River Rock fadbty Qeteber 2015, Additienal
Operau:g :w:f ";'l Bc"‘;‘:;:ﬂﬁ;‘::: BCLE slalfwere 1eas5'gned la essisl tha AL unit wih pueiib— < the! harmal 1
acke 5.1 ﬂ;i"frnn p u' ‘Blgmﬁ RRCR da not |V2353¢ton moriteding coukd continue ta ba ca!dedomF was addeessed |8
gla mgls\gs Bf’r‘ ; ’“' ° 9 1Y ontarnparangously. The roviewer was made avwara of [ess clicumstences at Lha Ume of ils work. BCLG]
2Fpost o be enlficlen closely monters work demands on AML Invesfgators on o weakly basls, Waorkloads ramals managabla H
2nd no similar backiogs have developed since tha ena In Novambar - December 2016,
Jointly evauale 1he resourdng end BCLG and GED execulive have worked twough roles and respens.biltlas. The GCA allows sharng of
fancoring of existing Investigative Infatrnal’on In appropiiate dicumslances betwveen GPEB and BCLC. 8inca the MNP raview JIGIT was
All 44 urits. EHeclive revild-agonay vnils woubd|cresied o3 the pitnary egency 1o Investgele Wi and POG related acivity, BOLC has MOU with JIGIF

promole Lhe sharing of Infarmation and
lesoukes,

aliowing for affecive and elficisnl Information News and coerdination, GPES has invesbgalers asslgned B
Lo JIGIT. :




Kevin Simcoe

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Fallow Up Flag:
Flag Status;

Jim D, Lightbody
September-21-17 7;52 AM
Rob Kroeker

MNP Report - redacted.pdf
MNP Repaort - redacted pdf

Follow up
Flagged



Kevin Simcoe

. ST
From: Ross Alderson
Sent: September-21-17 9:11 PM
To: Rob Kroeker
Subject; Re: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

522

Ross Alderson
Director, AML & Investigations
BCLC

From: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Bahcock@bcic.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 9:00:12 PM PDT

To: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com:>, Susan Dolinski <SDelinski@BCLC.com>, Rob Kroeker
<RKroeker@hclc.com>, Jim D. Lightbody <IDLightbody@bclc.com>

Subject: Fwd: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

Laura Piva-Babcock
BCLC Director Communications
s 17(1)

From: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>
Date: September 21, 2017 at 7:59:31 PM PDT
To: Nelsoh, Tiffany GCPE:EX <Tiffany.Nelson@gov.bc.ca>, Megan Harris (Megan.Harris@gov.bc.ca)

<Megan.Harrls@gov.bc.ca»
Cc: Doug Cheng <DCheng@hclc.com>, Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>

Subject: NR -AML Report- 205EPT17 - FINAL.docx

Hi,

Jim Lightbody’s quote is inserted. As discussed we will have links in the morning,

Thanks for your assistance. Have a good evening.



Laura Piva-Babcock
Director, Communlcations

74 West Seymour Street, Kamloops, B.C. V2C 1E2

T 250 828 85576 Cs 17(1)

Connect with us:

Twitter @BCLC| Facebook | bcle.com

Last year more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health care, education and community
groups across B.C.



Kevin Simcoe

From; Rob Kroeker

Sent: September-21-17 10:26 PM

To: Jim D, Lightbody

Subject; Re: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.doex
Disregard

From: Roh Kroeker <RKroeker@bcic.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 10:23:49 PM PDT

To: Jim D. Lightbody <IDLightbody@bclc.com>
Subject: Re: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

tt's good. | still think we should say

From: Jim D. Lightbhody <JDLightbody@hclc.com>
Date: September 21, 2017 at 10:03:29 PiM PDT

To: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bcle,.com>

Subject: Fwd: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

What do you think, Tob?

s 15(1)

Begin forwarded message;

From: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>
Date: September 21, 2017 at 9:59:21 PM PDT
To: "Jim D. Lightbody” <JDLightbody@bclc.com?>, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babhcock@bclc.com>

Cc: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@hbclc.com>, Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com:>
Subject: Re: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

I think this strikes the right balance.

From: Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@hbclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 9:58:21 PM PDT

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcle com>

Cc: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@ bclc.com>, Susan Dolinski

<SDolinski@BCLC.com>
Subject: Re: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

Thanks, Laura. Any objections or suggestions Rob an Susan?

s 15(1)



On Sep 21, 2017, at 9:56 PM, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcic.com> wrote:

Here it Is. Want to ensure | have it right before | re-send to GCPE

“We take our responsibility to manage gaming in our province very seriously and
always welcome the opportunity to improve our practices,” said BCLC President & CEO
Jim Lightbody. “We have zero tolerance for criminals who may attempt to target our
business. If there is something more we can do to improve the anti-money laundering
efforts in BC, we'li do it.”

From: Jim D. Lighthody

Sent: September 21, 2017 9:15 PM

To:! Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bele.com>

Cc: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>; Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>; Susan

Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>
Subject: Re: NR -AML Report- 205EPT17 - FINAL.docx

{aurg,
On further "review" I'm concerned readers may confuse my first sentence In the quote as to

the MNP review vs the "new" impending review,
Let's omit that opening sentence and put my "said Jim Lightbody..." after my comment about

"we take.."

I would also like is in the IN to point out the frequency and depth of the annual AML audits we
undergo and point out the MNP work was a review of River Rock only.

Thanks,
Jim

s 15(1)

On Sep 21, 2017, at 9:00 PM, Laura Piva-Bahcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com> wrote:

Laura Piva-Babcock
BCLC Director Communications
s 17(1)

From: Laura Piva-Bahcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 7:59:31 PM PDT

To: Nelson, Tiffany GCPE:EX <Tiffany.Nelson@gov.bc.ca>, Megan Harris
(Megan.Harris@gov.bc.ca) <Megan.Harris@gov.bc.ca>

Ce: Doug Cheng <DCheng@bclec.com>, Susan Dolinski
<SDolinski@BCLC.com>

Subject: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx




Hi,
Jim Lightbody's quote Is inserted. As discussed we will have links in the
marning,

Thanks for your assistance. Have a good evening.

Laura Piva-Babcock
Director, Communications
74 West Seymour Strest, Kamloops, B.C. V2C 1E2

T 250 828 5576 Cs 17(1)

Connect with us:
Twitter @BCLC| Facebook | bele.com

Last year more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went
back into health care, education and community groups across B.C,

<NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx>



Kevin Simcoe

T i
From: Rob Kroeker
Sent: September-21-17 8:46 PM
To: Susan Dolinski; Jim D. Lightbody
Cc: {aura Piva-Babcock
Subject: Re: IN: MNP
s 13(1)

| have already committed to getting the EY response plan to you and Laura in the a.m - am I missing something?

From: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com:>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 8:41;14 PM PDT

To: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>, Jim D. Lightbody <IDLightbody@bclc.com>
Cc: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcle.com>

Subject: Re: IN: MNP

Hi Rob,

An info note is intended to cover off the issues media will focus on based on what government is releasing.* ™"

in my previous email, | asked for the action plans on EY and FINTRAC. 8 13(1)

Susan

From: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bcic.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 8:27:57 PM PDT

To: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>, Jim D. Lighthody <JDLighthody@bclc.com>
" Cc: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcle.com>

Subject: Re: IN: MNP

Are we writing this ? s 13(1)

Note that the FinTRAC audit, a comprehensive and complete program
review done subsequent to the MNP audit, found only one excepticn related to updating staff training and
that exception has also been fully addressed.




From: Susan Dolinsld <SDolinski@BCLC.com>
Date: September 21, 2617 at 8:05:00 PM PDT

To: Jim D. Lightbody <iDLlightbody@bcle.com:
Cc: Roh Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com:>

Subject: IN: MNP

This is the current draft of the IN. The response paints are consistent with what we agreed to with Government. We
can make edits in the AM as needed,

Susan




Kevin Simcoe
-

I -
From: Rob Kroeker
Sent: September-21-17 5:23 PM
To: Susan Dolinski; Jim D. Lightbody; Laura Piva-Babcock
Subject: RE: MNP release update

| don't know. It seems self explanatory to me? s 13(1)

Is someone pulling messaging together ? s 13(1)

from: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 5:17:26 PM PDT

To: Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@bcle.com>, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bcle.com?>, Susan Dolinski
<Spoelinski@BCLC.com>

Subject: RE: MNP release update

Thanks Rob. Yes, | have those.s 13(1)
My only other question is regarding the MNP BCLC response document, § 13(1)

From: Roh Kroeker
Sent: September 21, 2017 5:15 PM
To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcele.coms; Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>; Jim D. Lightbody

<JDLightbody@hbclc.com>
Subject: Re: MNP release update

Laura - the redacted copies of our documents were already sent to the DM and MA. Susan was copled. | don't have
immediate access to send again as | am on phone not computer

From: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcle.com:>

Data: September 21, 2017 at 4:43:57 PM PDT

To: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>, Jim D. Lightbody <JDt;ghtbodv@bcIc com:, Rob Kroeker
<RKroeker@be¢le.com>

Subject: MNP release update

Importance: High

Hello,

I just got off the phone with Megan Harris, Comms Director at AG GCPE. She relayed the following

s Province-wide news release to be distributed between 9 & 10 a.m., linked to MNP report which will be posted to GPEB’s
website



e Release will include quotes from the Minister and the Solicitor General. Solicitor General’s quote to be along the lines that
it's important to deter any criminal activity. Minister indicating there will be a review.

BCLC to have a quote if it wishes
Na language in the release nor any minister quote noting that all agree that BCLC is in full compliance with FINTRAC, but |

was told that BCLC can say this if they wish in their guote
BCLC’s MNP response, EY report and FINTRAC report will all be linked in the quick facts section of the news release -

BCLC's documents will be on BCLC's website

GCPE does not have BCLC's reports. | won't share until | know the redacting is final and complete. If we want these
documents linked, we'll need to have that redacting done this evening so they're ready first thing. Rob, please advise.

Susan and | agree that providing a quote when we can’t see the news release is problematic.

| wanted to share this information with you so you can regroup and determine next steps. National PR is available for a call in
the morning if we need to prep our spokesperson.

Thanks,

Laura Piva-Babcock
Director, Communications
74 West Seymour Street, Kamiloops, B.C. V2C 1E2

T 250 828 5676 Cs 17{1)

Connect with us:
Twitter @BCLC| Facabook | belc.com

Last year more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health care, education and communily
groups across B.C.



Kevin Simcoe
s

AR
From: Rab Kroeker
Sent: September-21-17 5:36 PM
To: Laura Piva-Babcock; Jim D. Lightbody
Ce: Susan Dolinski
Subject: RE: MNP release update
Ok

From: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 5:27:31 PM PDT

To: Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@bclc.com>

Cc: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bele.coms, Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com:>
Subject: RE: MNP release update

Thanks Jim and Rob for your feedback. GCPE has indicated that these documents will be linked in the quick facts section of
their release and that we are responsible for posting them to our website. If they are somehow not included in the final
release, we stilf have the capability to make the decision to post them proactively on our own, since we have developed a
practice of proactive disclosure generally.

I'll develop a cover and send for review. These documents will be posted on our reports and disclosures page in the
Accountability section, L

From:Jim D. Lightbody

Sent: September 21, 2017 5:24 PM

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>

Ce: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bcic.com>; Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>
Subject: Re: MNP release update

1 think we should say when we responded and provide the context
s 15(1)

On Sep 21, 2017, at 5:17 PM, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com> wrote:

Thanks Rob. Yes, | have those. | wanted to ensure that nothing else needed to be done to them, so thank you
for confirming. My only other question is regarding the MNP BCLC response document. Do we want to add
some sort of explanation or cover to the front indicating when it was provided to government or anything, or
are we ok with it as-is. L

From: Rob Kroeker

Sent: September 21, 2017 5:15 PM

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>; Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>; Jim D. Lightbody
<JDlighthody&bcle.com>

Subject: Re: MNP release update




Laura - the redacted copies of our documents were already sent to the DM and MA. Susan was
copied. 1don't have immediate access to send again as | am on phone not computer

From: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 4:43:57 PM PDT

To: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>, Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@bclc.com>, Rob Kroeker
<RKroeker@bclc.com>

Subject: MNP reiease update

Importance: High

Hello,
| just got off the phone with Megan Harris, Comms Director at AG GCPE. She relayed the following

¢  Province-wide news release to be distributed between 9 & 10 a.m., linked to MNP report which will be
posted to GPEB’s website

+  Release willinclude guotes from the Minister and the Solicitor General, Solicitor General’s quote to be
along the lines that it's important to deter any criminal activity. Minister indicating there will be a review.

*  BCLC to have a quote if It wishes

« o language in the release nor any minister quote noting that all agree that BCLC is in full compliance with
FINTRAC, but | was told that BCELC can say this if they wish In their quote

e BCLC's MNP response, EY report and FINTRAC report will all be linked in the quick facts section of the
news release - BCLC's documents will be on BCLC's website

GCPE does not have BCLC's reports. | won't share until | know the redacting is final and complete, |f we want
these documents linked, we’li need to have that redacting done this evening so they’re ready first thing. Rob,
please advise.

Susan and | agree that providing a quote when we can’t see the news release is problematic.

| wanted to share this Information with you so you can regroup and determine next steps. Mational PR is
available for a call in the morning if we need to prep our spokesperson.

Thanks,

Laura Piva-Bahcock
Director, Communications
74 West Seymour Street, Kamloops, B.C. V2C 1E2

T 250 828 5576 5 17(1)

Connect with us:
Twitter @BCLC| Facebook | bele.com

Last year more than $1 billion generaled by BCLC gambling activities went back into health care, education and
community groups across B.C.



Kevin Simcoe

From: Rob Kroeker

Sent: September-21-17 8:21 PM

To: Susan Dolinski

Ca Jim D. Lightbody; Laura Piva-Babcock
Subject: Re: Response to Audit Reports

It would a month. I'll see what | can find in the morning

From: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 7:59:31 PM PDT

To: Roh Kroeker <RKroeker@bcic.com>

Cc: Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@bclc.com>, Laura Piva-Bahcock <|.Piva-Bahcock@bclc.com>

Subject: Re: Response to Audit Reports

Thanks please send to both Laura and | in the AM. Do we have a record of the date - like even the month? We would
like to put that on the original document.

From: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 7:55:36 PM PDT

To: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>

Ce: Jim D, Lightbody <JDLightbody@bclc.com>, Laura Piva- Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>
Subject: Re: Response to Audit Reports

On EY. Yes. We always create an action plan if there are a number of exceptions. 1 will send to Laura in the a.m.
We did not for last FinTRAC because it was just one but we can write something in a.m. As well

MNP action plan - our parts were completed Fall 2016. GPEB never took action on the recommendations directed
to them as far was we know,

From: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 6:52:13 PM PDT

To: Roh Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>

Cc: Jim D. Lightbody <!DLightbody@bcic.com>, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcle.com>

Subject: Response to Audit Reports
Importance: High

Hi Rob,
Do we have a document that summarizes BCLCs response to the fintrac letter and EY review? It would be great if we

could also post this.



Also, do we have a date as to when the MNP response was provided? This would be helpful to the message.

Susan



Kevin Simcoe

From: Bob Madill

Sent: September-21-17 10:25 AM
To: Rob Kroeker

Cc: Claire Bennett; Jennifer Keim
Subject: RE: URGENT

Hi Rob,
s 13(1), s 14

From: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>
Date: September 21, 2017 at 9:32:53 AM PDT
To: Bob Madill <BMadil@BCLC.com>



Cc: Claire Bennett <CBennett@bclc.com>, iennifer Keim <JKeim@BCLC.com>
Subject: RE: URGENT

From: Bob Madill

Sent: September-21-17 9:25 AM

To: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@hclc.com>

Cc: Jennifer Keim <JKeim@BCLC.com>; Claire Bennett <CBennett@bcic.com>

Subject: Re: URGENT

Hi Rob, i can call you right now on mobile device (Just taking a time out from conference downtown) . What is your
full phone number?

From: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 9:17:22 AM PDT

To: Bob Madill <BMadill@BCLC.com>

Cc: Jennifer Keim <JKeim@BCLC.com>, Claire Bennett <CBennett@bclc.com>
Subject: URGENT

Importance: High

Bob — can you give me a call at my desk {3077) as soon as you get this s 13(1), s 14
s 13(1), 814

Thanks,

Rob



Kevin Simcoe

From: Susan Polinski

Sent: September-21-17 9:20 PM

To: Jim D. Lightbody; Rob Kroeker; Ross Alderson; Laura Piva-Babcock '
Subject: Re: News Release for information - Quote Review required

It appears | sent the wrong quote, Apologies, The correct quote is in the NR that Laura forwarded. s 15(1)

From: Susan Dolinski <SPbolinski@BCLC.com>

Pate: September 21, 2017 at 8:46:07 PM PDT
To: Jim D, Lighthody <JDLightbody@bclc.com>, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcic.com>, Rob Kroeker

<RKroeker@bcic.com>, Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>
Subject: Re: News Release Tor information - Quote Review required

This is the guote that has been sent forward based on Jim's call to Laura:
BCLC has a robust anti-money laundering program that is in full compliance with FINTRAC requirements. We are

committed to continuous improvement and have zero tolerance for criminals who may attempt to target our
business, We welcome this review and will cooperate fully with all of the partners participating in this process.

From: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 8:28:03 PM PDT

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Bahcock@bcic.com>, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>, Jim D. Lightbody
<JDLighthody@hclc.com>

Cc: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>

Subject: Re: News Release for information - Quote Review required

Agree with Rob. s 13(1)
s 13(1)

Director, AML & Investigations
BCLC ‘

From: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@hclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 8:18:18 PM PDT

To: Jim D. Lightbody <DLightbody@bclc.corm>, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>
Cc: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com, Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>

Subject: Re: News Release for information - Quote Review required



| think after JIm's first statement he should say say something along these lines.
s 13(1)

From: Laura Piva-Babcock <L Piva-Babcock@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 6:51:16 PM PDT

To: Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@bclc.com>

Cc: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>
Subject: News Release for information - Quote Review required

Importance; High

Hi,

 have pasted GCPE's news release below. Jim, | drafted your quote and it’s half~way down the release. We are not
able 1o edit the news release, but Jim, feel free to provide feedback to me on your quote, | want to get this back to
them as soon as possible. This is going out at 10 a.m. tomorrow, province-wide. Thanks. L

Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

VICTORIA ~ The Government of B.C. has released a 2016 report commissioned to look at practices and the
regulatory regime related to suspicious cash transactions at B.C. gaming facilities.

“On assuming respansibility for gambling in B.C. as part of my ministerlal duties, | received a series of briefings that
caused me to believe that our province could do more to combat money laundering at B.C. casinos,” said Attorney
General David Eby. “During these discussions, a publicly funded report that had been commissioned to review anti-
money laundering policy and practices in B.C. was shared with me. This report makes a series of serious
recommendations for reform, which should have been made public at the time the report was complete. | am
making that report public today.”



in the coming weeks, the Attorney General will announce the appointment of an independent expert to review
whether there is an unaddressed, or inadequately addressed, issue of money laundering in Lower Mainland casinos.

“Criminal activity and money laundering in our casinos and elsewhere in B.C. will not be tolerated,” said Minister of
Public Safety and Solicitor General Mike Farnworth. “These investigations take time because of the many moving
pieces and players but JIGIT, which operates under the Combined Forces Special Enforcement Unit, and GPEB have
had good success so far and we fully expect that to continue.”

“BCLC welcomes this review and we will cooperate fully throughout the process,” said BCLC President & CEQ Jim
Lightbody. “Our service providers are routinely audited for compliance with our policies and procedures and our
anti-money laundering program is proactively and independently reviewed regularly, supporting our commitment to
meeting and exceeding FINTRAC requirements.”

“The problem of money laundering is complex, but a committed government can make a difference,” said Eby."We
are serfous about doing everything we can to identify money laundering activities, and ensure policies are in place to
prevent it from occurring in B.C, casinos. We will bring in the best experts available to assist us, and | am confident
we will succeed, especially with the continued support of our partners BCLC, casino operators, the police, and the
Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch.”

A copy of the MNP Report can be found athttps://www?2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/sports-recreation-arts-and-
culture/gambling/gambling-in-be/reports/mnp report-redacted.pdf.

Add links to: BCLC response plan to initial report, FINTRAC annual review, internal audit

Quick Facts:

BCLC is responsible for conduct and management of gambling in B.C,

GPEB is responsible for the overall integrity of gambling and horse racing In the province,

MNP LLP were engaged by GPEB to conduct the review on Sept. 8, 2015 and delivered the report on July 26, 2016.

In 1998, the Province added casino gambling to the responsibilities of the BC Lottery Corporation and made them
responsible for the operation of the casino industry in B.C.

In April 2016, GPEB worked with the Policing and Security Branch in the Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor
General and the RCMP to establish the Joint lllegal Gaming Investigation Team (JIGIT), JIGIT, a unit under CFSEU-BC,
provides a coordinated enforcement approach from police and GPEB to combat illegal gambling and money

laundering in B.C,



s  GPEB has also established an intelligence unit to provide government with situational awareness of threats to the
integrity of the gambling industry. '

Media Contact:
Government Communications and Public Engagement
Ministry of Attorney General

778 678-1572

l.aura Piva-Babcock
Director, Communications
74 West Seymour Street, Kamloops, B.C. V2C 1E2

T 250 828 5576 Cs 17(1)

Connect with us:

Twitter @BCLC| Facebook | bclo.com

Last year more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health care, education and community
groups across B.C,



Kevin Simcoe
N

R B TR
From: Laura Piva-Babcock
Sent: September-21-17 $:04 PM
To: Rob Kroeker: Ross Alderson; Jim D, Lightbody; Susan Dolinski
Subject: Re: News Release for infarmation - Quote Review required

Hi |just sent you the email with the release and quote. Having troubles re sending.

Laura Piva-Babcock

BCLC Director Communications
s 17(1)

From: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>
Date: September 21, 2017 at 8:52:02 PM PDT
To: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>, Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-

Babcock@bhclc.com>, Jim D. Lightbody <IDLightbody@bclc.com>
Subject: Re: News Release for information - Quote Review required

s 13(1)

From: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 8:46:07 PM PDT ‘

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@hcle.com>, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>, Ross Alderson
<RAlderson@BCLC.com>, Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@bclc.com>

Subject: Re: News Release for information - Quote Review required

This is the quote that has been sent forward based on Jim's call to Laura;
BCLC has a robust anti-money laundering program that is in full compliance with FINTRAC requirements. We are

committed to continuous improvement and have zero tolerance for criminals who may attempt to target our
business. We welcome this review and will cooperate fully with all of the partners participating in this process.

Frem: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 8:28:03 PM PDT

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>, Jim D. Lightbody
<JDLightbody@bclc.com>

Ce: Susan Dolinski <Sbolinskl@BCLC.com>

Subject: Re: News Release for information - Quote Review required



s 13(1)

Ross Alderson
Director, AML & Investigations
BCLC

From: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 8:18:18 PM PDT

To: Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@bclc.com>, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcle.com>
Cc: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>, Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com:>

Subject: Re: News Release for information - Quote Review required

| think after JIm's first statement he should say say something along these lines.

5 13(1)

From: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcle.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 6:51:16 PM PDT

To: Jim D. Lightbody <JDlightbody@bcic.com>

Cc: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@hclc.com>

Subject: News Release for information - Quote Review required
Importance; High

Hi,

| have pasted GCPE’s hews release below. Jim, | drafted your quote and it's half-way down the release. We are not
able to edit the news release, but Jim, feel free to provide feedback to me on your quote, | want to get this back to
them as soon as possible. This is going out at 10 a.m. tomorrow, province-wide. Thanks. L



Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

VICTORIA — The Government of B.C, has released a 2016 report commissioned to look at practices and the
regulatory regime related to suspicious cash transactions at B.C. gaming facilities.

“On assuming responsibility for gambling in B.C. as part of my ministerial duties, | received a series of briefings that
caused me to believe that our province could do more to combat money laundering at B.C. casinos,” said Attorney
General David Eby. “During these discussions, a publicly funded report that had been commissioned to review anti-
money laundering policy and practices in B.C, was shared with me. This report makes a series of serious
recommendations for reform, which should have been made public at the time the report was complete. | am
making that report public today.”

In the coming weeks, the Attorney General will annhounce the appointment of an independent expert to review
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

“BCLC welcomes this review and we will cooperate fully throughout the process,” said BCLC President & CEO Jim
Lightbody. “Our service providers are routinely audited for compliance with our policies and procedures and our
anti-money laundering program is proactively and independently reviewed regularly, supporting our commitment to
meeting and exceeding FINTRAC requirements.”

“The problem of money laundering is complex, but a committed government can make a difference,” said Fhy,“We
are serlous about doing everything we can to identify money laundering activities, and ensure policies are in place to
prevent it from occurring in B.C. casinos. We will bring in the best experts available to assist us, and | am confident
we will succeed, especially with the continued support of our parthers BCLC, casino operators, the police, and the
Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch.”

A copy of the MNP Report can be found athttps://www?2.gav.bc.ca/assets/gov/sports-recreation-arts-and-
culture/gambling/gambling-in-befreports/mnp _report-redacted.pdf.

Add links to: BCLC response plan to initial report, FINTRAC annual review, internal audit
3



Quick Facts:

BCLC is responsible for conduct and management of gambling in B.C.

GPEB is responsible for the overall integrity of gambling and horse racing in the province.

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
General and the RCMP to establish the Joint lllegal Gaming Investigation Team (JIGIT). JIGIT, a unit under CFSEU-BC,
provides a coordinated enforcement approach from police and GPEB to combat illegal gambling and money

laundering in B.C.

GPEB has also established an intelligence unit to provide government with situational awareness of threats to the
integrity of the gambling industry.

Media Contact:
Government Communications and Public Engagement
Ministry of Attorney General

778 678-1572

Laura Piva-Babcock

Diractor, Communications

74 West Seymour Street, Kamioops, B.C. V2C 1E2

T 250828 5576 Cs 17(1)

Connect with us:

Twitter @BCLC| Facebook | bolc.com

Last year more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health care, education and community
groups across B.C.



Kevin Simcoe

R EEREEEW

From: Rob Kroeker

Sent: September-21-17 8:19 PM

To: Laura Piva-Babcock; Jim D. Lightbody

Cc: Susan Dolinski

Subject: Re: News Release for information - Quote Review required

Jim - see my suggestions and see what you think

From: Jim D. Lightbody <jDLightbody@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 7:28:09 PM PDT

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>

Cc: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>
Subject: Re: News Release for information - Quote Review required

See my suggestion below. Let me know what you thinl,

s 15(1)

On Sep 21, 2017, at 6:51 PM, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcle.com> wrote;

Hi,

| have pasted GCPE’s news release below. lim, | drafted your quote and it's half-way down the release. We
are not able to edit the news release, but Jim, feel free to provide feedback to me on your quote. | want to get
this back to them as soon as possible. This is going out at 10 a.m. tomorrow, province-wide. Thanks. L

Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

VICTORIA — The Government of B.C. has released a 2016 report commissioned to look at practices and the
regulatory regime related to suspicious cash transactions at B.C. gaming facilities.

“On assuming responsibility for gambling in B.C, as part of my ministerial duties, | recelved a series of briefings
that caused me to belleve that our province could do more to combat money laundering at B.C. casinos,” sald
Attorney General David Eby. “During these discussions, a publicly funded report that had been commissioned
to review anti-money laundering policy and practices in B.C. was shared with me. This report makes a series of
serious recommendations for reform, which should have been made public at the time the report was
complete, | am making that report public today.”

In the coming weeks, the Attorney General will announce the appointment of an independent expert to review
whether there is an unaddressed, or inadequately addressed, issue of money laundering in Lower Mainland
casinos.

“Criminal activity and money laundering in our casinos and efsewhere in B.C. will not be tolerated,” said
Minister of Public Safety and Solicitor General Mike Farnworth. “These investigations take time because of the
many movlng pieces and players but JIGIT, which operates under the Combined Forces Special Enforcement
Unit, and GPEB have had good success so far and we fully expect that to continue.”

“BCLC welcomes this review and we will cooperate fully throughout the process,” said BCLC President & CEO
Jim Lightbody. "We take our responsibility to manage gaming responsibly in our province very seriously and

1



always welcome the opportunity to improve our practices. When it comes to our efforts to combat money
laundering in casinos, our service providers are routinely audited for compliance with our policies and
procedures and our anti-money laundering program is proactively and independently reviewed annually by our
federal regulator, FinTRAC and independent auditors . If there is something more we can do to improve the

anti-money laundering efforts in 8C, we'lldo it. "

“The problem of money laundering Is complex, but a committed government can make a difference,” said Eby.
“We are serlous about doing everything we can to identify money laundering activities, and ensure policies are
in place to prevent it from occurring in B.C, casinos. We will bring in the best experts available to asslst us, and
| am confident we will succeed, especially with the continued support of our partners BCLC, casino operators,
the police, and the Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch.”

A copy of the MNP Report can be found at hitps://www2.gov.be.ca/assets/gov/sports-recreation-arts-and-
culture/gambling/gambling-in-bc/reports/mnp report-redacted.pdf.

Add links to: BCLC response plan to initial report, FINTRAC annual review, internal audit

Quick Facts!
e BCLCis responsible for conduct and management of gambling in B.C.
e GPEB is responsible for the overall integrity of gambling and horse racing in the province.

MNP LLP were engaged by GPEB to conduct the review on Sept. 8, 2015 and delivered the

report on July 26, 2016.

e In 1998, the Province added casino gambling to the responsibilities of the BC Lottery
Corporation and made them responsible for the operation of the casino industry in B.C,

e In April 2016, GPEB worked with the Policing and Security Branch in the Ministry of Public
Safety and Solicitor General and the RCMP to establish the Joint lilegal Gaming Investigation
Team (JIGIT}. JIGIT, a unit under CFSEU-BC, provides a coordinated enforcement approach
from police and GPEB to combat illegal gambling and money laundering in B.C.

e  GPEB has also established an intelligence unit to provide government with situational
awareness of threats to the integrity of the gambling industry.

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
Twitter @BCLC| Facebaok | bele.com

Last year more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health care, education and
community groups across B.C.



Kevin Simcoe

From: Jim D. Lightbody

Sent: September-21-17 10:13 PM

To: Laura Piva-Babcock

Cc: Susan Dolinski; Rob Kroeker; Ross Alderson
Subject: Re: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

Go ahead with the latest version, Laura. Thanks!
Please explaln to GCPE why we want to change (avoid confusion over reviews).

s 15(1)

On 5ep 21, 2017, at 10:05 PM, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bele.com> wrote:

Anyone else, I'd fike to get this up to gepe so they'li replace.

From: Susan Dolinskl

Sent: September 21, 2017 9:59 PM

To: Jim D. Lightbody <JDiightbodv@bcle.com>; Laura Piva-Bahcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>
Cc: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>; Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLE com>

Subject: Re: NR -AML Report- 205EPT17 - FINAL.docx

| think this strikes the right balance.

From: Jim D. Lightbody <)DLightbody@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 9:58:21 PM PDT

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>

Cc: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>, Susan Dolinsk

<SDolinski@BCLC.com>
Subject: Re: NR -AML Repaort- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

Thanks, Laura. Any objections or suggestions Rob an Susan?

s 15(1)

On Sep 21, 2017, at 9:56 PM, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcelc.com> wrote:

Here it is. Want to ensure | have it right before | re-send to GCPE

“We take our responsibility to manage gaming in our province very seriously and
always welcome the opportunity to improve our practices,” said BCLC President & CEQ
Jim Lightbody. “We have zero tolerance for criminals who may attempt to target our
business. If there is something more we can do to improve the anti-money laundering
efforts in BC, we'll do it.”



From: Jim D. Lightbody

Sent: September 21, 2017 9:15 PM

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Bahcock@belc.com>

Ce: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>; Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@beclc.com>; Susan
Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>

Subject; Re: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

Laura,
On further “review" I'm concerned readers may confuse my first sentence in the quote as to

the MNP review vs the "new" impending review.
Let's omit that opening sentence and put my “said Jim Lightbody..." after my comment about

"we take.."

i would also like is in the IN to point out the frequency and depth of the annual AML audits we
undergo and point out the MNP work was a review of River Rock only,

Thanks,
fim

s 15(1)

On Sep 21, 2017, at 9:00 PM, Laura Piva-Babcock <L Piva-Babcock@bclc.com> wrote:

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

Cc: Doug Cheng <DCheng@bclc.com>, Susan Dolinski
<SDolinski@BCLC.com>

Subject: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

Hi,

Jim Lightbody’s quote is inserted. As discussed we will have links in the
morning.

‘Thanks for your assistance, Have a good evening,

Laura Piva-Babcock

Director, Communlcations

74 Wast Seymour Street, Kamloops, B.C. V2C 1E2
T 250 828 6576 Cs 17{1)

Connect with us:
Twitter @BCLG| Facebook | bele.com



Last year more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling aclivities went
back into health care, education and communily groups across B.C.

<NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx>



Kevin Simcoe
[

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc
Subject:

Rob Kroeker

September-21-17 10:22 PM

Jim D. Lightbody; Laura Piva-Babcock

Susan Polinski; Ross Alderson

Re: NR -AML Report- 20SEPTL7 - FINAL.docx

Hi, Nothing beyond what I've provided. Thanks

From: lim D, Lighthody <IDLighthody@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 9:58:21 PM PDT

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcle.com>

* Ce: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>, Susan Dolinskl <SDolinski@BCLC.com>, Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>

Subject: Re: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

Thanks, Laura. Any objections or suggestions Rob an Susan?

s 15(1)

On Sep 21, 2017, at 9:56 PM, Laura Plva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com> wrote:

Here it Is. Want to ensure | have it right before i re-send to GCPE

“We take our responsibility to manage gaming in our province very seriously and always welcome the
opportunity to improve our practices,” said BCLC President & CEO Jim Lightbody. “We have zero
tolerance for criminals who may attempt to target our business. If there Is something more we can do
to improve the anti-money laundering efforts in BC, we'll do it.”

Erom: Jim D. Lightbody

Sent: September 21, 2017 9:15 PM
To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>
Ce: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>; Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bcic.com>; Susan Dolinski

<5Dolinski@BCLC.com>

Subject: Re: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

Laura,

On further "review” I'm concerned readers may confuse my first sentence in the quote as to the MNP review

vs the "new" impending review.
Let's omit that opening sentence and put my "said Jim Lightbody..." after my comment about "we take.."

1 would also like Is in the IN to point out the frequency and depth of the annual AML audits we undergo and
point out the MNP work was a review of River Rock only.

Thanks,
Jim



s 15(1)

On Sep 21, 2017, at 9:00 PM, Laura Piva-Babcock <EPiva-Babcock@bcele.com> wrote:

Laura Piva-Babcock

BCLC Director Communications
s17(1)

From: Laura Piva-Babcock <tPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 7:59:31 PM PDT

To: Nelson, Tiffany GCPE:EX <Tiffany.Nelson@gov.bc.ca>, Megan Harris
(Megan.Harris@gov.bc.ca) <Megan. Harris@gov.bc.ca>

Cc: Doug Cheng <DCheng@bclc.com>, Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com:>
Subject: NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx

Hi,
Jim Lightbody's quote is inserted. As discussed we will have links in the morning.
Thanks for your assistance. Have a good evening.

Laura Piva-Babcock
Director, Communications
74 West Seymour Street, Kamloops, B.C. V2C 1E2

T 250 828 6576 Cs 17(1)

Connect with us:
Twitter @BCL.C| Facebook | bele.com

Last year more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health
care, education and community groups across B.C,

<NR -AML Report- 20SEPT17 - FINAL.docx>



Kevin Simcoe

From: Rob Kroeker

Sent: September-22-17 10:51 AM

To: Laura Piva-Babcock; Susan Dolinski; Jim D. Lightbody

Subject: RE: NR FINAL - Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

Thanks Laura.

From: Laura Piva-Babcock
Sent: September-22-17 10:48 AM
To: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bele.com:>; Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>; Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@bcele.com>

Subject: RE: NR FINAL - Report on antl-money laundering released, review to follow
http://corporate.bclc.com/who-we-are/corporate-reports/reports-disclosures.html

it Is now a featured report on this page. |am awaitiné word from gepe on whether they changed their link. L

From: Rob Kroeker
Sent: September 22, 2017 10:21 AM
To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@hclc.com>; Susan Dolinskl <SDalinski@BCLC.com>; Jim D. Lightbody

<JDLightbody@bclc.com>
Subject: RE: NR FINAL - Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

Thanks Laura - great solution.

-----Original Message-----

From: Laura Piva-Babcock

Sent: September-22-17 10:21 AM

To: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>; Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>; Jim D. Lightbody <IDLightbody@bclc.com>
Subject: RE: NR FINAL - Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

{ have sent the actual link to the document te GCPE and asked if they can switch the link on their news release to the exact
destination of our PDF. | will advise when they've responded.

Thanks for your patience all. L

From: Susan Dolinski
Sent: September 22, 2017 10:20 AM
To: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@hclc.com>; Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcic.com>; Jim D. Lightbody

<jDLightbody@bclc.com>
Subject: RE: NR FINAL - Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

Rob - can | ask you to leave this with my team? They have it in hand. We are aware of, and working through these issues, We
had to make a decision given the amount of work the documents required this morning and the amount of time we had with

them.

Susan Dolinski _
Vice President, Social Responsibility & Communications BCLC



2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver 8CV5M 0A6
T 604-228-3096 F 604-225-6422 Cs 17(1}

sdolinski@hclc.com
hele.com

Last year, more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling supported health care, education and community groups across
B.C.

---Qriginal Message-—-

From: Rob Kroeker

Sent: Friday, September 22, 2017 10:19 AM

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcic.com>; Susan Dolinskl <SDolinski@BCLC.com>; Jim D, Lightbody
<iDLightbody@bclc.com>

Subject: RE: NR FINAL - Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

No one is going to find it or even look in the accountability section. it needs to be front and centre, How quickly can we get
that corrected?

From: Laura Piva-Babcock

Sent: September-22-17 10:16 AM

To: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>; Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@ bcle.com>; Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>
Cc: MIM Team <MIMTeam@bclc.com>

Subject: RE: NR FINAL - Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

http://corporate.belc.com/content/dam/bclc/corporate/documents/anti-money-laundering-reviews-audits. pdf

Here is the document it is in the accountability section of this page. We are also making it a feature document. At the top of
the page. We had some challenges with so many documents coming just this morning and additional redacting and proofing
that needed to occur. We had to balance government's deadline with our constraint. Thanks. L

From: Susan Dolinski

Sent: September 22, 2017 10:14 AM

To: Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@bcle.com>; Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@belc.com>; Rob Kroeker
<RKroeker@bclc.com>

Cc: MIM Team <MIMTeam@bclc.com>

Subject: RE: NR FINAL - Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

Thanks Jim - we are working on this ASAP.

Susan Dolinski
Vice President, Soclal Responsibility & Communications BCLC

2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver BC V5M 0A6
T 604-228-3096 F 604-225-64228 17(1)

sdd|inski@bclc.c0m
bele.com



Last year, more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling supported health care, education and community groups across
B.C.

From: Jim . Lightbody

Sent: Friday, September 22, 2017 10:13 AM

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bcle.com>; Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>; Rob Kroeker
<RKroeker@hbclc.com>

Cc: MIM Team <MIMTeam®@bclc.com>

Subject: RE: NR FINAL - Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

When I click on the link to our management response, it's not there........... .

From: Laura Piva-Babcock
Sent: Friday, September 22, 2017 9:58 AM
To: Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@belc.com>; Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>; Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>

Cc: MIM Team <MiMTeam@bclc.com>
Subject: FW: NR FINAL - Report on antl-money faundering released, review to follow
Importance: High

----- QOriginal Message-----

From: Harrls, Megan A GCPE:EX [mallto:Megan.Harris@gov.bc.ca]

Sent: September 22, 2017 9:57 AM

To: Laura Piva-Babecock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>

Subject: NR FINAL - Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

Importance; High
Attached is the final NR going provincewide in the matter of moments,

For immediate Release
2017AG0024-001625
Sept. 22, 2017

Ministry of Attorney General

MNEWS RELEASE
Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

VICTORIA - The Government of B.C, has released a 2016 report commissioned to look at practices and the regulatory regime
refated to suspicious cash transactions at B.C. gaming facilities,

"On assuming responsibllity for gambling in B.C. as part of my ministerial duties, i received a series of briefings that caused me
to believe that our province could do more to combat money laundering at B.C. casinos,” said Attorney General David Eby.
“During these discussions, a publicly funded report that had been commissioned to review anti-money laundering policy and
practices in B.C. was shared with me. This report makes a series of serious recommendations for reform, which should have
been made public at the time the report was complete. | am making that report public today.” :

In the coming weeks, the Attorney General will announce the appointment of an independent expert to review whether there
is an unaddressed, or inadequately addressed, Issue of money laundering in Lower Mainland casinos.

"Criminal activity and money laundering in our casinos and elsewhere in B.C. wili not be tolerated," said Minister of Public
Safety and Solicitor General Mike Farnworth. "These investigations take time because of the many moving pieces and players

3



but JIGIT, which operates under the Combined Forces Special Enforcement Unit, and GPEB have had good success so far and
we fully expect that to continue.”

"We take our responsibility to manage gaming in our province very seriously and always welcome the opportunity to improve
our practices,” said BCLC president and CEOQ lJim Lightbody. "We have zero tolerance for criminals who may attempt to target
our husiness. if there is something more we can do to Improve the anti-money laundering efforts in B.C,, we'll do it."

“The problem of money laundering is complex, but a committed government can make a difference,” said Eby. "We are serious
about doing everything we can to identify money laundering activities, and ensure policies are in place to prevent it from
occurring in B.C. casinos. We will bring in the best experts available to assist us, and | am confident we will succeed, especially

with the continued support of our partners BCLC, casino operators, the police, and the Gaming Policy and Enforcement
Branch.”

A copy of the MNP Report can be found at: https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/sports-recreation-arts-and-
culture/gambling/gambling-in-bc/reports/mnp_repori-redacted, pdf

For a link to BCLC's response to the MNP report and other refative reports: http://corporate.bcic.com/who-we-are/corporate-
reports/reports-disclosures.himi

Quick Facts:

* BCLC is responsible for conduct and management of gambling in B.C.

* GPEB is responsible for the overall integrity of gambling and horse racing in the province.

* MINP LLP were engaged by GPEB to conduct the review on Sept. 8, 2015 and delivered the report on July 26, 2016.

* In 1998, the Province added casino gambling to the responsibilities of the BC Lottery Corporation and made them responsible
for the operation of the casino Industry in B.C.

* In April 2016, GPEB worked with the Policing and Security Branch in the Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor General and
the RCMP to establish the Joint lllegal Gaming Investigation Team (JIGIT). JIGIT, a unit under CFSEU-BC, provides a co-ordinated
enforcement approach from police and GPEB to combat illegal garnbling and money laundering in B.C,

* GPEB has also established an Intelligence unit to provide government with situational awareness of threats to the integrity of
the gambling industry.

Contact:
Government Communications and Public Engagement Ministry of Attorney General

778 678-1572

‘Connect with the Province of B.C. at: www.gov.bc.cafconnect



Kevin Simcoe
ST

M . N
From: Susan Dolinski
Sent: September-22-17 7:39 AM
To: Jim D, Lightbody, Brad Desmarais; Rob Kroeker
Subject: FW: Release FYI

Importance: High

EYI this is the email that went to SPs last night.

Susan Dolinski
Vice President, Social Responsibility & Communications
BCLC

2540 Virlual Way, Vancouver BC VEM 0A8
T 604-228-3096 F 604-225-64225 17(1)

sdolinski@bclc.com

beic.com

Last year, more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling supported health care, education and community groups across
B.C.

From: Laura Piva-Babcock

Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2017 8:26 PM

To: Peter Goudron {pgoudron@bcgia.com) <pgoudron@bcgia.com>; Chuck Keeling {ckeeling@gcgaming.com)
<ckeeling@gcgaming.com>; 'Tamara Hicks' <THicks@ pargvancouver.com>; Tanya Gabara (tgabara@cascadescasino.ca)
<tgabara@cascadescasino.ca>; Shiera Stuart - Gateway HO {sstuart@gatewaycasinos.com) <sstuart@gatewaycasinos.com>;
jnijjar@gatewaycasinos.com; Sonja Mandic {smandic@gcgaming.com) <smandic@gcgaming.com>

Subject: Release FY!

importance: High

Hello,

{ got word this afternoon that tomorrow government Is proactively releasing the MNP AML Report which was completed in
2016. it was commissioned by GPEB to analyze items including: practices related to source of funds; best practices in the
gaming sector in refation to the “know your customer” framework; assess BCLC's customer due diligence and related overall

compliance.

Minister Eby will be announcing a review of AML In the province in a news release tomorrow morning, We understand the
release will go out and the report will he live on GPEB’s website at just hefore 10 a.m. Given this is government’s report, | am
hot able to provide it. Our response will be that we welcome this review and are open to understanding how we can further
enhance our measures. We take our responsibility to manage gaming In this province very seriously. We have zero tolerance
for criminals who may target our business and if there is something more we can do to enhance our program, we'li do it

We will loop you in on our media calls tomorrow and if you get any calls, let us know. If t get further information as the day
progresses, I'll send it along.

Thanks,
Laura Piva-Babcock

Director, Communicalions
74 West Seymour Street, Kamloops, B.C. V2C 1E2



T 250 828 5576 Cs 17(1)

Connect with us:
Twilter @BCLC] Facebook | hcle.com

Last year more than $1 biflion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into heaith care, education and community
groups across B.C.



Kevin Simcoe

NN N KM SR D T MO e TSR
From: Ross Alderson
Sent: September-22-17 10:52 AM
To: Sarah Morris
Subject: Fwd: AML. Media today

Ross Alderson
Director, AML & Investigations
BCLC

From: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>

Date: September 22, 2017 at 10:24:38 AM PDT

To: All- Corporate Security & Compliance <All-CorporateSecurity&Compliance@BCLC.com>
Subject: AML Media today

Good morning everyone,

This morning a government press release relating to AML in Casinos was made public, It relates to a review of the River Rock
Casine in early 2016 by a company called MNP. The review was commissioned by GPEB,

The news release can'be found here: https://news.gov.be.cafreleases/2017AG0024-001625

BCLC did provide a response to the review as well as results and action plans of two other AML audits, one either slde of the
GPEB review.

That Information can be found here: http://corporate.bclc.com/content/dam/bcle/corporate/documents/anti-money-
laundering-reviews-audits.pdf

The Vancouver Sun has already picked up on the story and their press release is found here:

http://vancouversun.com/news/local-news/blg-cash-flowing-into-river-rock-casino-sparks-money-laundering-probe

If you have any guestions related to any of these releases please feel free to contact me directhy.
I understand Jim will Iikeh} also address this in his Monday newsletter.

Regards

Ross Alderson cams.

Director, AML & Investigations

Corporate Sectrily and Compliance Division, BCLC
2840 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V5M 0AS

T 804 2256382 Cs 17(1) F 604 225 6488

s Yes, and...e



ralderson@bclc.com

Connect with us:
Twitter @BCLC| Facebpok BCCasinos | Blog | bele.com

Last year, more than $1 biflion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into heallth care, education and community groups across
B.C. '



Kevin Simcoe

— LT R A
From: Laura Piva-Babcock
Sent: September-22-17 10:01 AM
To: Jim D, Lightbody
Subject: FW: Media Coverage of AML audit
Importance: High

From: Sarah Morris

Sent: September 22, 2017 10:00 AM

To: CommsMediaPA <CommsMediaPA@bclc.com>

Ce: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@hcle.com>; Susan Dolinski <Sbolinski@BCLC.com>
Subject: Media Coverage of AML audit

importance: High

Good morning,

https://news.gov.bc.ca/releases/2017AG0024-001625

Some of the coverage so far:

http://thebreaker.news/news/casino-money-laundering/

http://vancouversun.com/news/local-news/big-cash-flowing-into-river-rock-casino-sparks-money-laundering-probe

Charmaine de Silvaverified account @char_des 1mi minute ago
The report into anti-money laundering at #BC casinos prepared by @MNP_LLP is NOT a review. @Dave_Eby says he'll

cammission review, #bcpoli

Charmaine de SilvaVerified account @char_des 2m2 minutes ago
The big Q did @bcliberals do enough to combat money laundering, considering cash flowing into casinos like

@riverrockcasino? #bcpoli

Richard ZussmanvVerified account @richardzussman 1ml minute ago
New report recommends Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch works with BCLC to support cash-alternatives at casinos.

#hepoli



BCLC AML Chronology
2000 FiInTRAC created.

2000-2005 BCLC AML Program Developed

2003-2009 BCLC Operational Gaming Compliance begin conducting twice-yearly —Money
Laundering Act Audits.

2008-2009 BCLGC Internal AML Audit
2009 Pilot for PGF Program
BCLC proactively discloses STRs to RCMP and GPEB

BCLC Operational Gaming Compliance LCTR & Cheque Issuance Audit implemented (co
New dedicated PGF Reviews implemented nducted quarterly)

2009-2010 FINTRAC Examination
2010 Efectronic Repotting to FINTRAC

Upgrades to iTRAK including drop down list of occupations and bi-ennial reminder
prompts to revalidate patron I and updated occupationfaddress etc.

BCLC Audit Services starls ongoing menitoring of LCT FINTRAC reporting
2010- 2011 Deloitie AML Audit
2011 Development of Cash Alternatives
2011-2012 Navigant AML Audit
Development of Cash Alternatives
2012 Player Gaming Fund accounts added to Policy
More defined FINTRAC and AML Palicy implemented
BCLC Operational Gaming Compliance New dedicaled PGF Reviews implemented
FINTRAC Examination
2013 Dedicated AML Unit created (3 Persons)
Price Waterhouse AML Audit
Submitted further cash alternatives proposal to GPEB (Sept)
BCLC Audit Services starts ongoing monitcring of STR review and reporting
2014 FINTRAC Examination

iTrak upgrade to to allow Batch reporting of FINTRAC



2015

Suspicious Transaction Reports,

ACAMS membership and training obtained for Compliancefinvestigations Staff

s 15(1)

s 15(1) RFP

Business Intelligence tool operationalized

Information Sharing Agreement with RCMP (includings 15(1) )
BCLC implement Public Safety ands 15(1) Program.

BCLC meet with CFSEU to present targeting proposal for "top ten target list” including
522 group. {pre: e-Pirate}

New Director of AML position created (AML Dept. expanded 1o 4)

BCLC re submit three cash alternatives to GPEB for approval. Delimit Convenience
(safety) cheque, International EFT's and Credit.

Casino Pairon Education protocol implemented

BCLC received information that 2-3 illegal gaming houses were being patronized in
Richmond, BC.

" Manager of Cash Alternatives/Projects added to AML Dept (5)

GPEB inform BCLC that GPEB would not investigate illegal gaming or Money Laundering
as to challenges within the Gaming Control Act as lo authorities.

Purchased Corporate ACAMS membership for BCLC (up to 76 individuais) Also provided
positions for GPEB.

s 15(1}

Plan Chip Swap Project at RRCR

Further speclfic locations of illegal casinos were alleged. A website "“Vansky" was
identified as openly advertising for baccarat dealers. All Intel was immediately reported to
GPEB.

Provincial AML Gaming Summit conducted at BCLC (Present include GPEB, BGLC,
RCMP, CBSA, CRA, FinTRAC, Police Services as well as representatives from Financial

and Gaming Industry.
s 15(1)
Ernst & Young AML Audit

Quarterly AML Meetings with SP



2018

s 15(1)

Casino Service Providers advised ofs 15(1)

*Players interviewed and admitted in some cases receiving cash from unknown sources
and paying back in China. Provided ph numbers and names of cash facilitators. All
relevant information was passed on fo RCMP and GPEB

Casino Service Providers advised of ang 15(1)

s 15(1) suspended 1 day before project 1o occur. BCLC were asked to
suspend the operation due to concerns it may inhibit the police investigation.

{Sept 2015 — Sept 2016} MNP/GPEB AML Review of River Rock Casino

s 15(1)

Chip Swap aperation conducted at RRCR
BCLC do Student/Housewife source of wealth review

Restructure of AML & Investigations groups (AML team expanded to nine (9) to include
Specialized AML Investigative and Intelligence units)

JIGIT formation announcement

Provideds 15(1) to JIGIT
Provideds 15(1) JIGIT
s 15(1)
s 15(1)

FINTRAC AWML Examination

5 15(1)

Latter from GPEB regarding two of the three cash allernative proposals from 2013. (credit
was dropped} Letter spacifically states, "There is no requirement for BCLGC to seek GPEB

approval of these specific proposals in and of themselves."

BCLC begins putting policy in places 15(1) for the two
cash alternatives.

s 15(1)
s 15(1)
s 15(1)



2017

s 15(1)

5 15(1)

Implemented International Wire Transfers and Delimited Conventence Gheques for PGF
Patrons

s 15(1)

s 15(1)

s 15(1)

s 15(1)

Updated I1SA with RCMP (include JIGIT)

BCLC/RCMP 1SA suspended on the request of GPEB without hotice or consuftation with

BCLC. BCLC objected and consulted with RCMP who reinstated. However thes 15(1)
between Nov 2016 and Sep 2017 effectively crippling BCLC's ability to

proactively ban organized crime figures.

s 15(1)

GPEB/BCLC Investigations Information sharing Profocol implemented

Inaugural muiti4urisdictional Canadian Gaming AML Summit.

s 15(1)

s 15(1)
1.8.A with CFO implemented
s 15(1)
New Online AML Training course

PGF Review retired and review points consolidated into AML, BCLC, Cage and
Corporate Social Respensibility Reviews

s 15(1)
s 15(1)
Emnst & Young AML Audit
s 15(1)
s 15(1)



Kevin Simcoe

B e

From: Ross Alderson

Sent: October-02-17 12:14 PM

To: Kevin Sweeney, Bal Barnra; Daryl Tottenham; Kris Gade
Subject: FW: CBU: German - money laundering

Fyi

Reasonable response in my opinion

Ross Alderson cams.
Director, AML & Investigations
Corporate Security and Compliance Division, BCLC

2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BG, V5M 0AG
T 604 225 6382 Cs 17(1) F 604 225 6488

sYes, and...»
ralderson@bclc.com

Connect with us;
Twitter @BCLC| Facebook BCCasinos | Blog | belc.com

Last year, more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health cars, education and community groups across
B.C.

From: Laura Piva-Babcock
Sent; Monday, October 02, 2017 6:20 AM
To: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>; Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCL.C.com>

Subject: Fwd: CBU: German - maney laundering

From: tho@gov.bc.ca <tho@gov.be.ca>
Date: Octoher 1, 2017 at 9:47:27 PM PDT

Subject: CBU: German - money laundering I

s 3(1)0)




s 3(1)()

s 3(1)()

s 3(1)(



s 3(1)1

This e-mai! is a service provided by Government Communications and Public Engagement and is only intended for the original addressee.
All content is the copyrighted property of a third party creator of the material, Copying, retransmitting, redistributing, selling, licensing, or
emailing the material to any third party or any employee of the Province who is not authorized to access the material is prohibited.



Kevin Simcoe

SRR S S T A AR
From: Ross Alderson
Sent; September-25-17 2:25 PM
To: Rob Kroeker
Subject: FW: KM QA_MNP Report and AG Review_draft_21 Sep 2017
Attachments: KM QA_MNP Report and AG Review_draft_21 Sep 2017RA.docx
Fyi.

Ross Alderson cams.

Director, AML & Investigations

Corporate Security and Compliance Division, BCLC
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V6M 0A6

T 604 225 6382 Cs 17(1) F 604 2256488

sYeos, and...»

ralderson@hbclc.com

Connect with us;
Twitter @BCLG| Facebook BCCasinos | Blog | belc.com

Last year, more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling aclivities went back into health care, education and communily groups across
B.C.

From: Ross Alderson

Sent: Monday, September 25, 2017 2:24 PM

To: Angela Law <Alaw@BCLC.com>

Cc: MIM Team <MiMTeam@hbcle.com>

Subject: RE: KM QA_MNP Report and AG Review_draft_21 Sep 2017

| made a few changes anyway. Rob will want to review as well no doubt

Ross Alderson CAMS,

Director, AML & Investigations

Corporate Security and Compliance Division, BCLC
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V&M 0AG

T 604 225 6382 Cs 17(1) F 604 225 8488

eYes and...e

ralderson@bclc.com

Connect with us;
Twitter @BCLE| Facebook BCCasinos | Blog | belc.com

Last year, more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health care, education and community groups across
B.C.

From: Angela Law
Sent: Monday, September 25, 2017 1:59 PM



To: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>
Cc: MIM Team <MIMTeam@belc.com>
Subject: RE: KM QA_MNP Report and AG Review_draft_21 Sep 2017

So sorry Ross.

Laura has requested to look at it first. | wasn’t aware that she had not had the chance to review in detail yet.
Thanks,

Angela

From: Angela Law

Sent: Monday, September 25, 2017 1:11 PM
To: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>

Cc: MIM Team <MIMTeam@bclc.com>
Subject: KM QA_MNP Report and AG Review_draft_21 Sep 2017
Hi Ross,

Attached is the original QA and KM document that was developed in response to the MNP report and AG review.

While we didn’t end up using it on Friday we wanted to run it by you for review should we need to fall up on some high level
holding messages.

Could you take a first stab at this?
Thanks,

Angela



Kevin Simcoe

- S L
From: Ross Alderson

Sent: October-03-17 7:03 AM

To: Daryl Tottenham; Bat Bamra

Cc Kevin Sweeney

Subject: FW; Media Monitoring Report - Monday, October 02, 2017

Hi guys see below.,
Can | ask your assistance in the following

1. Bal/Daryl perhaps get Andrea to compile electronic file from itrak of all 8 22 jtrak reports,s 22
Daryl can

provide the emails
Kevin can you help with the number 2. Bal/Daryl please make sure we include alt aml issues

Lastly Bal can you set up a meeting room for 1pm for 2 hours for this afternoon for EY initial meeting. We need to
include kevin and Keith boland on the invite as well. They likely won't need to be there for 2 hours
Thanks

[ will be in a little laters 22
Ross Alderscn

Director, AML & Investigations
BCLC

From: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclic.com>

Date: October 3, 2017 at 3:47:47 AM PDT

To: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>

Cc: Kevin Swéeney <lKSweeney@BCLC.com>, Brad Desmarais <BDesmarais@bclc.com>, Jennifer Keim

<JKeim@BCLC.com>
Subject: FW: Media Monitoring Report - Monday, October 02, 2017

Good morning Ross

I am hoping things are remaining manageable. If workload issues arise please advise as soon possible so [ can
address.

You have likely seen much of the AMI, media below. I remain concerned over the tone of the coverage and the
erroneous information being repeated particularly around the suggestions that BCLC must have known about

criminal activity.

Please continue to focus on the material for Bud and getting the EY audit underway Once those pieces are in place 1
would like you and your team to turn to two additional pieces:



1.8 15(1)

2. Please compile a list of every instance of where we have brought a compliance lapse to the attention of
management at RRCR for the time period of Januvary 1, 2015 to August 31, 2017 along with the supporting
documentation giving the notice (letter, email, calendar entry showing Meeting). These are not just AML, there were
at least 2 privacy ones. On the list please note those that were reported to GPEB

Thanks for the continued hard work on this matter. You and the team are doing a great job,

Rob

s 15(1)

From: Sarah Morris <SMorris@BCLC.com>

Date: Monday, Oct 02, 2017, 5:30 PM

To; MM- All Users <MM-AllUsers@BCLC.com>

Subject: Media Monitoring Report - Monday, October 02, 2017

s 3(N0



s 3(1)()

Terms of Use - This summatry is a service provided by Government Communications and Public Engegement and is only intended for original addressee.
AH content is the copyrighted property of a third party creator of the maderial. Copying, retransmitting, redistributing, seliing, licensing, er emailing the
material to any third party or any employee of the Province who is not authorized to sccess the material is prohibited.
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Kevin Simcoe

-
From: Brad Desmarais
Sent: October-03-17 9:04 AM
To: Jim D. Lightbody
Subject: Fwd: AML Timeling
Attachments; BCLC AML Program Chronology.docx; 8 22 Timeline until Sept 2017.docx

From: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>

Date; Octoher 3, 2017 at 2:37:42 AM PDT

To: Brad Desmarais <BDesmarais@bclc.com>

Ce: Jennifer Keim <JKeim@BCLC.com>, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.coms>
Subject: AML Timeline

Hi Brad,

Please find attached draft AML Timeline and® %2 timeline for your review
All supporting documents for folder are with legal services found here

s 15(1)

Regards

Ross Alderson cams,

Director, AML & Investigations

Corporate Security and Compliance Division, BCLC
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V5M 0AB

T 604 2256382 Cs 17(1) F 804 225 6488

sYes, and...s

ralderson@bclec,com

Connect with us;
Twitter @BCLC| Facebovk BCCasinos | Blog | belc.com

Last year, more than §1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health care, education and community groups across
B.C.



Kevin Simcoe
A o
From: Laura Piva-Babcock
Sent: October-05-17 12:02 PM
To: Susan Dolinski; Jim D, Lightbody, Brad Desmarais; Rob Kroeker; Kevin Sweeney
Subject: GPEB FOI - list of documents
Attachments: FOI Issues Scan.docx

Hi,

While the team is busy conducting the issues scan, | got Sandra to develop a list of the documents included in this FOI. This
gives you an Idea of what the requester is getting and perhaps some of these documents/topics are familiar to some of you.

Many thanks to Sandra for her quick work! L



. » & & &

- & & » & = L]

FOl Issues Scan

Letter from Len Meilleur to John Mazure re: Implementation of the Transaction Assessment Team
(TAT) 2017-04-06, 9 pages

Final Draft: Concept Paper — Cash in Casinos -Version 11, 2015-07-20, 16 pages

Presentation: Provincial AML Strategy Update by John Mazure March 2017, 17 pages

Charts: Qitly SCT vs. PGF Deposits, monthly PGF Deposits for F2015/16 and 2016/17 YTD,
Annual PGF Deposits 2012/13 to 2016/17 w/ s.2+w/o .22, prepared by GPEB Compliance Div.
2017-01-27, 4 pages

PGF Program — Emeraing Concerns 2017-01-17, 2 pages )
Charts: Suspicious Currency Transactions by Denomination 2010/11 to 2016/17 (YTD) + 2015/16
and 2016/17 and Notes and Observatigns 2017-01-13, 3 pages _

Charts: SCT by Month for F2015-16 and 2016/17, prepared by GPEB 2017-03-08, 2 pages
Charts: SCT by Denomination 2010/2011 to 2016/17 + Notes and Observations prepared by
GPEB 2016-09-16, 3 pages

Advice to Minister, Issues Note: BC Anti-Money Laundering Strategy ~ MoF 2016-03-24 {de
Jong) 3 pages

Advice fo Minister, Estimates Note Gaming Audits and Results 2016-05-10, 2 pages

Estimates Note — Issue: Joint lllegal Gaming Investigation Team — 2 pages

MoF-GPEB, Q&8A: Topic: AML - 2 pages

MoF — GPEB, EN: Issue: AML — 3 pages

MoF — Briefing Document to Cheryl Wenezenki-Yolland, initiated by Len Meilleur: 2016 MNP
Repart on AML Practices in Gaming Facilities 2016-09-15, 8 pages

MoF — Briefing Document to Hon. Michael de Jong, Initiated by Cheryl Wenezenki-Yolland: 2016
MNP Rebort on AML Praglices in Gaming Facllities 2016-03-30, 8 pages

MoF — Briefing Document to Cheryl Wenezenki-Yolland Initiated by John Mazure: Update on the
JIGIT 2016-10-05, 3 pages

Mandate Leiter to Bud Smith from Hon. Michael de Jong, 8 pages

Chart: SCT by Year: 2010/11_to 2015/16 prepared by GPEB 2016-04-07

Chart; SCT by Month: 2015/2016 prepared by GPEB 2016-04-07

Internal Memo to Len Meilleur from Karen Roberts re: COMM-8604- River Rock "High Roller’
QOccupational Analysis 2016-08-186, 17 pages

Internal Mamo to Len Meilleur from Parminder Basi re; COMM-8611 Follow Up: Cash Buy-Ing
Conducted at River Rock Casino Cages 2016-02-15, 4 pages

Internal Memo to Len Meilleur from Parminder Basi re: COMM-8621 River Rock Cagino Cash
Transfer Analysis between High Limit Cages and Vaults 2016-04-27, 6 pages

GPER 2016/17 High Volume Slot Play Review 2018-12-23, 11 pages

Internal Memo to Len Meilleur from Bojan Nikolic and Terry Jacob re: Compliance with BCLC
Directive related o Unsourced Cash and Chips 2016-06-21, 3 pages

Chart: SCT by denomination 2010/11 to 2015/18, prepared by GPEB 2016-03-30

Chart: SCT by denomination 2015/16, prepared by GFEB 2016-03-30

Chart: PGF Deposit Analysis w/ 8.22 — Jan 1, 2013 — Nov 30, 2017: $1.7B, 1 page

Chart: PGF Deposit Analysis w/0 s.22 — Jan 1, 2013 ~ Nov 30, 2017: $1.8B, 1 page

PGF Program — Emerging Concerns, 3 pages .

Chart: Manthly PGE Deposits for F2016/16 and 2016/17_+ PGF Program —~ Emerging Concerns,
prepared by GPEB 2017-01-17, 3 pages

Chart: SCT by denomination 2010/11 to 2016/17, prepared by GPEB 201 7-04-13, 1 page

Chart: SCT by dengmination 2015/16 and 2016/17, prepared by GPEB 2017-04-13, 1 page
Chart: SCT Comparison to New Money PGF Deposits, Jan 1, 2015 to Mar 31, 2017 + Notes and
Observations, prepared by GPEB, 2017-01-13, 2 pages

Ghart: Ortly SCT vs. PGF Deposits 2012/13 to 2016/17, prepared by GPEB 201 7-01-30, 1 page
PGF Program — Emeraing Concerns, prepared by GPEB 2017-01-17

MoF Estimates 2016 Table of Contenls, 1 page




Internal Memo to Len Meilleur from Tim Storms 2016-04-27 re: Unusual Financial

Transaction/Suspicious Transaction Verification Review Phase || — COMM 8629, 10 pages

internal Memo to Len Meilleur from Tim Storms + Sue Whittred 2016-12-19 re: High Volume Slot

Play Analysis COMM-8687, 11 pages
Audit Presentation Compliance Division by Doug Mayer, Lynn Li and Parminder Basi - 2016-06-

08, 16 pages




Kevin Simcoe
M

_ KN
From: Laura Piva-Babcock
Sent: October-05-17 3:29 PM
To: Jim D. Lightbody; Rob Kroeker; Brad Desmarais; Kevin Sweeney; Susan Dolinski
Subject: GPEB FOI
Attachments: IN_GPEB FOI FIN-2017-71581_AML. Records_draft_5 QOct 2017.docx
Hello,

Here is the team’s review of the FO!. This is a hefty scan of a large volume of documents. We have not included messaging as
we will likely only be responding that we can’t respond to these matters.

Let me know if you need something further,

Thanks, Laura



INFORMATION NOTE GPEB FOI FIN-2017-71581:
British Columbia Lottery Corporation GPEB AML Records
Date: October 5, 2017 (Jan 2016~ May 2017)

KEY FACTS:

On October 6, 2017, GPEB is releasing phase one (of three phases) of responsive records to a media
applicant who made the following FOI request: “All final reports and summary documents from the
Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch related to concerns of money laundering in B.C. and criminal
activity related to money laundering.” (Date Range for Record Search: From 02/01/2016 to 05/05/2017)

The phase one record is 210 pages, and includes presentations, reports, briefing notes, estimates notes
and summaries drafted by GPEB staff for GPEB Executive and then Minister Michael de Jong.

GPEB has advised there are 2,447 pages of responsive records in total.

Phase two is expected to be released mid-late November 2017.
Phase three is expected to be released mid-late January 2018.

OF NOTE:

Page 1-9:

June 2017 proposal from Len Meilleur, GPEB ED Compliance, to John Mazure, GPEB ADM, regarding
Imptementation of the Transaction Assessment Team (TAT) to expand on AML efforts and increase high
leve! investigations targeting the integration of proceeds of crime into the B.C. economy through casinos.

Page 2.
Notes GEPB investigators in Burnaby (Grand Villa casino) collected data showing buy-ins in excess of

$50k using $20 bills.
Notes that based on intelligence from police, BCLC, and GPEB it's believed illegitimate lenders are using

the proceeds of crime to finance patrons gambling at casinos in B.C. Over a month, there more than
$14M in $20 buy-ins. The "facllitators” were observed ih and around the casino being supplied cash "at
odd hours, ocutside usual bank hours of operation.”

As a result, the report recommends the creation of JIGIT; MNP review and report; and the
implementation of a GPEB Intelligence Unit.

Page 3.
GPEB Intelligence Unit reports the organized crime presence in and around BC casinos is a viable threat

to public safety.
Notes various BCLC initiatives and focus on AML pragramming to help improve monitoring, info sharing
with law enforcement atc.

Page 4:
Despite a downward trend in STRs, GPEB's compliance division raises concerns about:

» Source of cash and how It's bundled, obtained and accepted by SP staff.

e The fact SP staff accept cash, BCLC reports to FINTRAC, but there’s no assessment of whether
cash should be refused

« Number of STRs filed in B.C. are higher than other jurisdictions, and there's been an uptick in
2017

Page 5:
Concerns raised around PGF accounts and funds,

Report states that while it's generally positive PGF accounts have increased, the majority of bank drafts
accepted by SPs without knowing the source of funds, and some drafts are blank with no name entered.



Also, the customer due diligence conducted on account halders responsible for a significant amount of
PGF activity may not be sufficient. Need to determine if patron has a legitimate bank account in Canada
from which the draft has been obtained.

Page 10;
July 2015 Concept paper regarding cash in casinos, with new strategies proposed including:

Directive to BCLC to further develop and implement enhanced Customer Due Diligence program.
Particular focus on source of funds assessment,

Develop and implement additional cash alternative.

Enhanced coliaborative intelligence, analysis, audit, compliance and enforcement between
BCLC, GPEB and other stakeholders.

+ Public info and education strategy.

* b+ b

Page 18:
Outlines opportunity for BCLC/GPEB Intelligence to share resources and access systems being put in

place (SAS).

Report also points out that despite efforts to focus on introducing cash alternatives since the 2011 AML
Raview, STRs are on the increase, and points to gap in BCLC's due diligence framework (source of
funds) as a potential key factor.

Year # susplelous Transactlons Reports to FINTRAC
2010/11 {491

2011/12 837

2012{13 939

2013/14 1254

201415 | 1737

Page 21:

Report notes that a few high value patrons accounts for a significant portion of BCLC revenue and a
corresponding number of STRs. These clients also prefer using cash. As such the report says the impact
on these patrons needs to be considered when enhance AML due diligence regime/KYC program.

Page 22.
Notes BCLC already employs a robust client due diligence process that includes background checks,

interviews and monitoring. New considerations include a source of funds declaration or questionnaire as
part of a client assessment pilot project.
States vast majoring of STRs are limited to "a few gaming facilities”, a focus should be made on those.

Page 24.
Discussion around assessing the need for a “joint interdiction team” as “a last resort” in a fulsome AML

compliance program for BC casinos.
Recommendation that BCLC consider implementing Board AML Oversight Committee to provide
direction and remove perception of bias in area of revenue vs compliance.

Page 26-44:
March 2017 Provincial AML Strategy Update powerpoint presentation by John Mazure

Page 45:
January 2017 reports including:

Quarterly STR vs PGF deposit charis for FY 15/16 and 16/17
Monthly/Annual PGF deposit charts for FY 15/16 and 16/17

Page 49-50:
Emerging Concerns with PGF Program:

« Policy concerns around cash deposits (cash, similar to chips, should only be accepted for deposit
in the same gaming day or session)



« Dependence on a small number of patrons to generate the majority of doliar volume activity (ie:
10 PGF account holders deposited 47% of the total $301M into their accounts Jan- July 2016).

» Dependence on bank drafts. No uptake on other forms of authored deposits by patrons (ie wire
transfer, EFT, certified cheque etc)

« Concerns about BCLC dashboards with limited info on PGF activity beyond deposit level and
accouht openings.

» Concerns around monsy service businesses.

Page 6%
Chart outlines majority of STRs are in $20 bill denominations between 2010 and 2017,

Page 53;
Reference to spike in STR reporting between December and January 2016 due to "under-reporting

issue” at River Rock Casino.

Page 61.
March 2016 BGC Anti-Money Laundering Strategy Issues Note for Minister de Jong

Direct reference to Underreporting of STRs at the River Rock Casino — did not review LCTs of $50k or
less- and BCLC's subsequent Voluntary Self-Declaration of Non-Compliance to FINTRAC.

Advice to Minister section of Issues Note states that since the disbandment of HGET in 2009,
investigations and enforcement of illegal gambling activities had been conducted by individual police
departments in “an ad hoc manner with assistance from GPEB where requested.”

Pg. 102:
Graph shows year-over-year increase in Suspicious Currency Transactions (SCT) from 2010/11-

2014/15, with a decrease from 2014/15 to 2015/186.

Pg. 103;
In & month-to-month graph of SCTs for 2015/16, the month of July had the highest amount at just over

$20M. This timeframe coincides with when MNP monitored transactions at River Rock for their report.

Pg 105-120;
Internal Memo on breakdown of the occupations of “high roller” River Rock patrons between Jan 2015-

Dec 2015.

Pg. 105:

« 42 Housewives with buy-ins of $50K or more had 495 transactions, and were directly involved in
87 Unusual Financial Transactions (UFT).

+ 9 students with buy-ins of $50K or more had 82 transacticns, and were directly involved in 11
UFTs

« There were 62 patrons with buy-ins of $1M or more that had 1915 transactions and were directly
involved in 611 UFTs and indirectly in another 156 UFTs,

+ The legitimacy of 52 companies listed by the top 62 patrons were reviewed and tested, and found
to be inconclusive. There were 43 companies with Chinese names.

» Real Estate was the largest occupational group both in terms of the number of patrons and total
buy-ins.

+ The most common reason for UFTs were for large cash buy-ins, and buy-ins with a large number
of small denomination bills.

Pg. 107:
“A significant number of patrons did not indicate their company or position so they were put into the

‘Non-Stated' group....'Housewife’ and ‘Student’ were classified into their own groups as their buy-in
habits were of particular interest.....A total of 800 patrons were included in this analysis with total
cash buy-ins of $243M., '

Pg. 108 {reiterated on Pg. 117);




+ 38 students had notable buy-ins of $2.3M
s 75 Housewives had fotal buy-ins of $14.3M

Pg. 111: "There are ocecupations, such as Housewife, Student or Server that are not typically able to
support the level of cash buy-ins made by those patrons.”

Pa. 112: "32% of all transactions in this group were deemed substantiated unusual transactions.”

Pg.115. "A notable finding is that UFTs arising from associations with other known patrons were more
" prevalent with Housewives than any other occupation reviewed.”

Pg. 117: “The most common reasons for UFTs were large cash buy-ins, buy-in with large numbers
of small denomination bills, not bundled in a manner that would come from a recognized bank and
chips passing — similar to what has been reported in past reviews.”

Pd. 118-120: Charts breaking down cash buy-ins by eccupation and # of transactions.

Pg 121-124.

Internal Memo — Follow up: Cash Buy-ins Conducted at River Rock Cash Cages:
Pg. 121: “Total cash buy-ins conducted at cages for the Period of July 1, 2015-December 31, 20158
were $102,397,000. This represents a decline of 27% from the previous six months."

Pg. 123: In 2015, BCLC's AML unit began issuing letters to high risk patrons advising them they are
no longer permitted to buy-in at any BCLC site with "un-sourced” cash...the significant drop in cash
buy-ins at the cages for the period of July 1, 20115 to December 31, 2015 can be associated, in part,
to the enforcement of this directive by BCL.C and the service provider.”

Pg. 124: BCLC un-sourced cash directives were issued to high limit patrons, who were buying in with
a large volume of small denomination bills. Despite these patrons having a long history of gambling,
the nature of the cash they presented at the casino suggested that the money did not come from a
recognized financial institution and may be of questionable source. Overall, although cash buy-ins at
the cages decreased and PGF activity increased, the net effect was a significant decline in hoth table
drop revenue and net table win at River Rock,

Pg 125-130:
Internal Memo — River Rock Casino Cash Transfer Analysis between High Limit Cages and Vault:

Pg. 125: To prevent a patron from refining bills for the purpose of money laundering, sites are
advised by BCLC to pay out patrons in the same denomination in which they bought in with. This
requirement is not stated in the BCLC Casino and Community Gaming Centre Standards, Policies
and Procedures.

“...casinos in BC are not required to document the denomination of cash payouts to patrons...”

Pag. 126:
s Total cash buy-ins at the high limit cages with $20 bills amounted to $40 million.

s Total cash buy-ins at the high limit cages with $100 bills amounted to $54 million.

= Interviews with site staff indicated that a if a patron engaged reasonable play, they will be paid out
with $100 bills regardless of the denomination they bought in with.

» Our analysis of cash flows between patron buy-ins, the high limit cages and the vault at the River
Rock for the period of July 1, 2015-December 31, 2015, found that nearly all patrons that bought
in with $20 bilis were not pald out in this denomination.

» The notion that nearly all patrons were pald out in $100 bills regardless of the denomination that
they bought in with, in part suggests that the controls in place to prevent a patron from refining
bills may not be functioning as intended.



Pg. 129
“ ..we determined that the practice of paying oul patrons in the same denomination of bills, for which

they bought in with, is the subject to discretion.”

Pg. 130;
“As g result, based on the analysis performed and interviews with site staff it is reasonable to

conclude that refining is occurring through the high limit cages at the River Rock Casino.”

Pg. 139-141: :
GPEB High Volume Slot Play Review 2016/17: (Distributed to Rob Kroeker and Gurmit Aujla)

Pg. 139; “There is a risk that stot machines could be used for refining or “colouring up” —i.e.
converting $20’s into $100's.”

Pg. 140: It appears that while controls are in place within BCLC systems to detect suspicious slot
play, they may not be utilized to their full potential.

Pg. 141: "No significant issues were found during this review...there is nothing that appears
materially suspicious.”

Pg. 142-144
Internal Memo — Compliance with BGLG Directive related to Unsourced Cash and Chips (June 21, 2016)

Pg. 142; “Although the unsourced cash is defined as “all cash without a bank or ATM withdrawal slip,
BCLC allowed players with the directive to buy-in with cash they received as winnings from the
previous five days of gambling.

Pg. 144: “However, there were some instances documented in iTrak where players were able to play
with unsourced chips and where players issued the Directive were found to have been using proxy
bettors on their behalf.”

Pg. 147 & 148:
Graph showing $20 bills making up the majority of SCTs

Pd. 152-161:
Notes emerging concerns with the PGF program.

Page 168:
April 2016 internal memo to Len Meilleur re UFT/STR verification review phase I, which inctuded:

« Reviewing UFTs entered into iTrak Aug - Dec 2015 to determine number that were substantiated
vs unsubstantiated, and review the critera used by BCLC investigator as to why a UFT wasn'’t
reported to FINTRAC as a STR. _

» Reviewing large table buy-ins at River Rock July - Dec 2015 to determine if they were
substantiated UFTs reportable to FINTRAC.

Page 177:
Given the higher risk associated with $20 bills, further analysis was conducted which found transactions

containing $50k+ in $20s are reported as UFTs more often than those that had less than $50K in $20s.

Page 178.
High Volume Slot Play Analysis

» Thereis a risk that slots can be used for refining or “colouring up"/converting $20s into $100s,
however the review noted that overwhelmingly the top 10 slot patrons were using $100 bills when
buying in. As well, these patrons predominantly request cash for payouts as opposed to cheques,
The frequency and scale of their play was noted as a probable indication of problem gambling but
this issue was deemed out of scope of the review.

« No significant issues were found during review of the IVS ticket redemptions.

o The report concludes while controls are in place within BCLC systems to detect suspicious slot
play, they may be utilized to their fult potential.



Pg. 194-196:
River Rock Cash Transfer Analysis Between High Limit Cagers and Vault

99% ($40 million) of cash buy-ins with $20s was transferred down to the vault, and less than 1%
($62K) transferred back up to the high limit cages.

Shorty supply of $20 bilis available at the high limit cages indicated patrons that bought in with
$20 bills were not being paid out in this denomination.

Total cash buy-ins at the high limit cages with $100 bills amounted to $54 million. Of this amount,
only $8 million (15%) was transferred down to the vauit; however, an additional $90 million in
$100 bills was transferred from the vauit back up to the high limit cages.

The excess supply of $100 bills available at the high limit cages indicated that patrons were
primarily paid out in this denomination.

Pg. 196:
The notion that nearly all patrons were paid out in $100 bilis regardless of the denomination that they

bought In with, in part suggests that the controls in place to prevent a patron from refining hills may
not be functioning as intendead,

“As a result, based on ihe analysis performed and interviews.'with site staff it is reagonable o conclude
that refining is occurring through the high limit cages at the River Rock Casino.”

Pg. 200;
NALYSIS OF CASINO! TING THE CASH.
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Pg. 202:

Sites knowingly accepted cash that they acknowledged was obtained from questionable sources.
Industry indicators of suspicious activity were present in all incidents in which the cage accepted
cash,

...prior to the BCLC ‘un-sourced’ cash directive being issued to patrons, very litlle was being
done to prevent buy-ins with questicnable cash from being accepted.



Kevin Simcoe

e
From: Laura Piva-Babcock
Sent: September-22-17 12:01 PM
To: Jim D. Lightbody; Rob Kroeker
Ce; Susan Dolinski; Doug Cheng
Subject: IN_FOI MNP AML. Report to GPEB_21 Sept 2017 _Draft.docx
Attachments: IN_FOI MNP AML Report to GPEB_21 Sept 2017 _Draft.docx
Hi,

We have updated the messaging in the IN to reflect discussions Jim had earlier today with Zdenka and Susan. Let us know If
you have any further changes.

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
groups across B.C. :



INFORMATION NOTE

FOI: MNP AML Report to

British Columbia Lottery Corporation P
Date: September 22, 2017 G EB

KEY FACTS:

On September 22, 2017, the Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch (GPEB) proactively released a
MNP report on anti-money laundering (AML). In addition, the Attorney General of B.C., David Eby, has
ordered an independent review of the AML program in the province.

The MNP report, dated July 26, 2016, was commissioned by GPEB to analyze iterns including: practices
related to source of funds; best practices in the gaming sector in relation to the “know your customer”
framework: assess BCLC's customer due diligence and related overall compiiance and provide
recomnmendations to identify gaps in the described analysis. To supplement the proactive release,
BGLC’s response plan for the MNP report, a voluntary Ernst & Young (EY) assessment of BCLC's AML
program dated November 23, 2015 and a FINTRAC letter on its audit of BCLC's AML program dated
July 14, 2016, will also be released.

MNP obtained its information by conducting 23 interviews with employees and management of both
BCLC and River Rock Casino. Twelve interviews took place at BCLC to provide management and staff
the opportunity to provide feedback and clarify policies and procedures.

The MNP report states it, “does not represent a comprehensive raview of all aspects of the existing AML
compliance processes...was not designed to nor does this report provide any analysis of whether money
laundering or terrorist financing is actually occurring.” The report findings Include the following:

« BCLC’s Customer Due Diligence regime meets Federal regulatory requirements for standard risk
patrons. it notes the process could be enhanced to meet Enhanced Due Diligence for high risk
patrons,

« BCLC's should consider whether its risk assessment process adequately reflects current thinking
around money laundering and terrorist financing risk.

BCLC's AML training programs should be evaluated for up-to-date content and effectiveness.

« \While consistent with regulatory requirements, BCLC should provide further guidance as the
manager and responsible entity for AML regulatory obligations to enhance and enforce
appropriate ‘Know Your Patron’ measures with Service Providers.

The areas of improvement identified by the EY report include:

e Formal approval by the Compliance Officer to key documents associated with BCLC's
compliance regime.

¢ Inclusion of backaround check and initial due diligence screening documents in patron gaming
fund files upon establishing a business relationship with BCLC as defined by FINTRAC.

o Update risk assessment to reflect current risk associated with geographic locations per BCLC
internal policies and procedures.

The FINTRAC audit determined BCLC needed to make enhancements to its ongoing compliance
training program for employees given the size and nature of its business.

BCLC developed and completed a response plan to this report in 2016, BCLC also developed and
completed a response plan to the EY report, and implemented a new AML course, which addresses the
finding in the FINTRAC report.




BCLC RESPONSE POINTS:

This builds on the good work BCLC is already doing. We have a robust anti-money
laundering program in place and we understand the important role we play to support
regulators and law enforcement to combat illegal activity.

BCLC has proactively released its management response to the report released today
by the Attorney General and the results and actions taken following two independent
audits to demonstrate the strength of our program and our commitment to rigorous
review and continuous improvement.

We welcome the Attorney General's independent review on the Province’s anti-money
laundering controls to identify areas that could further enhance our program.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and work closely with regulators and
faw enforcement to combat any suspicious activity.

BCLC routinely conducts independent audits of our AML program and we are
confident that the program we have in place is comprehensive.

BCLC and our service providers are committed to doing our part to prevent, detect,
and report any suspicious activity. If we have any reason to suspect any criminal
behaviour, we immediately report it to focal police and regulators,

Secondary Messages/Examples:

Through an information-sharing agreement with police, BCLC proactively bars
suspected members of organized crime from gaming facilities in B.C. To date, more
than 270 people have been banned.

We've worked collaboratively with the Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch to
increase cashless alternatives at BC casinos and the use of these continues to grow.

In addition to extensive on-site casino operator security staff, BCLC has 15
investigators and 13 compliance officers dedicated to the oversight of the security
and integrity of all gaming facilities across the province. BCLC also has a dedicated
Anti-Money Laundering Unit consisting of five members.

Program Area Confact; Laura Piva-Babcock T: 250-82B-5576
C:s 17(1)



Kevin Simcoe

Co i
From: Rob Kroeker
Sent: October-07-15 5:07 PM
To: Meilieur, Len FIN:EX
Ce: Boychuk, Dave FIN:EX (Dave.Boychuk@gov.be.ca); Rob Kroeker; Ross Alderson; Kevin Sweeney
Subject: MNP Audit - Release of Player Information
Attachments; Marked_Data request fields.xdsx
Hi Len

This note is to confirm our conversation of the this afternoon:

In response to BCLC's concerns about the removal of confidential player information from BCLC’s secure environment
and delivery to MNP, a private sector service provider, GPEB conducted a consult with the OIPC.

522 conducted the consult with the OIPC and advises the OIPC has concluded there are no issues with BCLC
delivering the information requested in the attached excel spreadsheet to GPEB, who will in turn deliver the same
information to MINP.

GPEB advises the OIPC is aware that nelther a Security Threat Risk Assessment nor a PIA has been completed in regard
to this work.

GPEB advises the OIPC is aware that the physical security of the site where the BCLC data will eventually be stored and
used has not been formally assessed nor has the security of the systems that will be employed by MNP.

GPEB is not in a position to share with BCLC the written advice received from the OIPCon the matter,

GPEB will provide a letter to BCLC requesting the information and will state in the letter that it takes responsibility for
the security and safe keeping of BCLC's data.

BCLC continues to work to provide the information that can be extracted electronically, but as noted earlier last week
this requires the development of custom reports just for this purpose. BCLC s targeting end of this week for this work
to be complete.

Completion of the data fields highlighted in red will be a manual process and no estimate for how long it will take to
review the appox 76,000 reports to manually pull this data Is yet avallable. BCLC continues its work on a plan for
addressing this request.

MNP has not executed the non-disclosure agreement provided to it last week.

MNP left a message with BCLC stating that it has issues with the agreement. General Counsel for BCLC has made
attempts to reach MNP in regard to their concerns and has left a message but no further contact from MNP has been
received by BCLC,

ln response tos 22 question, and as has been stated earlier, BCLC confirms there are absolutely no
concerns or guestions raised about GPEB’s statutory authority to require GPEB’s access to this information. BCLC's
concern is that BCLC has never been asked to turn over this type or amount of personal information to a private sector
setvice provider for storage and use at sites and systems that have not been formally assessed or verified. BCLC's only
concern is the security of the very sensitive personal Information that is being taken from its custody. All prior audits,
including FinTRAC audits and audits done by national accounting firms have occurred at BCLC's site to avold this risk
from arising in the first instance, BCLC’s only concern is proper data security and confidentiality.

Think that about covers it. Let me know if you have any corrections or additions.

See you tomorrow morning,

Rob



Kevin Simcoe

From:
Sent;
To:
Subject:

Thanks Bob. Many thanks

Ross Alderson CAMS,

Direclor, AML & Investigations

Ross Alderson
October-03-17 3:12 PM
Bob Madill

RE: AML FOI requests

Corporate Securily and Compliance Division, BCLC
2840 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V5M (0AB

T 604 225 6382 Cs 17(1)

eYes and...s

ratderson@bclc.com

Cannect with us;
Twitter @BCLC] Facebook BCCasinos | Blog | bele.com

F 604 225 6488

Last year, more than $1 billion generated by BCLG gambling activities went back into health care, education and community groups across

B.C.

From: Bob Madill
Sent: Tuesday, October 03, 2017 3:06 PM
To: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>

Subject: RE: AML FOI requests

Hi Ross,

To be more certain, we went back to look in the FOI database from January 1, 2011 forward. In addition to the information |
provided earlier for 2016/17, the following are AMiL-related FOI requests from media from 2011 to 2015:

File #

Applicant
type

Request wording

Status / Outcome

12-071

Media

*...Reports and correspondence regarding suspiclous
financial transactions, attempted suspicious financial
transactions, large cash transactions and
dishursements over $100,000 that occurred on the
following 2012 dates at Hastings Racecourse {both
track and casino): Oct. 5, 6, 7, 13 and 14...."

We advised applicant that the
Proceeds of Crime legislation
governs, and alternatively, ss 15, 16
and 22 of FIPPA applies to withhold

12-059

Media

",..Reparts and correspondence held or generated by
BCLC regarding suspicious financial transactions,
attempted suspicious financial transactions, large cash
transactions and disbursements over $10,000 that
occurred on the following 2012 dates at Hastings
Racecourse: May 5, May 19, June 9, July 2, Aug. 6,
Sept. 9, Oct. 8, Oct. 14 and Oct, 15...."

We advised the applicant that the
Proceeds of Crime legislation
governs, and alternatively, ss 15, 16
and 22 of FIPPA applies to withhold.

12-047

Media

"Any records related to large cash transactions at all
B8CLC regulated casinos for the fiscal year 2009-2010,
2010-2011 and 2011-12 including the name of the

Letter sent to applicant that
Proceeds of Crime legislation
prohibits disclosure, alternatively ss.

i




castno, the number of transactions and the transaction | 15 and 16 of FIPPA applies to
amount.” withhold,
11-079 | Media *... suspicious transaction reports for the Edgewater 34 records {123 pages) withheld in
Casino in Vancouver and for the Lake City Casino in thelr entirety under sections 15(1},
Kelowna for the period September 1, 2010 to August 15(2), 16{1) and 22 of FIPPA. BCLC
31, 2011.." responded by refusing to confirm or
deny the existence of the records.

The answer is the same, the news reference to BCLC documents from FOI did not originate from our FOI processing.

EYI, Sarah Motris is going to check with GPEB if they know the origin of the FOI request leading to the disclosure of information
noted in the news report. She is waiting for Brandy to return to the office so there may be a defay in response.

Let me know if you need anything else.

Thanks
Bob

From: Ross Alderson

Sent: October-02-17 11:13 AM

To: Bob Madill <BMadill@BCLC.com>

Cc: Candice Lantos <Clantos@bclc.com>; Kevin Simcoe <KSimcoe@hclc.com>
Subject: RE: AML FOI requests

Thanks Bob.

Ross Alderson cams.
Director, AML & Investigations
Corporale Security and Compliance Division, BCLC

2940 Virtual Way, Vanegouver, BC, VBM 0AB
T 604 225 6382 Cs 17(1) F 604 225 6488

sYes, and...e

ralderson@bclc.com

Connect with us;
Twitter @BCLC| Facebook BCCasinos § Blog | bele.com

Last year, more than $1 billion gensrated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health care, education and community groups across
B.C.

From: Bob Madill

Sent: Monday, October 02, 2017 10:12 AM

To: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>

Ce: Candice Lantos <Clantos@bcle.com>; Kevin Simcoe <KSimcoe@bclc.com>
Subject: AML FOI requests

Hi Ross,

We've reviewed the news story with the headline 'Whale' gamblers identified by BCLC also placed big bets on B.C. real estate
posted oniine by the Vancouver Sun/Province: http://vancouversun.com/news/local-news/whale-gambters-ided-by-belc-also-

placed-big-bets-on-b-c-real-estate




In particular the author states: “BCLC documents, obtained by Postmedia through freedom of informatlion requests, aflege that
36 VIP gambiers, mostly from China, were linked to massive cash drops from Jin's network.”

| confirm that no such records were provided to Postmedia by BCLC through our FOI processing.

FYI, From January 1, 2017 to present, the following are AML-related FOI requests processed by BCLC:

File #

Applicant type

Request wording

Status / OQutcome

17-032

Researcher

“all correspondence, including emails, between the BCLC
Anti-Money Laundering {AML) unit and any/all employees of
Great Canadian Gaming Corporation and/or its subsidiaries,
Great Canadian Casinos Corp., Great Canadian
Entertainment Centres Lid., Hard Rock Casino Vancouver
{formerly Boulevard Casino), and/for Hastings Entertainment
inc., that reference money laundering from January 1, 2015
to June 14, 2017.” '

Fee estimate, not paid, flle
closed, no records released

17-044

Media

"Briefing notes, issues notes, incident reports and
correspondence regarding the June 13, 2017 announcement
by CFSEU-BC and JIGIT of a nearly year long investigation into
illegal gambling houses and money laundering through
casinos. | believe records would be held or generated by the
offices of CEO Jim Lightbody and Rob Kroeker, VP, corporate
security and compliance.”

Phased release. Shipment one
released Monday September
25, 2017.

17-055

Media

"Regarding the Dec. 5, 2016 BCLC board of directors
meeting, the report and presentation about anti-money
laundering and anti-money laundering training."

In progress {in sign-off)

17-058

Law firm

"All documents and draft documents in any form or medium
(including but not limited to correspendence, memoranda,
emails or other electronic messaging, discussion papers,
reports, notes of discussions or calendar entries} in the
possession or control of the British Columbia Lottery
Corporation {BCLC} that:

A} have as a recipient or sender {including being copled):

i. BCLC;

ii. British Columbia Gaming Policy and Enforcement
Branch (GPEB); or

iii. MNP LLP; and

B} mention in any way:

i. the engagement of MNP LLP by GPEB on September 8,
2015; or

ii. the GPEB AML Report prepared by MNP LLP dated July
26, 2016."

In progress. Clarifying with
applicant / records gathering.

We’ve also looked back through our 2016 FOI files and there are no AML-related FOI requests that would have resulted in
records referenced in the news item being released.

Please let me know if you need anything further.

Bob Madill, cipric
Manager, FO! and Infermation Governance




Corporate Security and Compliance, BCLC

74 Wast Seymour Street
Kamioops, B.C. V2C 1E2

T 250 852 5207 Cs 17(1) F 250 828 5697
bmadili@bclc.com

Connect with us:
Twitter @BCLC| Twilter @BCL.CGameSense | YouTube | Blog | bele.com

Last year, more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health care, education and community
groups across B.C



i{evin Simcoe

R RN
From: Ross Alderson
Sent: Septernber-25-17 3:28 PM
To: Laura Piva-Babcrock
Ce: Angela Law
Subject: RE: for discussion

Specific to cash conditions July 2015, as it reads. But our banning program has been in place for at least a decade including
those suspected of being involved in ML. The MNP report was initiated in early 2016. My suggested edits below

Ross Alderson CAMS.

Director, AML & Investigations

Gorporate Security and Compliance Division, BCLC
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V5M 0A6

T 604 225 6382 Cs 17(1) - 604 225 6488

sYes, and...e

ralderson@hbclc,com

Connect with us;
Twitter @BCLC| Facebook BCCasinos | Blog | bele.com

Last year, more than $1 billion generated by BCLG gambling activities went back into health care, education and community groups across
B.C.

From: Laura Piva-Babcock

Sent: Monday, September 25, 2017 3:11 PM
To: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>
Cc: Angela Law <Alaw@BCLC.com>
Subject: RE: for discussion

Hi Ross,

See #3— can you say when this started. L

4. s BCLC certain that the number of cash coming into River Rock in July 2015 is about $13 million in small bills, or
could the number be even higher? Question is based on the MNP report which points to errors in cash reporting
data, and my assumption that the small biil cash into River Rock could have heen higher for July 20156, And; B.
What is the total amount of funds deposited with cashiers for gambling in July 2015, including cash or cash
alternatives, not including the ‘churn’ or re-gambled money,

BCLC did not conduct the analysis, so we can't speak to the $13.5M number.

There is ho simple way to determine how much of this is ‘new' cash versus churn.

2. Can BCLC provide the actual figures of the top 10 months for small bili cash coming into River Rock casino, from
BCLG reporting data based figures?

No not currently. Detailed analysis of this nature would take a considerable amount of time as this informalion is stored off site



3. Give the MNP audit information, which is based on police intelligence, why was the recommendation that large
cash deposits at River Rock be held until the source of cash is confirmed, not immediately instifuted when the MNP
findings were learned?

BCLC had in fact acted on police inteliigence prior to the MNP report and in July 2015 had implemented a program of banning
patrons from the use of unsourced cash, suspected of being derived from illegal sources, This intelligence was as a result of an
investigation in which BCLG identified and formally reported to law enforcement. The unsourced cash bans are as a result of
intelligence and are yet to be proven in court. Please also refer to Section 4.2 of BCLC Response plan for further information to
this question.,

“Subsections 9.6(1) and (2) of the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act, as well as FinTRAC
Guideline 4, seclion 6 and FinTRAC’s Guidance on the Risk-Based Approach to Combatting Money Laundering and Terriorist
Financing, require BCLC to implement a risk-based compifance regime. A directive issued under the provincial Gaming Control
Act lo BCLC or service providers requiring a prescriplive compliance approach in the form recommended here may give tise fo a
direct conflict of laws as befween federal and provincial requirements, A directive of this nafure could result in confusion for
service provider slaff as between provincial and federal requirements”

4. Wili BCLC consider generally increasing moniforing of play from VIP foreign nationals, and increasing investigation
and compliance staffing af River Rock especially, given the law enforcement intelligence that underground banking
with connections to organized crime, is funding play in BC?

Since 2014/2015 at least $100 million in cash transactions has been replaced with non cash options like bank drafts and
electronic fund transfers. Between 2012/2013 and 2016/2017, there has been approximately $580 million in the increase of non
cash options including bank drafts and electronic fund transfers.

Tens of millions of dollars in cash transactions have been refused under BCLC's program including refusing unsourced cash
fram 150 customers whom have been placed on specific unsourced ¢ash buy-in restrictions. Currently another 150 other
customers are on various other types of conditions including source of funds andfor source of wealth reviews. Information
sharing with the police has allowed BCLC {o identify individuals who are suspected to be involved in or linked to organized

crime.

BCLC does not havs jurisdiction over criminal investigations; however, through the parthership with the police, as well as
utilizing other inteiligence, BCLC has banned 2786 high risk individuals from all provincial gaming sites since 2014,

Additional BCLC staff had been reassigned to assist the AML unit during this review. At the time of the review BCLC had also
been in the planning stages of implementing a restructure of its Investigative and AML Departments which was completed in
April 2016. The MNP reviewer was made aware of these circumstances at the time of thelr review. Any backlog of work that may
have been observed was transitory in nature, '

L.aura Piva-Babcock
Director, Communications
74 West Seymour Street, Kamloops, B.C. V2C 1E2

T 250 828 5576 8 17(1)

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
—_—

M
From: Ross Alderson
Sent: September-25-17 3:04 PM
To: Rob Kroeker; Laura Piva-Babcock
Subject: RE: KM QA_MNP Repott and AG Review_draft_21 Sep 2017
Just me

Ross Alderson CAMS.

Director, AML & Investigations

Corporate Security and Compliance Division, BCLC
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V5M 0A6

T 604 225 6382 Cs 17(1) F 604 225 6488

e Yes and...e

ralderson@bcle.com

Connect with us;
Twitter @BCLC| Facebogk BCCaslnos | Blog | befc.com

Last year, more than $1 bilion generated by BCL.C gambling aclivities went back into health care, education and community groups across
B.C.

From: Rob Kroeker

Sent: Monday, September 25, 2017 3:04 PM .

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>; Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>
Subject: RE: KM QA_MNP Report and AG Review_draft_21 Sep 2017

Who was it sent to?

From: Ross Alderson <RAldersgn@BCLC.com>

Date: September 25, 2017 at 2:56:18 PM PDT

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>
Subject: RE: KM QA_MNP Report and AG Review_draft_21 Sep 2017

Hi Rob, | just spoke to Laura. Seems this document was sent out prematurely and Laura had not had chance to review. Once
she has and made some changes we can review and set up a meeting if that works for you

Ross Alderson CAMS,

Director, AML & Investigations

Corporate Securily and Compliance Divislon, BCLG
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V5M 0AB

T 604 225 6382 Cs 17(1) F 604 225 6488

sYes, and...e

ralderson@bcle.com



Connect with us;
Twitter @BCLC| Facebook BCCasinos | Bleg | beic.com

Last year, more than $1 biilion generated by BCLC gambling aclivities went back into health care, education and community groups across
B.C.

From: Rob Kroeker

Sent: Monday, September 25, 2017 2:45 PM

To! Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>; Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>
Subject: RE: KM QA_MNP Report and AG Review_draft_21 Sep 2017

So we aren't going to address any of his questions® 13(1)

Let's jump oh a call to discuss Can you 2 set that up ?

s 15(1)

From: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCL C.com>
Date: Monday, Sep 25, 2017, 2:25 PM

To: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bgle.com>
Subject: FW: KM QA_MNP Report and AG Review draft 21 Sep 2017

Fyl.

‘Ross Alderson cams.

Director, AML & Investigations

Corporate Security and Compliance Division, BCLC
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V5M 0AG

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

Cc: MIM Team <MiMTeam@bele.com>

Subject: RE: KM QA_MNP Report and AG Review_draft_21 Sep 2017

2



I made a few changes anyway. Rob will want to review as well no doubt

Ross Alderson GaMS.,
Director, AML & Investigations
Corporale Securily and Compliance Division, BCLC

2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V5M 0A8
T 604 2258382 Cs 17(1) F 604 225 6488

sYes, and...e

ralderson@hclc.com

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

Sent: Monday, September 25, 2017 1:53 PM

To: Ross Alderson <BAlderson@BCLC.com>

Ce: MIM Team <MIMTeam@bclc.com>

Subject: RE: KM QA_MNP Report and AG Review_draft_21 Sep 2017

So sorry Ross.

Laura has requested to look at it first. | wasn’t aware that she had not had the chance to review In detall yet,

Thanks,

Angela

From: Angela Law

Sent: Monday, September 25, 2017 1:11 PM

To: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC. com>

Cc: MIM Team <MIMTeam®@bclc.com>

Subject: KM QA_MNP Report and AG Review_draft_21 Sep 2017

HiRoss,

Attached is the original QA and KM document that was developed in response to the MNP report and AG review.

While we didn’t end up using it on Friday we wanted to run it by you for review should we need to fall up on some high level
holding messages. :

Could you take a first stab at this?
Thanks,

Angela



Kevin Simcoe

K- A e
From: Ross Alderson
Sent: September-27-17 9;04 AM
To: Dan H. Thompson
Subject: ‘ RE: MNP audit findings

Yes, bang on that Is exactly what we are looking for. s 13(1), s 15(1)

Ross Aldarson CAMS,

Director, AML & Investigations

Corporate Security and Compliance Division, BCLC
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V5M 0AB

T 604 225 6382 Cs 17(1) - 604 225 6488

sYes and...s

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
B.C. .

From: Dan H. Thompson

Sent: Wednesday, September 27, 2017 8:.58 AM
To: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>
Subject: FW: MNP audit findings

Hey Ross,

Sorry to bother you, but can you confirm that the message below is telated to our current situation? | have all my
communications archived, just want to make sure | am on the right thread.

-Dan

From: Dan H. Thompson
Sent: Thursday, July 14, 2016 1:39 PM
To: Ross Alderson

Subject: RE: MNP audit findings

Hello Ross,
After a review of the data as provided to MNP and the underlying queries | have discovered the following:

s 15(1)



s 15(1), 8 22

s e sl e sk sk ok ok ok ok ok ok o oo s e o o oo ol oR ke e ok e ok ok ok kO ke ok o ok o e sk ok sk ok ok ok ok

s 15(1), s 22

S0, the short story is:

s 15(1)

Please feel free to reach out to me for any clarification or further examples.

Thanks,



-Dan

Dan H Thompson

Senior Technical Analyst, Gaming Solutions
Software Services

Business Technology, BCLC

BCLC, 74 West Seymour Street, Kamioops BC V2C 1E2
T 260-852-6113 Cs 17(1)

dhthompson@bclg.com

Connect with us:
Twitter @BCLC| Twitter @BCLCGameSense | YouTube | Blog | bele.com

Last year, more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activilies went back into
health care, education and community groups across B.C.

From: Ross Aldérsbn 7

Sent: July-13-16 4:42 PM

To: Dan H. Thompson

Subjeckt: MNP audit findings

Dan,

We have {finally) received the MNP audit draft report from ealier this year. There is a piece in there which states that

It was stated in their report that 385 {0.1%) of LCTRs did not contain mandatory fields such as addvess, occupation or a unigue
identifier.

s 15(1)

Any insight you may have would be appreciated.

Regards



Ross Alderson CAMS.

Director, AML & Investigations

Corporale Security and Compliance Division, BCL.C
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V5M 0A6

T 604 2256382 Cs 17(1) F 604 225 6488

aYes, and...s
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
[ L -~

Sarah Morris

From:

Sent: September-22-17 12:28 PM

To: All- Executive; CommsMediaPA
Subject: AML audit; documents 8 coverage

Good afternoon,

Below are all relevant materials regarding Attorney General David Eby's announcement this morning that there will be an
independent review of money laundering controls in B.C. casinos. This relates to a 2016 GPEB-commissioned review of the

River Rock Casino by a company called MNP,

Gov't release! hitps://news.gov.be.ca/releases/2017AG0024-001625
BCLC response and supplementary materials: hitp://corporate.bele.com/content/dam/belc/corporate/documents/anti-

maney-laundering-reviews-audits.pdf

Media coverage includes:
http://vancouversun.com/news/local-news/big-cas h-flowing-into-river-rock-casino-sparks-inoney-laundering-probe

http://www.news 1130.com/2017/09/22/att0rnev—generaI-monev—!aunderina—casinos/
. https://roundhouseradio.com/2017/09/2Zlattornev-general-investigate—monev~!aundering—casinos[

. http;//thebreaker.news/news/casino-monev-faundering[
Macdonaid/Sara - BC Liberals & casing report - CKNW {Vancouver) - 22-5ep-2017

s BCUpdate - Money Laundering - CP News - 22-Sep-2017

¢ Casino money Jaundering repott - Soctal Media - 22-Sep-2017

De Silva - casino money laundering - CKNW (Vancouver) - 22-Sep-2017
e Casinos Laundering - CP News - 22-Sep-2017

s Casino money laundering - CKNW (Vancouver) - 22-Sep-2017

No detalls of who will conduct the audit, or a timeling, have been shared yet.

Regards,
Sarah

s 3(1)0)



s 3(1)()

Terms of Use - This summhry is a service provided by Government Communications and Public BEngagement and is only intended for originaf addressee,
All content is the copyrighted property of a third party creator of the material. Copying, refransmitting, redistributing, seflling, licensing, or emailing the
material to any third party or any employee of the Provinee who is not authorized to access the material is prohibited.



Kevin Simcoe
L

From: Jim D. Lightbody

Sent: September-21-17 5:30 PM
To: Laura Piva-Babcock

Ca Rob Kroeker; Susan Dolinski
Subject: Re: MNP release update
Thanks

s 15(1)

On Sep 21, 2017, at 5:27 PM, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Bahcock@bcic.com> wrote:

Thanks Jim and Rob for your feedback, GCPE has indicated that these documents will be linked in the quick
facts section of their release and that we are responsible for posting them to our website. If they are
somehow not included in the final release, we still have the capability to make the decision to post them
proactively on our own, since we have developed a practice of proactive disclosure generally. '

I'll develop a cover and send for review. These documents will be posted on our reports and disclosures page
in the Accountability section. L

From: Jim D. Lightbody

Sent: September 21, 2017 5:24 PM

To: Laura Plva-Babeock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.coms>

Cc: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bcle.com>; Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>
Subject: Re: MNP release update

| think we should say when we responded and provide the context
s 15(1)
On Sep 21, 2017, at 5:17 PM, Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc,com> wrote:

Thanks Rob. Yes, | have those. | wanted to ensure that nothing else needed to be done to
them, so thank you for confirming. My only other question is regarding the MNP BCLC
response document. Do we want to add some sort of explanation or cover to the front
indicating when it was provided to government or anything, or are we ok with it as-is. L

From: Rob Kroeker

Sent: September 21, 2017 5:15 PM

To: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bele.com>; Susan Dolinski <5Dolinski@BCLC .com>;
Jim D. Lightbady <JDLightbody@bclc.com:>

Subject: Re: MNP release update

Laura - the redacted copies of our documents were already sent to the DM and
MA. Susan was copied. |don't have immediate access to send again as | am on phone
not computer




From: Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 4:43:57 PM PDT

To: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>, Jim D. L:ghtbody <IDLighthody@bcic.com>,
Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>

Subject: MNP release update

Importance: High

Hello,

| just got off the phone with Megan Harris, Comms Director at AG GCPE. She relayed the
following

s  Province-wide news release to be distributed between 9 & 10 a.m., linked to MNP report
which will he posted to GPEB's wehsite
s  Release will include guotes from the Minister and the Solicitor General, Solicitor
General's guote to be along the lines that it's important to deter any criminal
activity. Minister indicating there will be a review.
«  BCLCto have a quote if it wishes
« No language in the release nor any minister gquote noting that all agree that BCLC is in fuli
compliance with FINTRAC, but | was told that BCLC can say this if they wish in their quote
BCLC's MNP response, EY report and FINTRAC report will all be linked in the quick facts
section of the news release — BCLC's documents will be on BCLL's website

GCPE does not have BCLC's reports, | won't share until | know the redacting is final and
comptlete, If we want these documents linked, we'll need to have that redacting done this
evening so they’re ready first thing. Rob, please advise.

Susan and | agree that providing a quote when we can't see the news release is problematic.

| wanted to share this information with you so you can regroup and determine next
steps. National PR is available for a call In the marning if we need to prep our spokesperson.

Thanks,

Laura Piva-Babcock
Director, Communications
74 Wast Seymour Strest, Kamloops, B.C. V2C 1E2

T 250 828 5576 s 17(1)

Connect with us: ]
Twitter @BCLC| Facebook | befc.com

Last year more than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health
care, education and community groups across B.C,



Kevin Simcoe
[ .

L R
From: Monica Bohm
Sent: October-04-17 12,51 PM
To: Amanda Hobson; Karen Gray; Richard Fenster; Garth Pieper; Susan Dolinski; Brad Desmarais;
Jim D. Lightbody; Jamie Wiebe; Charlene Nielson
Subject: Re: AML Key Messages

Thx Susan

From: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>

Date: October 4, 2017 at 11:03:42 AM PDT

To: Brad Desmarais <BDesmarais@bclc.com>, Karen Gray <KGray@BCLC.com>, Garth Pieper <GPieper@BCLC.com>,
Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@bclc.com>, Charlene Nielson <CNIELSON@bclc.com>, Jamie Wiebe
<JWiebe@bcle.com>, Amanda Hobson <AHohson@bclc.com>, Richard Fenster <RFenster@BCLC.com>, Monica
Bohm <MBohm@BCLC.com>

Subject: AML Key Messages

Hi - given the questions being asked about the AML media coverage by people attending G2E and at the request of
Monica, | am sharing some response points you can choose to use during your networking, particularly at the CGA
reception this evening. Apologies for not getting these to you sooner.

Susan

BCLC Response Points Attorney General's Review:

This builds on the good work BCLC is already doing. We have a robust anti-money laundering program in
place and we understand the important role we play to support regulators and law enforcement to combat

illegal activity.

BCLC has proactively released its management response to the MNP report released by the Attorney
General and the results and actions taken following two independent audits to demonstrate the strength of
our program and our commitment to rigorous review and continuous improvement.

We welcome the Attorney General’s independent review on the Province’s anti-money laundering
controls to identify areas that could further enhance our program.

General:

We operate in a highly regulated environment and work closely with regulators and law enforcement to

combat any suspicious activity.
1



BCLC routinely conducts independent audits of our AML program and we are confident that the program
we have in place is comprehensive.

BCLC and our service providers are committed to doing our part to prevent, detect, and report any
suspicious activity. If we have any reason to suspect any criminal behaviour, we immediately report it to local

police and regulators.

Secondary Messages/Examples:

Through an information-sharing agreement with police, BCLC proactively bars suspected members of
organized crime from gaming facilities in B.C. To date, more than 270 people have been banned.

We've worked collaboratively with the Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch to increase cashless
alternatives at BC casinos and the use of these continues to grow,

In addition to extensive on-site casino operator security staff, BCLC has 15 investigators and 13
compliance officers dedicated to the oversight of the security and integrity of ali gaming facilities across the
province. BCLC also has a dedicated Anti-Money Laundering Unit consisting of five members.



i{evin Simcoe

I T
From: Jim D. Lightbody
Sent; September-22-17 12:13 PM
To: Aly Couch
Ce: Suzanne Rowley; Sarah Darcey; Laura Piva-Babcock
Subject: RE: FOR REVIEW: Weekly Jim Session: AML, Board Strategy, Lottery and Casino Markeling and
Parq

See my comments below,

From: Aly Couch

Sent: Friday, September 22, 2017 11:57 AM

To: Jim D. Lightbody <)DLightbody@bcle.com>

Cc! Suzanne Rowlay <SRowley@hiclc.com>; Sarah Darcey <SDArcey@BCLC.com>; Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-
Babtock@bclc.com>

Subject: FOR REVIEW: Weekly Jim Session: AML, Board Strategy, Lottery and Casino Marketing and Parq

Hi Jim,
Please see helow for your draft email and fweets,

Thanks,
Aly

Good morning,

Last week Minister David Eby released a 2016 report on Anti-Money Laundering (AML) in B.C gaming facilities that
was commissioned by GPEB and completed by MNP, He alsc ordered a review of current AML procedures in
casinos in BC. We have a zero tolerance policy for any criminal activity and over the years have taken many steps to
detect and deter these activities. This upcoming review will bulld on the rigorous work BCLC is already doing. We
have a robust anti-money laundering program in place and we understand the important role we play to support
federal and provincial regulators and law enforcement to combat illegal activity.

We proactively released BCLC’s management response and action plan to the MNP report released by the Attorney
General, as well as the results and actions taken following two independent audits by FINTRAC and EY in 2016 to
demonstrate the strength of our program and our commitment to rigorous review and continuous improvement. |
want to thank our security and compliance team for all of their ongoing efforts to maintain BCLC's anti-money
laundering compliance. Links to the news release and our response to the 2016 report and independent audits can
be found on YAK. ‘ ' '

I am confident in the strength of our security and compliance team, which is led by an expert in the field. In fact, our
VP of Corporate Security and Compliance, Rob Kreeker, recently published a book on Anti-Monday Laundering
(AML). With Rob’s extensive experience in the gaming industry and legal background, he provides a great inside
perspective and practical advice for navigating the complex and often challenging provisions of AML. The book,
entitled, Canadian Anti-Money Laundering Law: Gaming Sector, was co-written with Ontario legal director, Jeffrey
Simser.

Last week your executive team was in Vancouver for our Board Strategy meeting. These annual meetings with our
Board are a great opportunity for your Executive and Board to share perspectives on our future and discuss some of
our critical initiatives that support our strategy. | can tell you that our Board remains very supportive of our Vision,
Strategy and Priorities.



As a dynamic, marketing-focused organization, I'm pleased to share with you how both our Lottery and Casino
Marketing teams continue to embody this with new and exciting campaigns. Lottery Marketing has been working
cross-jurisdictionally and applying learnings from recent player segmentation research and has developed targeted
advertising to reach new audiences. You can keep an eye out on what the team is up to each month in Marketing
Magazine, an interactive online publication that highlights initiatives in-market, as well as a sneak peek into what is
coming down the pipe. In Casino Marketing, the team has launched a new mass media campaign, “No Two Nights
Are the Same at Casinos BC.” The campaign showcases the many entertainment options available at B.C. casinos
and is designed to attract new players. You can check out the ads on YAK. As a marketer at heart, 'm really
impressed and excited by what we're creating. Great work, teams!

Finally, it is with great pride and anticipation that | await this Friday. Over the past few years, we have re-energized
and re-staged our casino business by focusing on enhanced entertainment options and amenities, We are trying to
make the experience greater than the win. After years of planning and hard work by many people, | am thrilled to be
part of the grand opening of yet another exceptional facility, Parg Vancouver. This has been a long anticipated
project, and | can’t wait to see the doors open!

Have a fun week,
Jim

Jim Lightbody
Prasident & CEC

BCLC Head Office
74 West Seymaur Streaf, Kamloops BC V20 1E2
T 250 828 5650

BCLC Marketing & Sales Office
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver BC VoM 0A8
T 604 225 6400

jdiightoody@bclc.com

belo.com

Monday | September 26% {2 Tweets) .
Today $0.88 of every dollar played goes back into the Province. Learn how @BCLC is committed to
#PlayltForwardBC hitp:/fwww.bclc.com/playitforward/

{ love to #win. One of the most important things F've learned about #winning is you can't rest on your laurels & take
anything for granted.

Tuesday | September 26'
The finalists are set for the @BCLC Technology Innovator Award for the @KamioopsChamber Business Excellence

Awards! hitp://bit.ly/2xfHn3V

Wednesday | September 27"
Great to be at #UBCM in #Vancouver today. @BCL.C we are committed to giving back & helping our communities

grow. #PlayltForwardBC

Thursday | September 28" (2 Tweets)
Looking forward to @parq_vancouver opening tomorrow! Parq reflects @BCLC’s vision to provide #Vancouver &

visitors world-class entertainment

As well as greater entertainment options @parq_vancouver will provide revenue to @CityofVancouver & Province
for local & #BC wide programs

Friday | September 29" (3 Tweets)
Proud to be here to open @Parq_Vancouver. }look forward to seeing the benefits this facility will bring to

@CityofVancouver & our Province



<Sarah will source photo>‘

@parg_vancouver has bought job creation to #Vancouver with 20% of construction employees hired from the
#DTESi, Mount Pleasant & Strathcona

Enjoyed sharing @BCLC’s involvement to promote #DisabilityEmploymentMonth with the President’s Group today
@AccessEmployers



Kevin Simcoe

NP
From: Jim D. Lightbody
Sent: September-22-17 1;15 PM
To: Aly Couch
Ca: Suzanne Rowley; Sarah Darcey; Laura Piva-Babcock
Subject: Re: FOR REVIEW: Weekly Jim Session: AML, Board Strategy, Lottery and Casino Marketing and
Parg
Very good, thanks|
s 15(1)

On Sep 22, 2017, at 1:12 PM, Aly Couch <ACouch@bclc.com> wrote:

Thanks for the quick response, Jim. | have cleaned up the edits below and wiil send the final copy
over to Suzanne.

Have a good weekend,

Aly

From: Jim D. Lightbody

Sent: Friday, September 22, 2017 12:13 PM

To: Aly Couch <ACouch@bclec.com>

Cc: Suzanne Rowley <SRowley@bcle.com>; Sarah Darcey <SDArcey@BCLC.com>; Laura Piva-Babcock <L.Piva-
Babcock@hcic.com>

Subject: RE: FOR REVIEW: Weekly Jim Session: AML, Board Strategy, Lottery and Casino Marketing and Parg

See my comments below.

From: Aly Couch-

Sent: Friday, September 22, 2017 11:57 AM

Toa: Jim D. Lightbody <)DLightbody@® bclc.com>

Cc: Suzanne Rowley <SRowley@hcle.com>; Sarah Darcey <SDArcey@BCLC.com>; Laura Piva-Babcock <LPiva-
Babcock@bclc.com>

Subject: FOR REVIEW: Weekly Jim Session: AML, Board Strategy, Lottery and Casino Marketing and Parg

Hi Jim,
Please see below for your draft email and tweets.

Thanks,
Aly

Good morning,

Last week Minister David Eby released a 2016 report on Anti-Money Laundering (AML) in B.C gaming
facilities that was commissioned by GPEB and completed by MNP. He also ordered a review of
current AML procedures in casinos in BC. We have a zero tolerance policy for any criminal activity
and over the years have taken many steps to detect and deter these activities. This upcoming review
will build on the rigorous work BCLC is already doing. We have a robust anti-money laundering

1



program in place and we understand the important role we play to support federal and provincial
regulators and law enforcement to combat illegal activity.

We proactively released BCLC's management response and action plan to the MNP report released
by the Attorney General, as well as the results and actions taken following two independent audits by
FINTRAC and Ernst and Young in 2016 to demonstrate the strength of our program and our
commitment to rigorous review and continuous improvement. | want to thank our security and
compliance team for all of their ongoing efforts to maintain BCLC's anti-money laundering compliance.
Links to the news release and our response to the 2016 report and independent audits can be found
on YAK,

| am confident in the strength of our security and compliance team, which is led by an expert in the
field. In fact, our VP of Corporate Security and Compliance, Rob Kroeker, recently published a book
oh Anti-Monday Laundering (AML). With Rob’s extensive experience in the gaming industry and legal
background, he provides a great inside perspective and practical advice for navigating the complex
and often challenging provisions of AML. The book, entitled, Canadian Anti-Money Laundering Law:
Gaming Sector, was co-written with Ontario legal director, Jeffrey Simser.

Last week your executive team was in Vancouver for our Board Strategy meeting. These annual
meetings with our Board are a great opportunity for your Executive and Board to share perspectives
on our future and discuss some of our critical initiatives that support our strategy. | can tell you that
our Board remains very supportive of our Vision, Strategy and Priorities.

As a dynamic, marketing-focused organization, I'm pleased to share with you how both our Lottery
and Casino Marketing teams continue to embody this with new and exciting campaigns. Loitery
Marketing has been working cross-jurisdictionally and applying learnings from recent player
segmentation research and has developed targeted advertising to reach new audiences. You can
keep an eye out on what the team is up to each month in Marketing Magazine, an interactive online
publlcat:on that highlights initiatives in-market, as well as a sneak peek into what is coming down the
pipe. In Casino Marketing, the team has launched a new mass media campaign, “No Two Nights Are
the Same at Casinos BC.” The campaign showcases the many entertainment options available at
B.C. casinos and is designed to atiract new players. You can check out the ads on YAK. As a

~ marketer at heart, I'm really impressed and excited by what we're creating. Great work, teams!

Finally, it is with great pride and anticipation that | await this Friday. Cver the past few years, we have
re-energized and re-staged our casino business by focusing on enhanced entertainment options and
amenities. We are frying to make the experience greater than the win. After vears of planning and
hard work by many people, | am thrilled to be part of the grand opening of yet another exceptional
facility, Parq Vancouver. This has been a long anticipated project, and | can’t wait to see the doors
openl

Have a fun week,
Jim

Jim Lightbody
President & CEO

BCLC Head Office
74 Wast Seymour Street, Kamioops BC V2C 1E£2
T 250 828 5650

BCLC Marketing & Sales Office
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver BC V5M 0AB
T 804 225 6400

jdiightbody@bcle. com
belc.com




Monday | Septemher 25" (2 Tweets) :
Today $0.88 of every dollar played goes back into the Province. Learn how @BCLC is commiited to

#PlayltForwardBC http:/iwww.bclc.com/playitforward/

[ love to #win. One of the most important things I've learned about #winning is you can't rest on your
laurels & take anything for granted.

Tuesday | September 26" _
The finalists are set for the @BCLC Technology Innovator Award for the @KamioopsChamber

Business Excellence Awards! hitp://bit.ly/2xfHn3V

Wednesday | September 27'
Great to be at #UBCM in #Vancouver today. @BCLC we are committed to giving back & helping our

communities grow. #PlayltForwardBC

Thursday | September 28" (2 Tweets)
Looking forward to @parg_vancouver opening tomorrow! Parq reflects @BCLC's vision to provide

#Vancouver & visitors world-class entertainment

As well as greater entertainment options @parq_vancouver will provide revenue fo @CityofVancouver
& Province for local & #BC wide programs

Friday | September 29t (3 Tweets)
Proud to be here to open @Parg_Vancouver. | look forward to seeing the benefits this facility will

bring to @CityofVancouver & our Province
<Sarah will source photo>

.@parg vancouver has bought job creation to #Vancouver with 20% of construction employess hired
from the #DTESI, Mount Pieasant & Strathcona

Enjoyed sharing @BCLC's involvement to promote #DisabilityEmploymentMonth with the President’s
Group today @AccessEmployers
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Financlal Transacllons and Centre d'analyse deas
Ragorls Analysts Centra opéralions el déctaraflons

f Canada financidres du Canada

1185 West Goergla Stresl, Suite 1120, Yancouver, British Columbla VGE 4E6
1185, rue Wast Georgla, bureau 1120, Vancouver {Columbla-Britennique} VBE 4E8

July 14, 2016

Rob Krosker

Vice-President

Corporate Securify and Compliance Division
British Columbia Lottery Corporation

2940 Virtual Way

Vancouver, British Columbia

V5M 0AG

Dear Mr, Krogker,

Subject: Compliance Examination Findings
Examination Number: EXAM-2016-0282

Examination Dates: June 6-10, 2016
Period Examined: September 1, 2015 to February 29, 2016
Examination Scope: As indicated in our letter dated May 4, 2016

The purpose of this letter is to communicate the results of FINTRAC’s recent examination to
assess British Columbia Lottery Cotporation’s compliance with the requirements under Paxt 1
and 1.1 of the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering) and Terrorist Financing Act (PCMLTFA)
and its associated Regulations,

FINTRAC would like to highlight the measures recently implemented by the British Columbia
Lottery Corporation to reduce the use of cash by high limit patrons by batiing patrons wtilizing
unsoutced cash as a positive deterrence initiative,

However, as we advised you verbally during the exit interview, the following deficiency was
identified resulting in non-compliance with Part 1 of the PCMLTFA for the scope and period
covered by this examination:

Deficiency: PCMLTF Regulations 71{1)(d) - Compliance Regime - Ongoing Compliance
Training Program
Your organization has the obligation to develop and maintain an ongoing written
complianee training program for your employee(s), or your agents(s) to comply with the
Act and as required by pavagraph 71(1)(d)} of the Proceeds of Crime (Money Laundering)
and Terrorist Financing Regulations.

Specifically, as discussed during the examination, your organization’s training program is
inadequate given the size and nature of your business operations, Our FINTRAC

Canada :
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examination team tested the effectiveness of your organization’s training program by
condueting interviews with 34 casino employees at three of your casino sites: River Rock
Casino Resort, Starlight Casino and Edgewater Casino. At these locations, we
interviewed casino employees fiom surveillance, table games, slots, and cage operations,

Over the three locations, the FINTRAC examination team observed the following:
e 320 of staff interviewed demonstrated limited knowledge of Suspicious
Transaction indicators relevant to the Casino sector; and
o 24% of staff interviewed demonstrated limited knowledge of money laundering
and terrorist financing relevant to the Casino gector.

Af the River Rock Casino Resout, your organization’s compliance staff acknowledged
that training was deficient and this is further supported by the following facts:

. 80% of staff interviewed at River Rock Casino Resort demonstrated limited
knowledge of money laundering or terrorist financing, nor were they aware of
Suspicious Transaction indicators televant to the Casinos sector; and

« A Voluntaty Seif-Declaration of Non-Compliance (VSDONC) was filed in
Tanuary 28, 2016 whereby your organization identified that it failed to report 266
Suspicious Transaction Reports (STRs) for the period of September 1, 2014 to
October 31, 2015, We acknowledge your organization subsequently submitted
these STRs to FINTRAC and conducted follow-up training at that casino site.

Although staff membets may recelive training every two yeats, those interviewed during
the examination demonsirated Hmited knowledge of money laundering and terrorist
financing, especially as it pertains to Suspicious Transaction indicators relevant to the
Casino sector. The limited knowledge combined with the VSDONC submitted to
FINTRAC collectively determines that further enhancements to your ongoing training
program are required. :

As a result of this examination, no further compliance actions will be taken at this time.
However, it is expected that the deficiency noted above will be addressed. We remind you that
while limited non-compliance has been identified, British Columbia Lotlery Corporation has an
ongoing obligation to meet all applicable provisions under the PCMLTEA and its associated
Regulations. Failute to meet all legisiative provisions may lead to civil penalties or criminal
liabilities.

During the course of our examination we also identified reports that your organization has
submitted to us based on transactions that do not mest the legal definition of a reportable
transaction under the PCMLTFA and associated Regulations.

Specifically, during the examination we identified the following examples of large cash
transaction (LCTR) transactions that were not required to be reported to FINTRAC as they are
transactions where patrons at yout organization’s casino sites conducted non-cash deposits or
withdrawals for chips to and from their Player Gaming Fund accounts (PGFs).
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Tt should be noted that this is a select sample of transactions which should not be reported to
FINTRAC and we advise yout otganization to provide FINTRAC a full list of all affected
reports. The list should at a minimum contain the report type, FINTRAC repost number, date of
transaction, amount of the transaction and name of location,

EINTRAC Reparting Entity's Date of Amount of Casino

LCTR Report # Report Reference # Transaction Transaction Location
324670250 FRN20160010961 - February 3, 2016 $50,000 River Rock
318905010 FRN20:150100842 November 26, 2015 430,000 River Rock
314867578 FRN20150085292 October 5, 2015 $385,000 Starlight
313078875 FRN20150077430 September 8, 2015 580,000 River Rock

,,,,,

We request that you delete reports that have been identified as not required to be sent to
FINTRAC, as soon as possible from our database. Once all the affected reports have been
deleted, please advise the undersigned, Guidance on deleting these reports is available on our
website,

For Batch reporting, please refer to sections 3.4.1 and 3.4.2 of Module 1 “Genetal specifications”
of Standard ASCII Batch Reporting Instructions and Specification available at:
hitp:/fwww.fintrac-canafe. ;z,c.ca/reportin,q-declaration/mfofbatch—lots—eng.asn#tech

We also request that you take the appropriate measures to correct your policies, procedunes,
systems and/or training program to ensuie transactions that are not required to be reported are
not sent to FINTRAC, '

We thank you for your cooperation duting the examination process. If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact me by telephone ats 16,522 or by email at
s16,522  (@fintrac-canafe.gc.ca

Yours sincerely,
s 15(1), 5 16,822

Regional Compliance Manager

518,522

Directot, Compliance
Compliance Division
Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch

ce.




cc: S 16,8 22
Director, AML & Operational Analysis
Corporate Security and Compliance Division
British Columbia Lottery Corporation

ce: 516,522
Regional Director — Wesl
FINTRAC
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May 12, 2017

Gaming Policy & Enforcement Branch
Ministry of Finance

3rd Floor - 910 Government Street
Victoria, BC  VBW1X3

Attentlon: John Mazure
Assistant Deputy Minister

Dear John:

Re: Your Leiter Dated May 8, 2017

| wilte In response to your letter of May 8, 2017, which references varlous aspects of
BCLC's antl-money laundering program. | very much appreciate your offer of
enhanced cooperation and suppaort for BCLC's anti-money laundering efforts.

With respact to your inquiries about BCLC's coordination and collaboration with police
generally and the Joint llagal Gaming Investigation Team (JIGIT) specifically, | can
advise you that since the date of the team’s Inceplion BCLC has made collaharating
with and supporting their efforts a top priority. This is In addition to the $3 million
dollars per year BCLC has committed to JIGIT funding. Reporls back to BCLC from
the Officer-in-Charge of JIGIT and others have commended BCLC for the very high
level of collaboration and support BCLC's AML Department have provided to JiGIT.
More specifically, | can advise you BCLC has held on sile fralning and orlentation
sesslons with & number of members frorm JIGIT to ensure they have a stroig working
knowledge of BCLC's gaming operallons, AML program, type of data collected, and
our transaction analysis abllities. Additionally, ) can advise that the Director of
‘BCLC's AML Department is in frequent communication with the GIC JIGIT, and in
some clreumstances daily communication,

In regard to support of police efforts more generally, please be reminded that it was
BCLC's analysis of transactions and other aperational gaming data that led fo the
idantiflcation of a key suspect assoclated to illegal gaming opsrations In the Lower
Maindand, Further, It was BCLG's complaint to the police and briefing on BGLG's
analysis that provided the information that allowed the police to begin to target that
suspect. Prior to BCLC’s action on that matter, the activities of a suspected major
illegal gaming crime flgure appear to have gone undelected. On a broader note, I
2014 BCLC initiated and executed an information sharing agreement with the RCMP
— an unprecedented antl-money laundering measure in Canada. When JIGIT was set
up In 2018 BCLC immediately Initiated a review of the existing Information sharing
agreement, That review resulted In updates fo the agresment which ensured BCLC
colld provide support to JIGIT's effarts. The creation of the agreement in the first
instance was an Impartant addition to BCLC's AML program. The agreement enabled
a more strategic leve! of coordination between BCLC and police across the province.
One outcome of the agreement Is that it has allowed BCLC to Identify individuals and
their associates Involved in or linked to ordantzed crime and proactively ban those
individuals from casinos across the province. Because of this unique cooperative
effort belween BCLC and police, 260 individuals have been banned from provinclal
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playing it right
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284D Virsal Way
Vancouver, BC V5M OAG

T 804,216.0049
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gaming sites helping fo ensure our facilities remain free from criminal influences and are gafe for the
public.

You have asked for an update on our effoits to Increase the sophistication and capabilities of BCLC's
AML program through software tools and data anaiytics.  SAS, an AML and business intefligence
software solution, Is going through the final stages of belng brought on-line this very week. The SAS
solution Is utilized by a number of Canada’s largest banks In their AML programs. We understand
BCLC's Implementation of SAS is the first In the world In the gaming Industry, Note however that SAS |s
only one of a number of software and web-based solutions BCLG employs in fts AML program. We have
also augmented our program with other solutions that have emeérged In the last year. As | am certaln you
can appreclate, the functioning of BCLC's AML program and use of automated solutions resuits in a muiti-
facelted program, a description of which Is beyond what can be meaningfully covered here. | would be
pleased to arrange a technical brisfing, at a time converilent to you, on the automated solutions employed
and how the technology supports our AML efforts.

In your comrespondence, you make inquiries about source of funds, BCLC's anli-money laundering
program Incorporates both source of funds and source of wealth determinations. Moreover, our anti-
money laundering program employs comprehensive cuslomer due diligence and customer on-going
monltoring procedures. Tens of millions dollars in cash transactions have been refused under BCLC's
program and 131 customers have been placed on buy-in restriclions,  BCLC's entire aenti-money
laundering regime was recently audited by the federal Financial Transactions and Reporis Analysis
Centre of Canada (FINTRAC). This was the most camprehensive review of BCLC’s program to date with
upwards of six dedicated FINTRAC anti-money laundering and terrorist financing experts reviewing every
aspect of its' program. FINTRAGC found that not only was BCLC's program effective and fully compliant
with all customer due diligence, transaction and on-going monitoring requirements but also provided
feedback to us lo the effect that BCLG's program was the leader In the secter. In addition to FinTRAC
audits, BCLC is required under federal law to have &n independent audit and assessment of its anti-
money laundering program completed once every two years. BCLC has just completed the selection and
engagement process for that audit for 2017, BCLC has selected a prominent international audit firm to
conduct the work. To help address your comments we will ensure that BCLC's customer due diligence,
transaction handling (including source of funds and wealth procedures) and customer on-going
monitoring procedures are specifically reviewed during the audit. As s our standard practice, BCLC will
share the resulls of the audit with GPEB once completed later this year.

You express concerns about Instances where casino customers present $20 dollar denomination bank
notes wrapped In elastic bands, and | agree that caution is needed In these clrcumstances. When this
type of circumstance occurs, as part of BCLC's customer due diligence procedures, BCLC makes
inquires around the source of funds and other factors relevant to the transaction. In more than one case
BCLC has determined that the $20 bank notes originated from a registered money services business
(MSB). Upon further inqulries, BCLC determined that MSBs often issue $20 bank notes because that
denominatlon makes up the vast majority of Canadian currency in circulation. Further, BCLC has leamed
it Is & falrly slandard practice for an MSB to bundle large numbers of bank notes, of any denomination,
with elastic bands as that Is simply the most practical way for them {o handle the money. As a result of
Inquiries, and despite Initially appearing susplclous, follow-up inquiries in some cases have pointed to
nothing untoward. Having sald that | can assure you we will remain vigilant on this front and welcome any
additional inforrmation or support GPEB can provide.

Linked to source of funds, you raise concerns about bank drafts and specifically the mechanics behind
fransactions between a bank and its customer where a bark draft s issued. BCLC does accept bank
drafts from Canadian banks and credit unions (both of which are reporting entities under Canadian anti-
money laws and who are required to have comprehensive and effective anti-money laundering programs)
where customer due diligence has been completed and the customer holds a caslno account. BCLG has
no line of sight into a casino customer's bank accounts or any other financlal services provided to a
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customer by a financial Institution. While BCLC has had some discussions with financial institutions
around the sharing of information In furtherance of anti-money taundering, financial institutions genefally
are not receptive fo the sharing of thelr customer and commercial banking Information with BCLG for the
obvious privacy and commercial reasons. BCLC does make Inquiries of lts customers In refation to bank
drafts however, not being an enforcement agency BCLC’s powers to conduct these inquiries are quite
limited, Ultimately, BCLC has no means and no authority to require banks to disclose how a banlk's
cuslomer conducis Its business with the bank. GPEB and the police, however, do have access to court
processes including search warrants and production orders which aflow you to compel the disclosure of
financial information and conduct much more In-depth inquirles than BCLC Is permiited to do. We
understand that through this type of work GPEB has concluded that some bank drafts are suspect — as
you have noied In your lelter, BCLC relies entirely on GPEB and the police to advise it where there are
susplcions around a bank's conduct in the Issuance of bank drafts. In fact, -several weslks ago GPEB
advised BCLC that as many as 10 casino customers were using proceeds of crime to purchase bank
drafts at Canadian banks. BCLC asked GPEB fo provide the names of those customers so that BCLC
could Immediately ban the customers In question pursuant to its authority in section 92 of the Gaming
Conirol Act. BCLC has no tolerance for money laundering or any other fllegal activity and wishes fo
protect its facifities, staff and the Integrity of gaming. We have not yet received the names of the
customers involved from GPEB. | would welcome you dolng anything you can to expedite BCLC being
provided the names of customefs In guestion so that we can gel them out and keep them out of our

gaming sites.

| am seeking your assistance on one additional item. In my lelter to you of September 16, 2015, |
reported that our staff, as well as those of our service providers, were recelving reports from casino
customers of high stakes illogal gaming houses being operated in the lower mainland. Through open
source analysls, we wera even able to provide at least one possible address. Our customers continue to
report these iflegal gaming houses remain operating. [ would appreciate racelving any Information you
can share around what action has been taken in response to these reports and whether any illegal
gaming houses have been located and shutdown.

We remaln fully commilted to keeping all llegal activities out of our gaming facilities and look forward fo
GPERB's continued support of our effatts,

Yours tru

im Lightbo
President &' CEQ

co:  Cheryl Wenezenki-Yolland, Associate Deputy Minister, Ministry of Finance
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‘May 8, 2017 N 358450

Jim Lightbody

CRO and President

British Columbia Lattery Corporation
2940 Vittual Way '
VYancouver, B.C. V3M 0A6

Dear Mr. Lightbody
Re:  Sourcé of Funds.in B.C. Gambling Facilities

1 am writing concerning the sontce of funds coming into B.C, gambling facilities and to follow-up'on
my July 14, 2016 letter to you, My previous Jetter included & reminder of the-expectations.of the.
province with respect to the British Columbia Lottery Corporation (BCLC) establishing pateon’s
source of funds in B.C. gambling facilities.. This-expectation was set out in an October 1, 2015 lefter
from ihe Minister of Finance to Bud Smith, BCLC boatd chair, which included the following -
direction:

Despite the iniroduction and promotion of non-cash alternatives in gaming facilities through
earlier phiises of the AML strategy; T am advised that large and suspicious cash transactions
remuain prevalent. This situation must be addressed. As such, BCLC is dirésted to take the,

Jollowing actions with-vespect to AML... Enhdnce-customer due diligence to mitigate the risk
of money-laundering in British Columbia gaming facilities through the implementation of
AML compliance best practices including processes for evaluoting.the source of wealth and
soupce of fiinds prior to cash acceplance. '

My letter of July 14, 2016 also included the s_ug—ge_stiou thaf BCLC should consider not accepting
‘funds whete the source of the funds cannot be determined or verified, The letter also provided

exatiples-of how such a policy-cotild be implemented. :
The Gaming Poliey and Enforcement Branch (GPEB) has noted a downward trend in the total dollar
value of cash entering B.C. gambling facilitics thiough suspicious transactions. According to
GPER’s:data, suspicious cash {ransactions, which are based on reports provided to GPEB by service
providers in aceptdance with section 86 of the Gaming Control Act, have de¢lined from
approximately $177 million in 2014 to $132 million in 2015 and to.$72 million in 2016. Thisisa

" significant reduction and reflects the actions taken to date by BCLC to reduce suspicious cash.
However, $72 million is still a'significant amount of suspicious cast. '

TF /2
Ministry of Garing Paolicy and Malling Address: . - Locatlon:
Flnancrg 'Eﬂforcemen( )B’I'ﬂnch PO 303:931_1 STN PROV GO_VT Th"d Floor, 810 Government Streal
! ' © VICTORIABG VW 8N1 Victerle, BC
Ofiice of the Asslstant Telephopé; (250) 387-1301 i
Deputy Minlster and Facsimlie; (250)387-8237 Wabi: wow,gaming.govibic.ca
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GPEB rémains eoncerned by both. the large volume of unsourced cash that contmues to ente1 B.C.
gambling facilities and the circumstances under which fhe cash was accepted as detailed in the’
section 86 reports. The following information was taken ftom section 86 reports during December
2016:
e. Approximately$2.3 million of the $3.8 m;llton aceepted were $20 bills, often bundled in
elastic. bands,
¢ [3'incidents in which cash was observed to be delivered to patrons by a third party; and,
 Of 124 suspicious cash transictions from December 2016, seivice providers fefused the
transaction on only four occasions.

As the amount of sugpioious cash entering gambling facilities has deoreased, the deposit'ef new
funds into Patron Gaming Fund (PGF) accounts has.increased (from approximately $145. million in
new money in 2015 to $186 million in new money in 2016). The shift from cash to non-cash
alternatives is a key. component of the provmc:al Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Strategy and the
increased use of PGF adcoupts is encouraging, -

Howevet, GPEB has some new congerns with the potential risks presented through PGF aceounts:
Bank drafis account for virtually all of the new money deposited into RGF accounts ($185.0f $186
million in2016) and, asthe funds cannot always be atiritiited to the patron’s own bank accotnit, they,
can present similar risks to-unsourced cash. As a resylt, it is partioularly iinpertant that the customer
due diligence (CDD) being conducted for PGF account holders, both at the poirit of account-opening
and through ongoing a¢count monitoring, a altgns with the potential risk.

_ GPEB has worked with the Joint Illegal Gaming Investigation Team (J [GIT) to develop a hew

1q%1ati¥e(t10) help address the risks presented by both cash and PGF aceount transactions.
512, s

$12,513(1) These investigations may resuit in recommendations to BCLC and gambling
facility service providers for cohsideration regarding patron sanctiohs,

. BCLC’s.2017/18 mandate: letter: f?bm the Minister of Finance includes direction for BCLC totake the
following actions in continying to support govermment in the implementation of i its AML Strategy
dnd mitigation of related illegal activities:

o Undertake activities to ensure the Corporation's compliance regime is focused.on
preserving the integrity ond veputation of B.C.'s gaming indistry in the public interest;

o Work collaboratively with GPEB fo determine and implentent measures that effectively
combat money laundéring and illegal activities in BC gainbling facilities;

o Collecting and sharing in fm mation and dito with GPEB that suppor ts medsures to

. address money laundering In B.C.. gaming facilities, illegal gaming in the province, dand

JIGIT operations, and

s Enhancing AMI. best pr actices With appropriate consideration of evaluating soitrce of
funds prior to cash acceptance within a visk-based framework.
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I would like to acknowledge the work that BCLC has done to reduce-the acceptance of unsourced
cash and shift patrons to rion-cash afternatives. Déspite this good work, further action is still required
{o mitigate the risk presented by the prooeeds of orime entering B.C, gambling facilities. This risk is
not limited to unsourced cash or bank draft deposits into.PGF accounts, It is iniportant that the
provincial AML. Strategy continues fo evolve to address any new risk of the progeeds of crime
entering B.C. gambling facilities and underimining the ihtegrity of B.C.'s gambling industry.

I am interested in receiving an update on how BCLC's de-segmentation process is progressing
through the implementation of the SAS tool which was described by BCLC as a new AML
information technology system used to streamline processes to meet the new FINTRAC
requirements. Expected results were to include increased capacity, imprdved accuracy, bettei-
reporting and identification of high-risk persons, and the ability to highlight patterns of activity using

data analytics,

The need for a sustained effort to mitigate risk is consistent with BCL.C"s2017/18 mandate lettor,
specif cally the direction by the Minister to undestake activities tg énsure BCL,C's compliance regiite
is focused on preserving the integr ity and reputation of B.C.'s gambling-industry in the public
interest,

To ihaintaln a sustained effort in rislc mitigation; I expeot BCLC, GPER and law enforcement to
work collaboratively and proagtiyely to determine.and implement appropriate and specific measures
that effectively keep proceeds of érime out of B.C. gambling facilities. The proposed TAT provides
att opportunity for this type of collaboration,

I trust that BCLC will continue to work together with GPEB to maintain the sustained effort required.
to support:the provinoial AML strategy and protect the integrity of gambling in B.C,

_Yours sincerely,

John Mazure

Assistant Deputy Minister and General Manager
Gaming Policy and Enforcement Brarich
Ministey of Finaneé :

CGC:
Cheryl Wenezenki~Yolland, Associate Deputy Minister
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».  BRITISH
COLUMBIA

~ NEWS RELEASE

For Immediate Release Ministry of Attorney General
2017AG0024-001625
Sept. 22, 2017

Report on anti-money laundering released, review to follow

VICTORIA — The Government of B.C. has released a 2016 report commissioned to look at
practices and the regulatory regime related to suspicious cash transactions at B.C. gaming
facilities.

“On assuming responsibility for gambling in B.C. as part of my ministerial duties, | received a
series of briefings that caused me to believe that our province could do more to combat money
laundering at B.C. casinos,” said Attorney General David Eby. “During these discussions, a
publicly funded report that had been commissioned to review anti-money laundering policy
and practices in B.C, was shared with me. This report makes a series of serious
recommendations for reform, which should have been made public at the time the report was
complete. | am making that report public today.”

in the coming weeks, the Attorney General will announce the appointment of an independent
expert to review whether there is an unaddressed, or inadequately addressed, issue of money
laundering in Lower Malinland casinos.

“Criminal activity and money laundering in our casinos and elsewhere in B.C. will not be
tolerated,” said Minister of Public Safety and Solicitor General Mike Farnworth. “These
investigations take time because of the many moving pieces and players but JIGIT, which
operates under the Combined Forces Special Enforcement Unit, and GPEB have had good
success so far and we fully expect that to continue.”

“We take our responsibllity to manage gaming in our province very seriously and aiways
welcome the opportunity to improve our practices,” said BCLC president and CEO Jim
Lightbody. “We have zero tolerance for criminals who may attempt to target our business. if
there is something more we can do to improve the anti-money laundering efforts in B.C., we'll
doit.”

“The problem of money laundering is complex, but a committed government can make a
difference,” said Eby. “We are serious about doing everything we can to identify money
laundering activities, and ensure policies are in place to prevent it from occurring in B.C.
casinos. We will bring in the best experts available to assist us, and 1 am confident we will
succeed, especially with the continued support of our partners BCLC, casino operators, the
police, and the Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch.”

A copy of the MNP Report can be found at: https://www2 gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/sports-
recreation-arts-and-culture/gambling/gambling-in-bc/reports/mnp _report-redacted.pdf

For a link to BCLC's response to the MNP report and other relative
reports: http://corporate.bclc.com/who-we-are/corporate-reports/reports-disclosures.html




Quick Facts:

BCLC is responsible for conduct and management of gambling in B.C.

GPEB is responsible for the overall integrity of gambling and horse racing in the province,
MNP LLP were engaged by GPEB to conduct the review on Sept. 8, 2015 and delivered
the report on July 26, 2016.

In 1998, the Province added casino gambling to the responsibilities of the BC Lottery
Corporation and made them responsible for the operation of the casino industry in B.C.
In April 2016, GPEB worked with the Policing and Security Branch in the Ministry of Public
Safety and Solicitor General and the RCMP to establish the Joint [llegal Gaming
Investigation Team {JIGIT). JIGIT, a unit under CFSEU-BC, provides a co-ordinated
enforcement approach from police and GPEB to combat illegal gambling and money
laundering in B.C. : :
GPEB has also established an intelligence unit to provide government with situational
awareness of threats to the integrity of the gambling industry.

Contact:

Government Communications and Public
Engagement

Ministry of Attorney General

778 678-1572

Connect with the Province of B.C, at: www.gov.bc.ca/connect



Kevin Simcoe

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Jim D. Lightbody
September-20-17 7:52 PM
Rob Kroeker

Fwd: MNP Audit Report

I'll be in my office, can you meet me there? Call me if you can tonight,

5 15(1)

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Smith, George AG:EX" <George.Smith@gov.bc.ca>
-Date: September 20, 2017 at 7:48:54 PM PDT
To: "JDLightbody@bcle.com™ <JDLightbody@bcle.com>

Subject: RE: MNP Audit Report

Hi again Jim,
We are all set for an 8am call with the Minister tomorrow.
Please call : 8 17(1)

s 17(1)

Talk to you then.

George Smith

Senior Ministerial Assistant to the Honourable David Eby

Office of the Attorney General

P: 250-952-5796 | 8 22 | E; george.smith@gov.be.ca

From: Godfrey, Sam AGIEX

Sent: Wednesday, September 20, 2017 7:12 PM
To: Eby, David AG:EX

Cc: Smith, George AG:EX

Subject: Fwd: MNP Audit Report

s 15(1)

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Jim D. Lightbody" <JDLightbody@belc.com>
To: "Godirey, Sam AG.EX" <Sam.Godfre ov.be.ca>

Cc: "Bud Smith" <bsmith@urbansystems.ca>
Subject: Fwd: MNP Audit Report

Sam, :

i've reviewed the document you sent. We are very concerned that the report does not
include our Managament Response that we provided, which is usual practice and
provides balance and perspactive.| have attached our Management Response for
reference. We are also concerned the release may undermine our AML practices and



would like the opportunity for our opporiunity to review and advise. We have not had
that opportunity yet.

Please see below and advise.

Regards,

Jim

s 15(1)
Begin forwarded message:

From: "Rob Kroeker" <RKroeker@bcic.com>
To: "Jim D. Lightbody" <JDLightbody@bcic.com>
Subject: MNP Audit Report

Jim

It Is my understanding we were not consulted by GPEB prlor to the FOI
package going to the Minister — certainly 1 was not given an opportunity to
comment on redactions. It is normal course for BCLC to be consulted on the
release of its information which the MNP is report is almost entirely comprised
of.

Find attached a copy of the report with our management comments, most of
which where not addressed in the final report. To provide balance a copy
with our management responses should be released and only after the report
has been vetted to make sure information that would undermine our AML
program is not released.

| have also attached a copy of our completed response plan to the report.

Rob

This email is intended only for the addressee. it may contain confidential or proprietary
information that cannot be disclosed without BCLC's permission. if you have received this email
in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete the email.



Kevin Simcoe

o RO
From: Jim D. Lightbody
Sent: September-21-17 4:56 PM
To: Susan Dolinski
Subject: FW: AML Release
FYl.....

----- Original Message-----

From: Mazure, John C FIN:EX [mailto:John.Mazure@gov.bc.caj

Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2017 4:50 PM

To: lim D. Lightbody <JDLighthody@bclc.com>

Cc: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>; Fyfe, Richard J JAG:EX <Richard.Fyfe@gov.bc.ca>; Boychuk, Dave FIN:EX
<Dave.Boychuk@gov.bc.ca>; Kendall, Janelle FIN:EX <Janelle.Kendall@gov.bc.ca>

Subject: AML Release

H1lJim,

GPEB was asked to review the additional redactions to the MNP report proposed by BCLC. We have done so in consideration of
your supporting analysis and rationale.

As a starting point, FOIPPA standards and exemptions do not necessarily apply under proactive release, In addition this report
has been reviewed by gavernment’s Information and Access Operations (IAQ) group for release as part of a pending FOI
package.

The requested severing is not consistent with the guidance received from IAO, either as to potential severing, nor as to
severing that is potentiaily defensible under the act. Even if FOIPPA were being strictly applied, it is not my view that the
information proposed for severing meets the'threshold to demonstrate meet the harms test in respect of the law enforcement
exception. Similarly, the exception related to policy advice Is limited to the precise decislon points directed to the decision
maker, and the proposed exceptions are overly broad viewed in that context.

As this Is proactive release, a small amount of severing, related to the personal privacy exception (s. 22), and the law
enforcement exception {s.15) has been undertaken. The version of the report, severed to protect from an inadvertent release
of personal informatlon, is the version that will be released. I'm having trouble sending the PDF file of this redacted version
with this note but will send it in a separate email. :



Kevin Simcoe

L RO -

From: Rob Kroeker

Sent: September-21-17 9:57 PM

To: Jim D, Lightbody

Subject: Re: MNP repart - version as to be released

ltwon't open Not sure what's wrong

From: iim D. Lightbody <jDLightbody@bclc.com>
Date: September 21, 2017 at 9:53:11 PM PDT

To: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@hcic.com>

Subject: Fwd: MNP report - version as to be released

Did they leave any of our redactions In?
s 15(1)

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Boychuk, Dave FIN:EX" <Dave.Boychuk@gov.bc.ca>

To: "Jim D. Lightbody” <)DLightbody@bclc.com>, "Rob Kroeker" <RKroeker@bclc.com>

Cc: "Mazure, John C FIN:EX" <John.Mazure@gov.bc.ca>, "Kendall, Janelle FIN:EX" <fanelle.Kendall@gov.bc.ca>
Subject: MNP report - version as to he released

Good evening Jim and Rob,

t understand that there is difficulty with John’s email this evening. | have attached the version of the MNP
report that will be released, at his request.

If you have any trouble with the document, please don't hesitate in letting me know.

Dave Boychuk CPA,CMA

Director | Operations bivision | Gaming Palicy and Enforcement Branch
Ministry of Attorney General

250-508-7156

<MNP Report - redacted.pdf>



Kevin Simcoe
L

-
From: Jim D. Lightbody
Sent: September-20-17 7:51 PM
To: Smith, George AG:EX
Subject: Re: MNP Audit Report

Thanks, George, talk then.
Jim

s 15(1)

On Sep 20, 2017, at 7:48 PM, Smith, George AG:EX <George.Smith@gov.bc.ca> wrote:

Hiagain Jim,

We are ali set for an 8am call with the Minister tomorrow.
Please call : s 17(1)

s17(1)

Talk to you then.

George Smith

Sentor Ministerial Assistant to the Honourable David Eby

Office of the Attorney General

P: 250-952-6796 |8 22 } E; george.smith@gov.bc.ca

From: Godfrey, Sam AG:EX

Sent: Wednesday, September 20, 2017 7:12 PM
To: Eby, David AG:EX

Cc: Smith, George AG:EX

Subject: Fwd: MNP Audit Report

s 15(1)

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Jim D. Lightbody" <JDLightbody@bclc.com>
To: "Godfrey, Sam AG:EX" <Sam.Godfre ov.be.ca>
Cc: "Bud Smith” <bsmith@urbansystems.ca>

Subject: Fwd: NINP Audit Repotrt

Sam,

I've reviewed the document you sent. We are very concerned that the report does not
include our Management Response that we provided, which is usual practice and
provides balance and perspective.l have attached our Management Response for
reference. We are also concerned the release may undermine our AML practices and
would like the opportunity for our opportunity to review and advise. We have not had
that opportunity yet.

Please see below and advise.

Regards,



Jim
s 15(1)
Begin forwarded message:

From: “Rob Kroeker" <RKroeker@bclc.com>
To: "Jim D. Lightbody" <JDLightbody@bclc.com>
Subject: MNP Audit Report

Jim

it is my understanding we were not consulted by GPEB prior to the FOI
package going to the Minister — certainly | was not given an opportunity to
comment on redactions. It is normal course for BCLC to be consulted on the
release of its information which the MNP is report is almost entirely comprised
of,

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

This email is Intended only for the addressee. It may contain confidential or proprietary
information that cannot be disclosed without BCLC's permission. If you have received this email
in error, please notify the sender Iimmediately and delete the email.



Kevin Simcoe

— ——— R— -
From: Jim D. Lightbody
Sent: September-20-17 7:36 PM
To: Godfrey, Sam AG:EX
Ce: Bud Smith
Subject: Re; MNP Audit Report

Sam,

t Just spoke to George Smith and we will have a conference call tomorrow morning at 8 am with the Minister.
Thanks for your help in making this happen.

Best,

Jim

s 15(1)

> On Sep 20, 2017, at 7:25 PM, Godfrey, Sam AG:EX <Sam.Godfrey@gov.bc.ca> wrote:

>

> Thank you. | will follow up with you asap.

>

58 15(1)

>

>> On Sep 20, 2017, at 6:47 PM, Jim D. Lightbody <IDLightbody@bclc.com> wrote:

>

>> Sam,

>> P've reviewed the document you sent. We are very concerned that the report does not include our Management Response
that we provided, which is usual practice and provides balance and perspective.| have attached our Management Response for
reference. We are also concerned the release may undermine our AML practices and would like the opportunity for our
opportunity to review and advise. We have not had that opportunity yet.

>> Please see helow and advise.

>> Regards,

> Jim

>>

>»85 18(1)

>>

>> Begin forwarded message!

>>

>» From: "Reb Kroeker™ <RKroeker@bclc.com<mailto:RKroeker@bcle.com>>

> To: "lim D, Lightbody" <JDLightbody@bclc.com<maiito:IDLightbody@ bclc.com>>

>> Subject: MNP Audit Report

>>

>> Hm

>>

>> It is my understanding we were not consulted by GPEB prior to the FOI package going to the Minister — certainly | was not
given an opportunity to comment on redactions. It is normal course for BCLC to be consulted on the release of its information
which the MNP is report is almost entirely comprised of. '

>>

>> Find attached a copy of the report with our management comments, most of which where not addressed In the final report.
To provide balance a copy with our management responses should be released and only after the report has been vetted to
make sure information that would undermine our AML program is not released.

s

>> | have also attached a copy of our completed response plan to the report.

>>



>>Rob

P
>> This email is intended only for the addressee. It may contain confidential or proprietary information that cannot be

disclosed without BCLC's permission. If you have received this email in ervor, please notify the sender immediately and delete
the email.

>> <MNP response plan.xlsx>
5> <2016 05 17 - British Columbia Gaming Policy Enforcement Branch - BCLC Management Responses and Notes.docx>




Kevin Simcoe
I

R
From: Bud Smith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca>
Sent: September-20-17 3:01 PM
To: Jim . Lightbody
Subject: RE: MNP Audit Report
Thanks.

From: Jim D. Lightbody [mailto:iDLightbody@bclc.com]
Sent: September 20, 2017 8:02 PM

To: Bud Smith <bsmith@urbansystems.ca>

Subject: Fwd: MNP Audit Report

See coordinates below.

s 15(1)

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Smith, George AG:EX" <George.Smith@gov.bc.ca>
Date: September 20, 2017 at 7:48:54 PM PDT

To: "JDLightbody@bcle.com™ <JDLightbody@bcle.com>
Subject: RE: MNP Audit Report

Hiagain Jim, -
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

P:250-952-6796 [$ 22 | E: george.smith@gov.be.ca

From: Godfrey, Sam AG:EX

Sent: Wadnesday, September 26, 2017 7:12 PM
To: Eby, David AG:EX

Cc: Smith, George AGIEX

Subject: Fwd: MNP Audlt Report

s 15(1)
Begin forwarded message:

From: "Jim D. Lightbody" <JDLightbody@bclc.com>
To: "Godfrey, Sam AG.EX" <S8am.Godfrey@gov.bc.ca>




Cec: "Bud Smith" <bsmith@urbansystems.ca>
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
that opportunity yst.

Please see below and advise.

Regards,

Jim

s 15(1)
Begin forwarded message:

From: "Rob Kroeker" <RKroeker@bcle.com>
To: "Jim D. Lightbody" <JDLightbody@bclc.com>
Subject: MNP Audit Report

Jim

It is my understanding we were not consulted by GPEB prior to the FOI
package going to the Minister —- certainly | was not given an opportunity to
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

program Is not released.

| have also attached a copy of our compieted response plan to the report.

Rob

This email is intended only for the addressee. It may contain confidential or proprietary
information that cannot be disclosed without BCLC's permission. If you have received this email
in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete the email.

This email is intended only for the addressee. it may contain confidential or proprietary information that cannot be disclosed

without BGLC's permission. If you have recelved this email in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete the email.
I you are not tha intended recipient or agent, do not rely on, disir bute, or copy any part of this e-mail. if you received this e-mail in error, pleass defste the message, and if
possible let me know il has baen received In emor. Many thanks.



Kevin Simcoe

A A
Fram: Rob Kroeker
Sent: September-21-17 10:24 PM
To: Jim D. Lightbody
Subject: Re: MNP report - version as to be released
Yep. It's fine

From: Jlim D, Lightbody <IDLightbody@bclc.com>
Date: September 21, 2017 at 10:22:59 PM PDT

To: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>

Subject: Re: MNP report - version as to be released

s 13(1) Thanks for sending the note to GPEB re our concerns.
Hope you're ok with my final quote, we had to push send a few minutes ago.

s 15(1)

> On Sep 21, 2017, at 10:20 PM, Rob Kroeker <RKrosker@bele.com™> wrote:

>

>

> There's your answer. They have rejected all redactions out of hand.

>

>

> From: Boychuk, Dave FIN:EX <Dave Boychuk@gov.bec.ca>

> Date: September 21, 2017 at 10:06:02 PM PDT

> To: Rob Kroeker <RI roeker@bcle.com>, Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@bcle.com=

> Ce: Mazure, John C FINGEX <John Mazure@gov.be.ca>, Kendall, Janeile FIN:EX <Janelle Kendall@gov.bo.ca>
> Subject: Re: MNP report - version as to be released

>

> Hi Rob,

>

by

> I have attached an alternate version that is considerably smaller, please let me know if this version works,
>

=

> The version that is going to released has not been modified from the version that was circulated to you earlier.
>

=

> Please let me know if you have any trouble with this version of the document.

=

>

>

>

> From; Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bcle.com>

> Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2017 10:00 PM

> To: Boychuk, Dave FIN:EX; Jim D. Lightbody

> Co: Kendall, Janelle FIN:EX; Mazure, John C FIN:EX

> Subject; Re: MNP report - version as to be released

>

> Hi Pave

>

> The attachment won't open. Seems to be corrupted,

>

> Joht' eatlier note suggested our redactions were all rejected out of hand, Can you advise if any where accepted.

1



>
> Thanks

-

> Rob

>

>

>

> From; Boychuk, Dave FIN:EX <Dave.Boychuk@gov.be.ca>

> Date: September 21, 2017 at 7:33:18 PM PDT

> To: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bcle.com>, Jim D, Lightbody <JDLightbody@bcle.com>

> Ce: Kendall, Janelle FIN:EX <Janelle.Kendall@gov.be.ca>, Mazure, John C FINEX <John.Mazure(@gov.be.ca>
> Subject: MNP report - version as to be released

>

> Good evening Jim and Rob,

>

> T understand that there is difficulty with John's email this evening. I have attached the version of the MNP report that will be released, at his
request.

>

> If you have any trouble with the document, please don't hesitate in letting me know.

>

>

>

> Dave Boychuk CPA,CMA

> Director | Operations Division | Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch

> Ministry of Attorney General

> 250-508-7156

>

>
> This email is intended only for the addressee. It may contain confidential or proprietary information that cannot be disclosed without

BCLC's permission. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender immediately and delete the email.
> <MNP Report - redacted reduced.pdf>




Kevin Simcoe
i

L
From: Jim D. Lightbody
Sent: September-21-17 942 PM
To: Rob Kroeker
Subject: _ Re: AML Release
Follow Up Flag: Follow up -
Flag Status: Fagged

Yes, we should. You can state that I've asked you to respond with our rationale.
Thanks

s 15(1)

On Sep 21, 2017, at 5:48 PM, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com <mailto:RKroeker@bclc.com> > wrote:

Do you want me to respond just put on the record that the info released will show exactly what our focus is and how we
mitigate AML risk which runs a high risk of undermining our efforts and facilitating money laundering or just leave it?

From: Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@hbclc.com <malito:DLightbody@bcle.com> >
Date: September 21, 2017 at 5:28:17 PM PDT

To: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bcle.com <mailto:RKroeker@bclc.com> >

Ce: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com <mailto:SDolinski@BCLC.com> >

Subject: Re: AML Release

522
s 15(1)

On Sep 21, 2017, at 5:17 PM, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@hclc.com <mailto:RKroeker@bclc.com> > wrote:

522

From: Mazure, John C FIN:EX <iohn.Mazure@gov.bc.ca <mailto:John.Mazure@gov.bc.ca> >

Date: Saptember 21, 2017 at 4:49:42 PM PDT
To: Jim D. Lightbody <IDLightbody@ belc.com <mailto:iDLighthody@bcle.com> >



Cc; Boychuk, Dave FIN:EX <Dave.Boychuk@gov.bc.ca <mailto:Dave.Boychuk@gov.be.ca> >, Kendall, Janelle FIN:EX
<Janelle.Kendall@gov.be.ca <mailto:Janelle.Kendall@gov.bc.ca> >, Fyle, Richard J JAG:EX <Richard.Fyfe@gov.bc.ca
<mailto:Richard.Fyfe@gov.be.ca> >, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com <mailto:RKroeker@bclc.com> >

Subject: AML Release

Hi lim,

GPEB was asked to review the additional redactions to the MNP report proposed by BCLC. We have done so in consideration of
your supporting analysis and rationale.

As a starting point, FOIPPA standards and exemptions do not necessarily apply under proactive release. In addition this report
has been reviewed by government's Information and Access Operations {IAC) group for release as part of a pending FOI

package.

The requested severing is not consistent with the guidance recelved from 1AG, either as to potentlal severing, nor as to
severing that is potentially defensible under the act. Even if FOIPPA were being strictly applied, It is not my view that the
information proposed for severing meets the threshold to demonstrate meet the harms test In respect of the law enforcement
exception. Similarly, the exception related to policy advice is fimited to the precise decision points directed to the decision
maker, and the proposed exceptions are overly broad viewed in that context.

As this is proactive release, a small amount of severing, related to the personal privacy exception {s. 22), and the law
enforcement exception (s.15) has been undertaken. The version of the report, severed to protect from an inadvertent release
of personal Information, Is the version that will be released. I'm having trouble sending the PDF file of this redacted version

with this note but will send it in a separate email,



Kevin Simcoe
.

— — L
From: Rob Kroeker
Sent: September-21-17 10:19 PM
To: Mazure, John C FIN:EX; Jim D. Lightbody
Cc: Fyfe, Richard J JAG:EX; Boychuk, Dave FIN:EX; Kendall, Janelle FIN:EX
Subject: Re: AML Release

Jim has asked me to loop in.

We want to make sure it's understood that our redactions have the benefit of a legal review and fall squarely within the
provistons and spirit of FOIPPA. Further, we believe our redactions are aligned with and supported by the jurisprudence - the
specific cites for which were provided. We note simitar support and analysis has not been provided in relation to the
comiments below.

More importantly, the detailed information GPEB is proposing to release, and which we have asked be withheld, on how our
AML countermeasures work will be of benefit to those seeking to exploit casinos for money laundering purposes and may well
assist criminal actors in avoiding existing detectlon efforts.

We maintain the redactions we have laid out are balanced and appropriate, are supported under the law, and are necessary to
protect the integrity of the existing AML program.

From: Mazure, John C FIN:EX <John.Mazure@gov.bc.ca>

Date: September 21, 2017 at 4:49:42 PM PDT

To: Jim D. Lightbody <JDLightbody@bclc.com>

Cc: Boychuk, Dave FIN:EX <Dave.Boychuk@gov.bc.ca>, Kendall, Janelle FIN:EX <Janelle.Kendall@gov.bc.ca>, Fyfe, Richard )
JAG:EX <Richard.Fyfe@gov.be.ca>, Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>

Subject: AML Release

HiJim,

GPER was asked to review the additional redactions to the MNP report proposed by BCLC, We have done so In consideration of
your supporting analysis and rationale.

As a starting point, FOIPPA standards and exemptions do not necessarily apply under proactive release. In addition this report
has been reviewed by government’s Information and Access Operations (IAO) group for release as part of a pending FOI
package.

The requested severing is not consistent with the guidance received from IAG, either as to potential severing, nor as to
severing that Is potentially defensible under the act. Even if FOIPPA were being strictly applied, it is not my view that the
information proposed for severing meets the threshold to demonstrate meet the harms test in respect of the law enforcement
exception. Similarly, the exceptlon related to policy advice is limited to the precise decision points directed to the decision
maker, and the proposed exceptions are overly broad viewed in that context.

As this Is proactive release, a small amount of severing, related to the personal privacy exception {s. 22), and the law
enforcement exception (s.15) has been undertaken. The version of the report, severed to protect from an inadverient release
of personal information, Is the verslon that will be released. i'm having trouble sending the PBF file of this redacted version
with this note but will send it In a separate email,



Kevin Simcoe
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From: Jim D, Lightbody
Sent: September-28-17 9:46 AM
To: Susan Dolinski; Laura Piva-Babcock: Rob Kroeker; Brad Desmarais
Subject: Fwd: Independent expert appointed to review B.C. anti-money-laundering policy
Attachments: 2017AG0025-001642.pdf; ATTO0001.htm

s 15(1)

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Godfrey, Sam AGEX" <Sam.Godfre ov.bc.ca>
Subject;: Fwd: Independent expert appointed to review B.C, anti-money-laundering policy

Qut in a matter of moments.

For Immediate Release
2017AG0025-001642
Sept. 28, 2017

Ministry of Attorney Genera!

NEWS RELEASE
Independent expert appointed to review B.C. anti-money-laundering policy

VICTORIA - Attorney General David Eby has appointed an independent expert to conduct a review of
British Columbia's anti-money-laundering policies and practices in the gambling industry, with a focus
on the Lower Mainland.

"Our government will regulate this industry appropriately and I need an independent expert to advise
me on the best course forward," said Eby. "I have asked lawyer Peter German, a former deputy
commissioner of both the RCMP and Correctional Service Canada, and the author of Canada's leading
anti-money laundering law textbook, to conduct an independent review and make recommendations, if
necessary, for reform."

Last week, the Government of B,C, released a 2016 report completed by MNP LLP that looked at
practices related to suspicious cash transactions at a single B.C. casino. That report, commissioned by
the former government but never publicly released, made a series of recommendations to reform
provincial policies and practices.

" believe that if we have the right policies and procedures in place, we can address any concerns the
public may have about gambling in B.C.," said Eby, "We have the full support of operators in the
sector, as well as BCLC and the Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch for this review."

Eby has asked German to determine whether there is an unaddressed, or inadequately addressed, issue
of money laundering in Lower Mainland casinos, and the history, nature and extent of any issues he

1



identifies.

As part of the review, German will meet with government's Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch,
the B.C. Lottery Corporation, the Joint Illegal Gaming Investigation Team within British Columbia's
Combined Forces Special Enforcement Unit, casino service providers, and employee organizations at
any identified facilities, as well as with any other parties who may assist.

German has also been asked.provide advice to Eby about connections between any identified issues
and other areas of the economy, or provincial laws or policies that may require attention as a result of
information he gathers.

The review will be complete by the end of March 2018. German has been asked to make
recommendations to government as they are identified, rather than waiting for a final report, so that
any necessary changes may be implemented in a timely way.

Quick Facts:

* German is a former deputy commissioner of both the RCMP and Correctional Service Canada. While
with the RCMP, he spearheaded the creation of market enforcement and international anti-corruption
teams.

* He is currently president of the International Centre for Criminal Justice Reform at the University of
British Columbia in Vancouver, a United Nations program network institute.

* A lawyer and member of the Ontario and British Columbia bars, German has a doctorate in law from
the University of London focused on international asset recovery.

* He is the author of Proceeds of Crime and Money Laundering (Thomson Reuters), Canada's leading
textbook on anti-money-laundering law. ‘

Learn More;

A copy of the MNP Report can be found at: https:/www2.gov.be.ca/assets/gov/sports-recreation-arts-
and-culture/gambling/gambling-in-be/reports/mnp_report-redacted.pdf

The Terms of Reference are available at: http://www2.gov.be.ca/assets/gov/sports-recreation-arts-and-
culture/pambling/gambling-in-be/ag-independent-review-tor,pdf

Contact:
Government Communications and Public Engagement

Ministry of Attorney General
778 678-1572

Connect with the Province of B.C. at: www.gov.be.ca/connect<htip://www.gov.be.ca/connect™
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From: Ross Alderson
Sent: September-28-17 10:41 AM
To: Lynn Cousins
Subject: RE: Independent expert appointed to review B.C. anti-money-laundering policy

Thanks Lyn
516,522

Ross Alderson CAMS.

Director, AML & investigations

Corporate Securily and Compliance Division, BCLC
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver, BC, V5M OAE

T 604 225 6382 Cs 17(1) F 604 225 6488

sYes, and...e

ralderson@bclc.com

Connect with us;
Twitter @BCLC]| Facebook BCCasinos | Blog | kele.com

Last year, mora than $1 billion generated by BCLC gambling activities went back into health care, education and community groups across
B.C.

From: Lynn Cousins

Sent: Thutsday, September 28, 2017 9:55 AM

To: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>

Subject: RE: independent expert appointed to review B.C, anti-money-laundering policy

516,522

Lynn Cousins, CAMS

AML Investigator

Carporate Security and Compliance Division, BCLC
2040 Virtual Way, Vancouver BC V5M 0AB

Cs 17{1)

lcousins@bclc.com

From: Ross Alderson

Sent: September-28-17 9:54 AM

To: Kris Gade <KGade@BCLC.com>; AML <AML@bclc.com>

Subject: FW: Independent expert appointed to review B.C. antl-money-laundering policy

Fyi

Ross Aldersch



Director, AML & Investigations
BCLC

From: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bclc.com>

Date:; September 28, 2017 at 9:49:00 AM PDT

To: lennifer Keim <JKeim@BCLC.com>, Daryi Tottenham <DTottenham@BCLC.com>, Bal Bamra
<BBamra@BCLC.com>, Kevin Sweeney <KSweeney@BCLC.com>, Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>
Subject: FW: independent expert appeinted to review B.C, anti-money-laundering policy

Forinfo

From: fim D. Lightbody

Sent: September-28-17 9:46 AM

To: Susan Dolinski <SDolinski@BCLC.com>; Laura Plva-Babcock <LPiva-Babcock@bclc.com>; Rob Kroeker
<RKroeker@bclc.com>; Brad Desmarais <BDesmarais@bclc.com>

Subject: Fwd: Independent expert appointed to review B.C. anti-money-laundering policy

s 15(1)

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Godfrey, Sam AG:EX" <Sam.Godfrey@gov.be.ca>
Subject: Fwd: Independent expert appeinted to review B.C, anti-money-laundering policy

Qut in a matter of moments.

For Immediate Release
2017AG0025-001642
Sept. 28, 2017

Ministry of Attorney General

NEWS RELEASE
Independent expert appointed to review B.C. anti-money-faundering policy

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
necessaty, for reform."

Last week, the Government of B.C. released a 2016 report completed by MNP LLP that looked at
2



practices related to suspicious cash transactions at a single B.C. casino, That report, commissioned by
the former government but never publicly released, made a series of recommendations to reform
provincial policies and practices.

'] believe that if we have the right policies and procedures in place, we can address any concerns the
public may have about gambling in B.C.," said Eby. "We have the full support of operators in the
sector, as well as BCLC and the Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch for this review.”

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

German has also been asked provide advice to Eby about connections between any identified issues
and other areas of the economy, or provincial laws or policies that may require attention as a result of
information he gathers,

The review will be complete by the end of March 2018, German has been asked to make
recommendations to government as they are identified, rather than waiting for a final report, so that
any necessary changes may be implemented in a timely way.

Quick Facts:

* German is a former deputy commissioner of both the RCMP and Correctional Service Canada, While
with the RCMP, he spearheaded the creation of market enforcement and international anti-corruption
teams. -

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
textbook on anti-money-laundering law.

Learn More:

A copy of the MNP Report can be found at: https://www2.gov.be.ca/assets/gov/sports-recreation-arts-
and-culture/gambling/gambling-in-be/reports/mnp_report-redacted.pdf

The Terms of Reference are available at: htip://www2.gov.bec.ca/assets/gov/sports-recreation-arts-and-
culture/eambling/gambling-in-be/ag-independent-review-tor.pdf

Contact:

Government Communications and Public Engagement
Ministry of Attorney General
778 678-1572



Connect with the Province of B.C. at: www.gov.bc.ca/connect<hilp://www.gov.be.ca/connect>
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From: Godfrey, Sam AGEX <Sam.Godfrey@gov.bc.ca>
Sant: September-20-17 5:09 PM
To! Jim D, Lightbody
Subject: Confidential; MNP Report
Attachments: MNP Report - redacted.pdf
Dear Jim,

As per our conversation, please see attached. Thank you for agreeing to maintain the confidentiality of this report until it is
publicly released. The Minister also directed me to reach out to Bud Smith and share this report with him as well but | have not

been able to reach him yet,

Sam Godfrey

Ministerial Assistant, Ministry of Attorney General

Mobile: 250 208 1359 | Office: 250 925 7613

Rm 232, Parliament Buildings, 501 Belleville St., Victoria, B.C. V8V 1X4

This message, including any attachments to it, is nof to be disclosed outside of the Provincial Governiment without prior written approval from
the Ministry of Aftornay General. if you have received this communication i error, please deslroy the email message and any attachments

immediately and notify me by telephone or by email.



Kevin Simcoe
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From: Jim D. Lightbody
Sent: September-28-17 9:51 AM
To: Godirey, Sam AG:EX
Subject: Re: Independent expert appointed to review B.C. anti-money-laundering policy

Thanks, Sam.
Sent from my iPhone

> On Sep 28, 2017, at 9:45 AM, Godfrey, Sam AG:EX <Sam.Godfrey@gov.bc.ca> wrote:

s

>

> Out in & matter of moments.

>

>

>

> For Immediate Release

> 2017AG0025-001642

> Sept, 28, 2017

>

> Ministry of Attorney General

>

> NEWS RELEASE

> Independent expert appointed to review B.C. anti-money-laundering

> policy

>

> VICTORIA - Attorney General David Eby has appointed an independent expert to conduct a review of British Columbia's anti-
money-laundering policies and practices in the gambling industry, with a focus on the Lower Mainland.

>

> "0ur government will regulate this industry appropriately and | need an independent expert to advise me on the best course
forward," said Eby. "l have asked lawyer Peter German, a former deputy commissioner of both the RCMP and Correctional
Service Canada, and the author of Canada's leading anti-money laundering law textbook, to conduct an independent review
and make recommendations, If necessary, for reform.”

>

> Last week, the Government of B.C. released a 2016 report completed by MNP LLP that looked at practices related to
suspicious cash transactions at a singte B.C. casino. That report, commissioned by the former government but never publicly
released, made a series of recommendations to reforn provincial policles and practices.

>

> "l believe that if we have the right policies and procedures in place, we can address any concerns the public may have about
gambling in B.C.," sald Eby. "We have the full support of operators in the sector, as well as BCLC and the Gaming Policy and
Enforcement Branch for this review." '

>

> Eby has asked German to determine whether there is an unaddressed, or inadequately addressed, issue of money laundering
in Lower Mainland casinos, and the history, nature and extent of any issues he Identifies.

>

> As part of the review, German will meet with government's Gaming Policy and Enforcement Branch, the B.C. Lottery
Corporation, the Joint lllegal Gaming Investigation Team within British Columbia's Combined Forces Special Enforcement Unit,
casino service providers, and employee organizations at any identified facilities, as well as with any other parties who may
assist.

»



> German has also been asked provide advice to Eby about connections between any identified issues and other areas of the
economy, or provincial laws or policies that may require attention as a result of information he gathers.

p-

> The review will be complete by the end of March 2018. German has been asked to make recommendations to government as
they are Identifled, rather than waiting for a final report, so that any necessary changes may be implemented in a timely way.
>

> Quick Facts:

=

> * German is a former deputy commissioner of both the RCMP and Correctional Service Canada. While with the RCMP, he
spearheaded the creation of market enforcement and international anti-corruption teams.

>

> * He is currently president of the International Centre for Criminal Justice Reform at the University of British Columbia In
Vancouver, a United Nations program network institute.

>

> * A lawyer and member of the Ontarlo and British Columbia bars, German has a doctorate in faw from the University of
London focused on international asset recovery.

>

> * He Is the author of Proceeds of Crime and Money Laundering (Thomson Reuters), Canada's leading textbook on anti-
money-laundering law.

>

> Learn Movre:

>

> A copy of the MNP Report can be found at:

> https://wwwz.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/sports-recreation-arts-and-culture/g

> ambling/gambiing-in-b¢/reports/mnp_report-redacted. pdf

> ‘

> The Terms of Reference are avallable at:

> http//www2.gov.bc.cafassets/gov/sports-recreation-arts-and-cuitu re/ga

> mbling/gambling-in-bc/ag-independent-review-tor.pdf

>

> Contact:

>

> Government Communications and Public Engagement Ministry of Attorney

> General

>778 678-1572

>

>

> Conpect with the Province of B.C. at:

> www.gov.bc.cafconnect<http://www.gov.bc.ca/connect>

> <2017AG0025-001642 . pdf>
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From: Ross Aldeison
Sent: September-25-17 10:10 AM
To: Rob Kroeker
Subject: Re: MNP response plan

Will do, Just leaving river rock. Met with the team for a pep talk. They are pragmatic but also not feeling great

Ross Alderson
Director, AML & Investigations
BCLC

From: Rob Kroeker <RKroeker@bcic.com>
Date: September 25, 2017 at 9:06:46 AM PDT
To: Ross Alderson <RAlderson@BCLC.com>
Subject: MNP response plan

Good morning Ross

s 16

8 15(1) Can you arrange to send me a copy of our response plan that was posted to our
website so I can send to a few of them

Thanks

Rob

s 15(1)



Kevin Simcoe

From: Aly Couch

Sent: September-25-17 9:22 AM

To Suzanne Rowley

Ce: Laura Piva-Babcock; Sarah Darcey; Jim D, Lighthody

Subject: Weekly Jim Session: AML, Board Strategy, Lottery and Casino Marketing and Parg
Importance: High

Hi Suzanne,

Here is Jim's email for this morning with the addition of Rob’s Executive Corner.
Thank you!

Aly

Good morning,

Last week Minister David Eby released a 2016 report on antl-money laundering (AML) in B.C gaming facilities that
was commissioned by GPEB and completed by MNP. He also ordered a review of current AML procedures in
casinos in BC, We have a zero tolerance policy for any criminal activity and over the years have taken many steps to
detect and deter these activities. This upcomlng review will build on the rigorous work BCLC s already doing. We
have a robust anti-money laundering program in place and we understand the important role we pan to support
federal and provincial regulators and law enforcement to combat illegat activity.

We proactively released BCLC's management response and action plan to the MNP report released by the Attorney
General, as well as the results and actions taken following two independent audits by FINTRAC and Ernst and
Young in 2016 to demonstrate the strength of our program and our commitment to rigorous review and continuous
improvement. | want to thank our security and compliance team for all of their ongoing efforts to maintain BCLC's
anti-money faundering compliance. To learn more about this review and BCLC's AML program, you can read this
Executive Carner from our VP of Corporate Security and Compliance, Rob Kroeker.

On a related note, Rob Kroeker recently published a book on anti-money laundering. With Rob’s extensive
experience in the gaming industry and legal background, he provides a great inside perspective and practical advice
for navigating the complex and often challenging provisions of AML. The book, entitled, Canadian Anti-Money
Laundering Law: Gaming Sector, was co-written with Ontario legal director, Jeffrey Simser.

Last week your Executive team was in Vancouver for our Board Strategy meeting. These annual meetings with our
Board are a great opportunity for your Executive and Board to share perspectwes on our future and discuss some of
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
advertising to reach new audiences. You can keep an eye out on what the team is up to each manth in Marketing
Magazine, an interactive online publication that highlights initiatives in-market, as well as a sneak peek into what is
coming down the pipe. In Casino Marketing, the team has launched a new mass media campaign, “No Two Nights
Are the Same at Casinos BC." The campaign showcases the many entertainment options available at B.C. casinos
and is designed to attract new players. You can check out the ads on YAK. As a marketer at heart, I'm really
impressed and excited by what we're creating. Great work, teams!



Finally, it is with great pride and anticipation that | await this Friday. Over the past few years, we have re-energized
and re-staged our casino business by focusing on enhanced entertainment options and amenities. We are trying to
make the experience greater than the win. After years of planning and hard work by many people, | am thrilled to be
part of the grand opening of yet another exceptional facility, Parg Vancouver, This has been a long anticipated
project, and | can't wait to see the doors open!

Have a fun week,
Jim

Jim Lightbody
President & CEO

BCLG Head Office
74 West Seymour Street, Kamloops BC V2C 1E2

T 250 828 5650

BCLC Marketing & Sales Office
2940 Virtual Way, Vancouver BC V5M 0A6
T 604 225 6400

idlightbody@hcle.com
bele.com
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From: Aly Couch
Sent: September-22-17 427 PM
To: Suzanne Rowley
Cc Sarah Darcey; Jim D. Lightbody; Laura Piva-Babcock
Subject: Weekly Jim Session: AML, Board Strategy, Lottery and Casino Marketing and Parg

Hi Suzanne,
Here is Jim's final email for Monday.
Thanks, and have a great weekend!

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
detect and deter these activities. This upcoming review will build on the rigorous work BCLC is already doing. We
have a robust anti-money laundering program in place and we understand the important role we play to support
federal and provincial regulators and law enforcement to combat illegal activity.

We proactively released BCLGC's management response and action plan to the MNP report released by the Attorney
General, as well as the results and actions taken following two independent audits by FinTRAC and Ernst and Young
in 2016 to demonstrate the strength of our program and our commitment to rigorous review and continuous
improvement. | want to thank our security and compliance team for all of their ongoing efforts to maintain BCLC's
anti-money laundering compliance. Links to the news release and our response to the 2016 report and independent

audits can be found on YAK.

| am confident in the strength of our security and compliance team, which is led by an expert in the field. In fact, our
VP of Corporate Security and Compliance, Rob Kroeker, recently published a book on Anti-Monday Laundering
(AML). With Rob's extensive experience in the gaming industry and legal background, he provides a great inside
perspective and practical advice for navigating the complex and often challenging provisions of AML. The book,
entitied, Canadian Anti-Money Laundering Law: Gaming Sector, was co-written with Ontario legal director, Jeffrey

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
Maaazine, an interactive online publication that highlights initiatives in-market, as well as a sneak peek into what is
coming down the pipe. In Casino Marketing, the team has launched a new mass media campaign, “No Two Nights
Are the Same at Casinos BC." The campaign showcases the many entertainment options available at B.C. casinos
and is designed to attract new players. You can check out the ads on YAK. As a marketer at heart, I'm really
impressed and excited by what we're creating, Great work, teams!
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Finally, it Is with great pride and anticipation that | await this Friday. Over the past few years, we have re-energized
and re-staged our casino business by focusing on enhanced entertainment options and amenities. We are trying to
make the experience greater than the win. After years of planning and hard work by many people, | am thrilled to be
part of the grand opening of yet another exceptional facility, Parq Vancouver. This has been a long anticipated
project, and | can't wait to see the doors openl

Have a fun week,
Jim

Jim Lightbody
President & CEQ

BCLC Head Office
74 West Seymour Streel, Kamloops BC V2C 1E2
T 250 828 5650

BCLC Marketing & Sales Office
2940 Vittual Way, Vancouver BC VEM 0AS
T 604 225 6400

idlightbody@bclc.cam
beclc.com




